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PART |
Item 1. Business

General

We are an externally managed, closed-end, nonsifiezt management investment company that haseeléotbe regulated
as a business development company under the Ingesttompany Act of 1940, or the “1940 Act.” We damite and invest
primarily in private middle-market companies (tyadlg those with $5.0 million to $50.0 million of EBDA (earnings before
interest, taxes, depreciation and amortizationpugh first lien, second lien, unitranche and marmdebt financing, often
times with a corresponding equity investment. @uestment activities are managed by our investradwiser, Stellus Capital
Management, LLC, an investment advisory firm ledtwy former head and certain senior investmenegsibnals of the direct
capital business of D. E. Shaw & Co., L.P. and#sociated investment funds and affiliated ent{tefiectively, the “D. E.
Shaw group”), which was spun out of D. E. Shaw grisuJanuary 2012. We source investments prim#riigugh the
extensive network of relationships that the pria@8pof Stellus Capital Management have developéll fiviancial sponsor
firms, financial institutions, middle-market compas) management teams and other professional iatkames. The companies
in which we invest are typically highly leverageahd, in most cases, our investments in such corapavill not be rated by
national rating agencies. If such investments wated, we believe that they would likely receiveating below investment
grade (i.e., below BBB or Baa), which are oftereredd to as “junk.”

Our investment objective is to maximize the to&urn to our stockholders in the form of curremime and capital
appreciation by:

* accessing the extensive origination channelsttha¢ been developed and established by the S@dipial
Management investment team that include long-stendilationships with private equity firms, commialbanks,
investment banks and other financial services firms

e investing in what we believe to be companies witbhng business fundamentals, generally withincoue middle-
market company focus;

« focusing on a variety of industry sectors, inghgdbusiness services, energy, general industrialernment services,
healthcare, software and specialty finance;

» focusing primarily on directly originated tranfiaos;

« applying the disciplined underwriting standardattthe Stellus Capital Management investment teasrdeveloped
over their extensive investing careers; and

< capitalizing upon the experience and resourceéleoBtellus Capital Management investment teamdnitor our
investments.

As a business development company, we are requgiresmply with regulatory requirements, includimngitations on our
use of debt. We are permitted to, and expect ttimomto, finance our investments through borrowintdgowever, as a BDC,
we are only generally allowed to borrow amountshgihat our asset coverage, as defined in the 1@40efjuals at least 200%
after such borrowing. The amount of leverage thatewploy will depend on our assessment of markaditions and other
factors at the time of any proposed borrowing, sagthe maturity, covenant package and rate steiofithe proposed
borrowings, our ability to raise funds through tbsuance of our securities and the risks of suctolungs within the context
of our investment outlook. Ultimately, we only intkto use leverage if the expected returns fromolpang to make
investments will exceed the cost of such borrowings

We also intend to elect to be treated for federabime tax purposes as a regulated investment compatRIC,” under
Subchapter M of the Internal Revenue Code, or tdeCAs a RIC, we generally will not have to paypooate-level federal
income taxes on any net ordinary income or cagaals that we distribute to our stockholders ifmeet certain source-of-
income, distribution and asset diversification riegments.

We intend to apply for a license to form a smabibass investment company, or “SBIC,” subsidiagwéver, the
application is subject to approval by the SmalliBess Administration, or “SBA,” and we can
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make no assurances that the SBA will approve opliGgtion. The SBIC subsidiary would be allowedssue SBA-guaranteed
debentures up to a maximum of $150 million underesut SBIC regulations, subject to required cajzitgion of the SBIC
subsidiary and other requirements. SBA guarantebémtures generally have longer maturities andrawterest rates than
other forms of debt that may be available to ud,\aa believe therefore would represent an attractource of debt capital.

Our principal executive office is currently locataid10000 Memorial Drive, Suite 500 Houston, Texa$)24 and our
telephone number is (713) 292-5400. As of Apri2Q13 we will relocate our executive office to 448@st Oak Parkway, Suite
2200, Houston, Texas, 77027. Our phone numbereritlain the same. Stellus Capital Management iscuzatered in
Houston, Texas, and also maintains offices in teevNork City area, San Francisco, California, dmel\Washington, D.C.
area. We maintain a website on the Internetvaw.stelluscapital.com . Information contained on our website is not ipayated
by reference into this annual report on Form 10aK gou should not consider information containeconwebsite to be part
of this annual report on Form 10-K.

Portfolio Composition

As of December 31, 2012, we had $197.9 millionartfolio investments under management. Our investrpertfolio
totaled $195.5 million at fair value and was corsed of 15 portfolio companies. As of December 31,2 our portfolio
included approximately 22.5% of first lien debt, 2% of second lien debt, 56.9% of mezzanine detht0a®%6 of equity
investments at fair value. As of December 31, 2&125.7 million of our debt investments at fairuelwere at fixed interest
rates, which represented approximately 60% of otal portfolio of debt investments at fair valudelweighted average yield
on all of our debt investments at December 31, 2063 approximately 12.5%. The information setif@ibove regarding our
investment portfolio does not include approximateh.0 million of United States Treasury securitiefair value that we held
at December 31, 2012.

Our investments generally range in size from $3ionilto $30 million, and we may also selectivelyést in larger
positions, and we generally expect that the sizeuoflarger positions will increase in proportiantie size of our capital base.
Pending such investments, we may reduce our odisigiindebtedness or invest in cash, cash equitslenS. government
securities and other high-quality debt investmeavrits a maturity of one year or less. In the futwwe, may adjust
opportunistically the percentage of our assets imel@rious types of loans, our principal loan smgrand the industries to
which we have greatest exposure, based on markditmms, the credit cycle, available financing ana desired risk/return
profile.

Stellus Capital Management

Stellus Capital Management manages our investnaivitees and is responsible for analyzing investingpportunities,
conducting research and performing due diligencpaiantial investments, negotiating and structudonginvestments,
originating prospective investments and monitowng investments and portfolio companies on an angbasis. Stellus
Capital Management is an investment advisory fethy the former head, Robert T. Ladd, and cesaimnor investment
professionals of the D. E. Shaw group’s direct tediusiness, which was spun out of the D. E. S@iaup in January 2012.
The Stellus Capital Management investment teamrasgsonsible for building the D. E. Shaw group’s diédmarket direct
investment business until it was spun out in Jan@842. The senior investment professionals ofi&te&lapital Management
have an average of over 22 years of investing,aratp finance, restructuring, consulting and actiogrexperience and have
worked together at several companies. The Stelfyst@l Management investment team has a wide rahgeperience in
middle-market investing, including originating,stturing and managing loans and debt securitiesitlir market cycles. The
Stellus Capital Management investment team corginoi@rovide investment advisory services to th&C5haw group with
respect to an approximate $730 million investmemtfplio (as of December 31, 2012) in middle-marg@mpanies pursuant to
sub-advisory arrangements.

In addition to serving as our investment adviséz|l$ Capital Management is currently seekinggise capital for a private
credit fund that will have an investment stratelygttis identical to our investment strategy an@mergy private equity fund.
We intend to co-invest with investment funds, actewand investment vehicles managed by Stellust@ldganagement (other
than the D. E. Shaw group funds) where
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doing so is consistent with our investment stra@gyell as applicable law and SEC staff interpieata. We believe that such
co-investments may afford us additional investnaggortunities and an ability to achieve greateedification. We will not
co-invest with the energy private equity fund, tzes ¢nergy private equity fund will focus on predoanitly equity-related
investments and we will focus on predominantly @reslated investments.

In addition, we and Stellus Capital Management Héee for exemptive relief from the SEC to permitater flexibility to
negotiate the terms of co-investments if our badrdirectors determines that it would be advantagdor us to co-invest with
investment funds, accounts and investment vehimbesaged by Stellus Capital Management (other that E. Shaw group
funds) in a manner consistent with our investméajgctive, positions, policies, strategies and retsdns as well as regulatory
requirements and other pertinent factors. We belthat co-investment by us and investment fundsyuatts and investment
vehicles managed by Stellus Capital Managemengfattan the D. E. Shaw group funds) may affordddstenal investment
opportunities and an ability to achieve greateedsification. Accordingly, our application for exptive relief is seeking an
exemptive order permitting us to invest with inweent funds, accounts and investment vehicles manag&tellus Capital
Management (other than the D. E. Shaw group fuindisle same portfolio companies under circumstancegich such
investments would otherwise not be permitted byli®40 Act. This exemptive application is still perg] and there can be no
assurance if and when the SEC would grant suaéfreli

Market Opportunity

We originate and invest primarily in private midaf@rket companies through first lien, second ligrifranche and
mezzanine debt financing, often times with a cqoesling equity investment. We believe the environttfier investing in
middle-market companies is attractive for severabons, including:

Robust Demand for Debt Capital We believe that private equity firms have sigrafit committed but uncalled capital, a
large portion of which is still available for intesent in the United States. We expect the largeusanof uninvested capital
commitments will drive buyout activity over the neseveral years, which should, in turn, createilepdpportunities for us. In
addition to increased buyout activity, a high votuof senior secured and high yield debt was ortgohan the calendar years
2004 through 2007 and will come due in the neantand, accordingly, we believe that new financipgartunities will
increase as many companies seek to refinancenttebiedness.

Reduced Availability of Capital for Middle-Market @mpanies. We believe there are fewer providers of, and ¢egstal
available for financing to middle-market compani&scompared to the time period prior to the reeenhomic downturn. We
believe that, as a result of that downturn, mangricing providers have chosen to focus on largeidicorporate loans and
managing capital markets transactions rather thagihg to middle-market businesses. In additionpeleeve recent regulatory
changes, including the adoption of the Dodd-Fraokakd the introduction of new international capdiad liquidity
requirements under Basel Ill, have caused bankartail their lending to middle-market-companies. &result, we believe that
less competition will facilitate higher quality délow and allow for greater selectivity throughdbe investment process.

Attractive Deal Pricing and Structures.We believe that the pricing of middle-market diglvestments is higher, and the
terms of such investments are more conservativapaced to larger liquid, public debt financingseda the more limited
universe of lenders as well as the highly negdliature of these financings. These transactiorstte offer stronger covenant
packages, higher interest rates, lower leveragedeand better call protection compared to largenfcings. In addition,
middle-market loans typically offer other invespootections such as default penalties, lien pratecthange of control
provisions and information rights for lenders.
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Specialized Lending RequirementsLending to middle-market companies requires iptdeliligence, credit expertise,
restructuring experience and active portfolio mamagnt. We believe that several factors render nuaBy financial institutions
ill-suited to lend to middle-market companies. Erample, based on the experience of Stellus Cagaabhgement's
investment team, lending to middle-market compaimdbe United States (a) is generally more labtegrisive than lending to
larger companies due to the smaller size of eagtsiment and the fragmented nature of the infoonaivailable with respect
to such companies, (b) requires specialized digedite and underwriting capabilities, and (c) miap aequire more extensive
ongoing monitoring by the lender. We believe thtatpugh Stellus Capital Management, we have thememce and expertise
to meet these specialized lending requirements.

Competitive Strengths
We believe that the following competitive strengivilt allow us to achieve positive returns for anvestors:

Experienced Investment TeamThrough our investment adviser, Stellus Capitah&gement, we have access to the
experience and expertise of the Stellus Capitaldgdament investment team, including its senior itnaeat professionals who
have an average of over 22 years of investing,aratp finance, restructuring, consulting and actingrexperience and have
worked together at several companies. The Stelfyst@ Management investment team has a wide rahgeperience in
middle-market investing, including originating,stturing and managing loans and debt securitieutfir market cycles. We
believe the members of Stellus Capital Managemamiasstment team are proven and experienced, witmsive capabilities
in leveraged credit investing, having participatethese markets for the predominant portion oirtbareers. We believe that
the experience and demonstrated ability of thdu&t&apital Management investment team to comptatesactions enhances
the quantity and quality of investment opportuitivailable to us.

Established, Rigorous Investment and Monitoring Riess. The Stellus Capital Management investment teasn ha
developed an extensive review and credit analysisgss. Each investment that is reviewed by St€lhgtal Management is
brought through a structured, multi-stage apprpvatess. In addition, Stellus Capital Managemekgdan active approach in
monitoring all investments, including reviews afdncial performance on at least a quarterly bagisegular discussions with
management. Stellus Capital Management’s investarethimonitoring process and the depth and expeiehits investment
team should allow it to conduct the type of duégdihce and monitoring that enables it to identif@d @valuate risks and
opportunities.

Demonstrated Ability to Structure Investments Criealy. Stellus Capital Management has the expertiseabitity to
structure investments across all levels of a coyigasapital structure. While at the D. E. Shaw grotine Stellus Capital
Management investment team invested approximatel Killion across the entire capital structurd @8 middle-market
companies. These investments included securedrss@tured debt and related equity securities. Fumibre, we believe that
current market conditions will allow us to strucattractively priced debt investments and mayalis to incorporate other
return-enhancing mechanisms such as commitmentdegal issue discounts, early redemption prensupayment-in-kind,
or PIK, interest or some form of equity securities.

Resources of Stellus Capital Management Platfornwe have access to the resources and capabhilft@®llus Capital
Management, which has 14 investment professioimalkiding Messrs. Ladd, D’Angelo, Davis and Ovedwmr, who are
supported by one managing director, seven pringjgald two associates. These individuals have dpedllong-term
relationships with middle-market companies, manag@rteams, financial sponsors, lending institutiang deal intermediaries
by providing flexible financing throughout the cegbistructure. While at the D. E. Shaw group, thadl& Capital Management
investment team completed financing transactions miore than 90 equity sponsors and completed phaifinancing
transactions with 12 of those equity sponsors. \&leete that these relationships provide us witbhmpetitive advantage in
identifying investment opportunities in our targedrket. We also expect to benefit from Stellus Gapilanagement’s due
diligence, credit analysis, origination and trarigecexecution experience and capabilities,
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including the support provided with respect to thinctions by Mr. Huskinson, who serves as ouefdimancial officer and
chief compliance officer, and his staff of four &dtthal mid- and back-office professionals.

Investment Strategy

The Stellus Capital Management investment team @ysn opportunistic and flexible investing apptoammbined with
strong risk management processes, which we beldigield a highly diversified portfolio across mpanies, industries, and
investment types. We seek direct origination oppaties of first lien, second lien, unitranche anezzanine debt financing,
often times with modest corresponding equity inwesits, in middle-market companies. We believe lthagtnesses in this size
range often have limited access to public finangiatkets, and will benefit from Stellus Capital Mgement’s reliable lending
partnership. Many financing providers have choseiotus on large corporate clients and managingataparkets transactions
rather than lending to middle-market businesseghBy many financial institutions and traditiotethders are faced with
constrained balance sheets and are requiring existrrowers to reduce leverage. We also beliedgééunds and
collateralized debt obligation/collateralized laasligation managers are less likely to pursue itnaeat opportunities in our
target market as a result of reduced liquidityrfew investments.

With an average of over 22 years of investing, ctafe finance, restructuring, consulting and actiogrexperience, the
senior investment team of Stellus Capital Managérhas demonstrated investment expertise througheutalance sheet and
in a variety of situations, including financial spor buyouts, growth capital, debt refinancingsamee sheet recapitalizations,
rescue financings, distressed opportunities, agdisition financings. Our investment philosophy émgizes capital
preservation through superior credit selection @stdmitigation. We expect our portfolio to providewnside protection
through conservative cash flow and asset coveremg@nements, priority in the capital structure amfdrmation requirements.
We also anticipate benefiting from equity partitipa through warrants and other equity instrumeairisctured as part of our
investments. This flexible approach enables Stéllagital Management to respond to market conditéarsoffer customized
lending solutions.

Stellus Capital Management invests across a widgeraf industries with deep expertise in selecticads including, but
not limited to, business services, energy, genedaistrial, government services, healthcare softveand specialty finance. Our
typical transactions include providing financing feveraged buyouts, acquisitions, recapitalizatjgmowth opportunities,
rescue financings, distressed or turnaround sitnatand bridge loans. We seek to maintain a divedlgportfolio of
investments as a method to manage risk and cagitafi specific sector trends.

Our objective is to act as the lead or largeststvmein transactions, generally investing betwegmllion and $30 million
per transaction. We expect the average investnadirly period to be between two and four yearseddmg upon portfolio
company objectives and conditions in the capitalkeizs.

We focus on middle-market companies with betweemifton and $50 million of EBITDA in a variety ahdustry sectors
with positive long-term dynamics and dependabld ¢asvs. We seek businesses with management teattmsl@monstrated
track records and economic incentives in strongchéses and sustainable competitive advantagesdejtendable and
predictable cash flows.

We employ leverage prudently and within the limias of the applicable laws and regulations forifiess development
companies. Any decision on our part to use levevatieglepend upon our assessment of the attractisgf available
investment opportunities in relation to the cositd perceived risks of such leverage.

Transaction Sourcing

As access to investment opportunities is highlgtrehship-driven, the senior investment team ahéminvestment
professionals of Stellus Capital Management spendiderable time developing and maintaining costadth key deal
sources, including private equity firms, investmeanks, and senior lenders. The senior investraant and other investment
professionals of Stellus Capital Management haem laetively investing in the middle-market for fhest decade and have
focused on extensive calling and marketing
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efforts via speaking engagements, sponsorshipgsindevents, and referrals to broaden their @tatiip network. Existing
relationships are constantly cultivated throughgextional work and other personal contacts.

In addition to financial sponsors, Stellus Caplianagement has developed a network of other deatss, including:
* management teams and entrepreneurs;

e portfolio companies of private equity firms;

< other investment firms that have similar strategp Stellus Capital Management and are seekkigvestors;

« placement agents and investment banks repregdintancial sponsors and issuers;

e corporate operating advisers and other finaragdalsers; and

e consultants, attorneys and other service prosittemiddle-market companies and financial sponsors

We believe that Stellus Capital Management’s bioetivork of deal origination contacts will afford with a continuous
source of investment opportunities.

These origination relationships provide accesonbt to potential investment opportunities but atlsanarket intelligence
on trends across the credit markets. Stellus Aagaaagement has completed financing transactiatis mwore than 90 equity
sponsors and completed multiple financing traneastivith 12 of those equity sponsors.

We believe that, over the past decade, the semiestment team and other investment professiofi&@setus Capital
Management have built a reputation as a thoughtfdldisciplined provider of capital to middle-markempanies and a
preferred financing source for private equity smrasand management teams. We believe these fapterStellus Capital
Management a competitive advantage in sourcingsinvent opportunities, which are put to use forlmemefit.

Investment Structuring

Stellus Capital Management believes that each tmar#t has unique characteristics that must be deresil, understood
and analyzed. Stellus Capital Management structovestment terms based on the business, the edite, the outlook for
the industry in which a potential portfolio compamperates, the competitive landscape, the produdsrvices which the
company sells and the management team and ownexfsthip company, among other factors. Stellus @apanagement
relies upon the analysis conducted and informagathered through the investment process to evalateppropriate structure
for our investments.

We invest primarily in the debt securities of miglgtharket companies. Our investments typically carhygh level of cash
pay interest and may incorporate other return-ecihngmrmechanisms such as commitment fees, origisaki discounts, early
redemption premiums, PIK interest and some forraqufity participation, including preferred stockymomon stock, warrants
and other forms of equity participation. We expéet a typical debt investment in which we invedt have a term at
origination of between five and seven years. Weeekm hold most of our investments to maturityegrayment, but we may
sell some of our investments earlier if a liquidityent occurs, such as a sale, recapitalizatiavossening of the credit quality
of the portfolio company.

Stellus Capital Management negotiates covenardsrinection with debt investments that provide mida for us but
allow appropriate flexibility for the portfolio copany. Such covenants may include affirmative arghtiee covenants, default
penalties, lien protection and change of controlgions. Stellus Capital Management requires cetmgnsive information
rights including access to management, financékstents and budgets and, in some cases, membenstiip board of
directors or board of directors observation riglidditionally, Stellus Capital Management generadlguires financial
covenants and terms that restrict an issuer’s Lilsverage and limitations on asset sales andalapipenditures.
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Secured Debt

Secured debt, including first lien, second lien andranche financing, has liens on the assetsebbrrower that serve as
collateral in support of the repayment of such fan

First Lien Debt . First lien debt is structured with first-prigriiens on the assets of the borrower that seneobateral in
support of the repayment of such loans. Firstlii@ms may provide for moderate loan amortizatiothenearly years of the
loan, with the majority of the amortization defefnentil loan maturity.

Second Lien Debt . Second lien debt is structured as junior, setloans, with second priority liens on an issuassets.
These loans typically provide for moderate loan dization in the initial years of the loan, withetimajority of the amortization
deferred until loan maturity.

Unitranche Debt . Unitranche debt typically is structured as firsh loans with certain risk characteristics ofarenine
debt. Unitranche debt typically provides for modedaan amortization in the initial years of thétevith the majority of the
principal payment deferred until loan maturity. &runitranche debt generally allows the borrowen#édke a large lump sum
payment of principal at the end of the loan tetmayé is a risk of loss if the borrower is unabl@ay the lump sum or refinance
the amount owed at maturity. In some cases, webwithe sole lender, or we together with our af@ls will be the sole lender,
of unitranche debt, which can provide us with miafeience interacting with a borrower in terms aémitoring and, if
necessary, remediation in the event of underpedaoo®.

Mezzanine Debt

Mezzanine debt, including senior unsecured andrsirieited loans, is not be secured by any collaterdlis effectively
subordinated to the borrower’s secured indebtedftedhe extent of the collateral securing suctebiddness), including
pursuant to one or more intercreditor agreemeratiswie enter into with holders of a borrower’s seuwiebt.

Senior Unsecured Loans. Senior unsecured loans are structured as Ibahsank senior in right of payment to any of the
borrower’s unsecured indebtedness that is contfigtsubordinated to such loans. These loans giyne@ravide for fixed
interest rates and amortize evenly over the terthefoan. Senior unsecured loans are generaby@stile than subordinated
loans due to their priority to creditors over sudioated loans.

Subordinated Loans . Subordinated loans are structured as unsecsmedydinated loans that provide for relatively high
fixed interest rates that provide us with signifitaurrent interest income. These loans typicadlyehinterest-only payments
(often representing a combination of cash pay dKdrRerest) in the early years, with amortizatioinprincipal deferred to
maturity. Subordinated loans generally allow thertwer to make a large lump sum payment of principashe end of the loan
term, and there is a risk of loss if the borrovgeumable to pay the lump sum or refinance the atmmuad at maturity.
Subordinated loans are generally more volatile #equred loans and may involve a greater riskss &f principal.
Subordinated loans often include a PIK feature ciigffectively operates as negative amortizatioloaf principal, thereby
increasing credit risk exposure over the life & kban.

Equity Securities

In connection with some of our debt investmentsnves also invest in preferred or common stock oeivee nominally
priced warrants or options to buy an equity inteireshe portfolio company. As a result, as a pwitf company appreciates in
value, we may achieve additional investment reftgm this equity interest. We may structure suchitygnvestments and
warrants to include provisions protecting our rggas a minority-interest holder, as well as a “putyright to sell such
securities back to the issuer, upon the occurrehspecified events. In many cases, we may aldoteegbtain registration
rights in connection with these equity interestliclt may include demand and “piggyback” registmatiights.

Investment Process

Through the resources of Stellus Capital Managementhave access to significant research resousgpsyienced
investment professionals, internal information eyst and a credit analysis framework and investpetess. Stellus Capital
Management has designed a highly involved andantie investment




TABLE OF CONTENTS

management process, which is the core of its milind the basis for what we believe is a stroragktrecord of investment
returns. The investment process seeks to selegtlode investments which it believes have the rattsictive risk/reward
characteristics. The process involves several $eveteview and is coordinated in an effort to idfgrrisks in potential
investments. Stellus Capital Management appliesxipertise to screen many of our investment oppdiés as described
below. This rigorous process combined with our brodgination capabilities have allowed the Stellapital Management
team to be prudent in selecting opportunities inctvtto make an investment.

All potential investment opportunities undergo aitial informal review by Stellus Capital Managertisrinvestment
professionals. Each potential investment oppornjuthiat an investment professional determines mensstment consideration
is presented and evaluated at a weekly meetindniochaStellus Capital Management's investment pisitemls discuss the
merits and risks of a potential investment oppadtyuas well as the due diligence process and thngrand structure. If
Stellus Capital Management'’s investment profesdsobelieve an investment opportunity merits furtteniew, the deal team
prepares and presents to the investment commadterifial review a prescreen memorandum that gahedescribes the
potential transaction and includes a descriptiothefrisks, due diligence process and proposedtateiand pricing for the
proposed investment opportunity.

Prior to making an investment, Stellus Capital Mggraent conducts rigorous diligence on each invastimgportunity. In
connection with its due diligence on a potentigeistment opportunity, Stellus Capital Managemeilizes its internal
diligence resources which include its internallyeleped credit analytical framework, subscriptibmshird party research
resources, discussions with industry experts, matenformation sharing systems, and the analyggakertise of its investment
professionals. Stellus Capital Management typicalyews the company’s historical financials; inayslrivers and outlook,
competitive threats, customer concentration, assatrage, projected financials, and credit metritanagement background
checks; and, if applicable, the track record amdifing capabilities of the private equity sponsor.

Upon review of the prescreen memorandum, if thestment committee determines to proceed with thieweof an
investment opportunity, the deal team continuediligence and deal structuring plans, and prepamedit approval
memorandum for review by the investment committé® credit approval memorandum, updates the preseremorandum
with more deal specific detail, including an updat¢he diligence process and any changes in thetste and pricing of the
proposed investment. Upon unanimous approval byntrestment committee of the proposed investmepresented in the
credit approval memorandum, the Chief Investmeffic&f reviews any amendments before finalizing eloding negotiations
with the prospective portfolio company.

Investment Committee

Each new investment opportunity is unanimously apgd by Stellus Capital Management's investmentrodgtee. Follow-
on investments in existing portfolio companies ieggithe investment committee’s approval beyontlabtained when the
initial investment in the company was made. In &iddj temporary investments, such as those in egsivalents, U.S.
government securities and other high quality dewé$tments that mature in one year or less, mayireegpproval by the
investment committee. The purpose of Stellus Chpitmagement’s investment committee is to evalaatapprove all of our
investments. The investment committee procesdeasidted to bring the diverse experience and perispgsatf the committee’s
members to the analysis and consideration of gaasiment. The investment committee consists ofskéefRobert T. Ladd,
Dean D’Angelo, Joshua T. Davis, Todd A. Overberged W. Todd Huskinson. The investment committeeeseto provide
investment consistency and adherence to our ceestiment philosophy and policies. The investmentroittee also
determines appropriate investment sizing and stg@egoing monitoring requirements.

In addition to reviewing investments, investmeninoaittee meetings serve as a forum to discuss orimits and outlooks.
Potential transactions and deal flow are reviewed cegular basis. Members of the investment teanercouraged to share
information and views on credits with the investinemmmittee early in their analysis. We believes fhiocess improves the
quality of the analysis and assists the deal te@mioers to work more efficiently.
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Each transaction is presented to the investmentttiee in a formal written report. All of our nemiestments require
unanimous approval by the investment committeehBaember of the investment committee performs daimole for other
accounts managed by Stellus Capital Managemenertain instances, our board of directors may détermine that its
approval is required prior to the making of an sineent.

Monitoring Investments

In most cases, we do not have board influence pegfolio companies. In some instances, Stellusit@allanagement’s
investment professionals may obtain board repraientor observation rights in conjunction with avestments. Stellus
Capital Management takes an active approach intoramg all investments, including reviews of fingalgerformance on at
least a quarterly basis and regular discussiorts wiénagement. The monitoring process begins witittsiring terms and
conditions, which require the timely delivery aratess to critical financial and business informata portfolio companies.

Specifically, Stellus Capital Management’s monitgrsystem consists of the following activities:

Regular Investment Committee Updates. Key portfolio company developments are discussazh week as part of the
standard investment committee agenda.

Written Reports. The deal teams provide written updates as apiptefor key events that impact portfolio company
performance or valuation. In addition, deal teammviole written updates following each portfolio coamy board meeting.

Quarterly Full Portfolio Review . Our Chief Investment Officer and Chief Compliar@fficer perform a quarterly
comprehensive review of every portfolio companyhviie deal teams. This process includes a writtefopnance and
valuation update, and credit-specific discussiorach of our portfolio companies. In addition, puanst to our valuation policy,
quarterly valuations are reviewed by our indepehttard party valuation firm.

As part of the monitoring process, Stellus Captahagement also tracks developments in the braaderetplace. Stellus
Capital Management'’s investment professionals laawealth of information on the competitive landsgapdustry trends,
relative valuation metrics, and analyses that Bssibie execution of our investment strategy.dditon, Stellus Capital
Management’s extensive communications with brokesdealers allows its investment professionatadaitor market and
industry trends that could affect portfolio invesimts. Stellus Capital Management may provide ongsirategic, financial and
operational guidance to some portfolio companiteeeidirectly or by recommending its investmentfessionals or other
experienced representatives to participate on dlaedbof directors. Stellus Capital Management nad@mstan extensive network
of strategic and operational advisers to call ufporindustry expertise or to supplement existinghagement teams.

Risk Ratings

In addition to various risk management and monigptbols, Stellus Capital Management uses an imagst rating system
to characterize and monitor the credit profile ardected level of returns on each investment inpoutfolio. This investment
rating system uses a five-level numeric scale.fdlewing is a description of the conditions assted with each investment
rating:

Investment Rating 1 is used for investments thatparforming above expectations, and whose rigksirefavorable
compared to the expected risk at the time of tigiral investment.

Investment Rating 2 is used for investments thatparforming within expectations and whose risksai@ neutral
compared to the expected risk at the time of tigiral investment. All new loans are initially rdt@.

Investment Rating 3 is used for investments thaparforming below expectations and that requioeer monitoring, but
where no loss of return or principal is expecteaattfdlio companies with a rating of 3 may be outofmpliance with financial
covenants.
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Investment Rating 4 is used for investments thafparforming substantially below expectations ahdse risks have
increased substantially since the original investtm&hese investments are often in work out. Inmesits with a rating of 4 are
those for which some loss of contractual returnrimiboss of principal is expected.

Investment Rating 5 is used for investments thafparforming substantially below expectations ahdse risks have
increased substantially since the original invesitme&hese investments are almost always in worklauestments with a rating
of 5 are those for which some loss of return amacjpal is expected.

In the event that Stellus Capital Management detersthat an investment is underperforming, onuirstances suggest
that the risk associated with a particular investhntas significantly increased, Stellus Capital Bgament will increase its
monitoring intensity and prepare regular updatestfe investment committee, summarizing currentajeg results and
material impending events and suggesting recomnteac#ons. While the investment rating system iifiestthe relative risk
for each investment, the rating alone does noatiche scope and/or frequency of any monitoriag ithperformed. The
frequency of Stellus Capital Management’'s monitiaf an investment is determined by a number dbfa¢including, but not
limited to, the trends in the financial performaméé¢he portfolio company, the investment structamel the type of collateral
securing the investment.

Determination of Net Asset Value and Portfolio Valtion Process

The net asset value per share of our outstandimgstof common stock is determined quarterly bydaig the value of
total assets minus liabilities by the total numbieshares outstanding.

In calculating the value of our total assets, itwent transactions will be recorded on the trade.dRealized gains or
losses will be computed using the specific idecdiion method. Investments for which market quotetiare readily available
are valued at such market quotations. Debt andyegecurities that are not publicly traded or whowseket price is not readily
available are valued at fair value as determinegbiod faith by our board of directors based onirthbet of our management and
audit committee. In addition, our board of direstogtains one or more independent valuation fiametiew at least once per
quarter, the valuation of each portfolio investmfentwhich a market quotation is not available. W have adopted
Accounting Standards Board Accounting Standardsfication 820,Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures (“ASC 820").
This accounting statement requires us to assunéhiaortfolio investment is assumed to be solthaprincipal market to
market participants, or in the absence of a pradaiparket, the most advantageous market, whichleay hypothetical market.
Market participants are defined as buyers andrsalethe principal or most advantageous marketat@independent,
knowledgeable, and willing and able to transachdoordance with ASC Topic 820, the market in whighcan exit portfolio
investments with the greatest volume and leveVigtis considered our principal market.

A readily available market value is not expecteeétist for most of the investments in our portfpbmd we value these
portfolio investments at fair value as determinedaod faith by our board of directors under odu&ton policy and process.
The types of factors that our board of directory tad&e into account in determining the fair vald®or investments generally
include, as appropriate, comparisons of finan@tbs portfolio company to peer companies thapaltgic, the nature and
realizable value of any collateral, the portfolanmgpany’s ability to make payments and its earnamgs$ discounted cash flow,
the markets in which the portfolio company doestess, and other relevant factors.

When an external event such as a purchase tramsagtiblic offering or subsequent equity sale ogcwe consider the
pricing indicated by the external event to corraberour valuation. Due to the inherent uncertaifitgetermining the fair value
of investments that do not have a readily availaideket value, the fair value of the investmenty atiffer materially from the
values that would have been used had a readilyadaimarket value existed for such investmentsaddition, changes in the
market environment and other events that may omeeir the life of the investments may cause thegairdosses ultimately
realized on these investments to be different filoenvaluations currently assigned.
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With respect to investments for which market quotet are not readily available, our board of divestundertakes a multi-
step valuation process each quarter, as descrided/b

e our quarterly valuation process begins with gaatifolio company or investment being initially ueld by the
investment professionals of Stellus Capital Managrgmesponsible for the portfolio investment;

e preliminary valuation conclusions are then docoteé and discussed with our senior management tidsSCapital
Management;

e the audit committee of our board of directormtheviews these preliminary valuations;
e atleast once quarterly, the valuation for eaafifplio investment is reviewed by an independeaitiation firm; and

« the board of directors then discusses the valoatand determines the fair value of each invedtimesur portfolio in
good faith, based on the input of Stellus Capitahslgement, the independent valuation firm and tld& aommittee.

In following these approaches, the types of factioas are taken into account in fair value pricing investments include,
as relevant, but are not limited to:

e available current market data, including relevaamd applicable market trading and transaction cvaiges;
e applicable market yields and multiples;

e security covenants;

« call protection provisions;

« information rights;

« the nature and realizable value of any collateral

» the portfolio company’s ability to make paymerits earnings and discounted cash flows and th&etaim which it
does business;

» comparisons of financial ratios of peer compatties are public;
e comparable merger and acquisition transactioms; a
« the principal market and enterprise values.

Determination of fair values involves subjectivegments and estimates not susceptible to subgianttay auditing
procedures. Under current auditing standards, dbesrto our financial statements refer to the uag®y with respect to the
possible effect of such valuations, and any chamgech valuations, on our financial statements.

Realization of Investments

The potential exit scenarios of a portfolio compalgy an important role in evaluating investmertisiens. As such,
Stellus Capital Management formulates specific stxdtegies at the time of investment. Our del#nddtion provides for
increased potential exit opportunities, includiaythe sale of investments in the private markblsthe refinancing of
investments held, often due to maturity or recéigaions, and (c) other liquidity events includitite sale or merger of the
portfolio company. Since we seek to maintain a deigntation in our investments, we expect to nee@iterest income over
the course of the investment period, resulting sigaificant return on invested capital well in adee of final exit.

Managerial Assistance

As a business development company, we offer, arat provide upon request, managerial assistancertpartfolio
companies. This assistance could involve monitotfiregoperations of our portfolio companies, pgpating in board and
management meetings, consulting with and advisffigeos of portfolio companies and providing otleeganizational and
financial guidance. Stellus Capital Managementroaffiliate of
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Stellus Capital Management provides such managsgstance on our behalf to portfolio companias tequest this
assistance. We may receive fees for these serimbwill reimburse Stellus Capital Management oafiitiate of Stellus
Capital Management for its allocated costs in pimg such assistance, subject to the review byboard of directors,
including our independent directors.

Competition

Our primary competitors in providing financing taddle-market companies include public and privateds, other business
development companies, commercial and investmarksh@ommercial financing companies and, to therexthey provide an
alternative form of financing, private equity anedge funds. Many of our competitors are substdnteiger and have
considerably greater financial, technical and mimkeresources than we do. For example, we beBewee competitors may
have access to funding sources that are not alatialvs. In addition, some of our competitors rhaye higher risk tolerances
or different risk assessments, which could alloanitto consider a wider variety of investments astdldish more relationships
than us. Furthermore, many of our competitors atesnbject to the regulatory restrictions that1Bd0 Act imposes on us as a
business development company or to the distribwtimoh other requirements we must satisfy to mairgaimgualification as a
RIC.

We use the expertise of the investment professanfabtellus Capital Management to which we hawvess to assess
investment risks and determine appropriate prifimgur investments in portfolio companies. In dibafi, we believe that the
relationships of the investment professionals efl& Capital Management enable us to learn alamat,compete effectively
for, financing opportunities with attractive midetearket companies in the industries in which weegty

Employees

We do not have any direct employees, and our daayoinvestment operations are managed by Stethpétal
Management. We have a chief executive officer,iaféhvestment officer, a chief financial officenéa chief compliance
officer. To the extent necessary, our board ofatimes may hire additional personnel going forw&dr officers are employees
of Stellus Capital Management and our allocableigorof the cost of our chief financial officer antief compliance officer
and their respective staffs is paid by us purst@otr administration agreement with Stellus Capitanagement.

Management Agreements

Stellus Capital Management serves as our investatiser and is registered as an investment aduiser the Investment
Advisers Act of 1940, or the “Advisers Act.” In atldn, Stellus Capital Management serves as ouriidirator.

Investment Advisory Agreement

Subject to the overall supervision of our boardioéctors and in accordance with the 1940 Act,|@&eCapital Management
manages our day-to-day operations and providesimeant advisory services to us. Under the terntseofnvestment advisory
agreement, Stellus Capital Management:

« determines the composition of our portfolio, ttegure and timing of the changes to our portfolid the manner of
implementing such changes;

« identifies, evaluates and negotiates the streatfithe investments we make;
* executes, closes, services and monitors the imezds we make;

« determines the securities and other assets tauwchase, retain or sell;

« performs due diligence on prospective portfobonpanies; and

e provides us with such other investment advismrgearch and related services as we may, fromtartime, reasonably
require for the investment of our funds.

Pursuant to the investment advisory agreement,ave hgreed to pay Stellus Capital Management foféevestment
advisory and management services consisting ottwaponents — a base management fee and an incégivEhe cost of
both the base management fee and the incentivarée@orne by our stockholders.
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Management Fee

The base management fee is calculated at an arateadf 1.75% of our gross assets, including agaethased with
borrowed funds or other forms of leverage and edioly cash and cash equivalents. For services redderder the investment
advisory agreement, the base management fee iblpayaarterly in arrears. For the first quarteoof operations, the base
management fee was calculated based on the ivatiaé of our gross assets. Beginning with our seéaprarter of operations,
the base management fee will be calculated bas#ukeoaverage value of our gross assets, excludisiy and cash equivalents,
at the end of the two most recently completed cienquarters. Base management fees for any pambiath or quarter are
appropriately pro-rated.

Incentive Fee

We pay Stellus Capital Management an incentivelfezentive fees are calculated as below and paypldeterly in arrears.
The incentive fee, which provides Stellus Capita@mdgement with a share of the income that it géeefar us, has two
components, ordinary income and capital gainsutatied as follows:

The ordinary income component is calculated anébpl@yquarterly in arrears based on our pre-inceriée net investment
income for the immediately preceding calendar guasubject to a total return requirement, and iBsoR@.0% of the amount, if
any, by which our pre-incentive fee net investrirobme, expressed as a rate of return on the wdloar net assets
attributable to our common stock, for the immediapgeceding calendar quarter, exceeds a 2.0% (wiki8.0% annualized)
hurdle rate and a “catch-up” provision measuredfake end of each calendar quarter.

Under this provision, in any calendar quarter,|8¢eCapital Management receives no incentive féi our pre-incentive
fee net investment income equals the hurdle rage086, but then receives, as a “catch-up,” 100%unfpre-incentive fee net
investment income with respect to that portionwdtspre-incentive fee net investment income, if,dhgt exceeds the hurdle
rate but is less than 2.5%. The effect of the ‘fcatp” provision is that, subject to the total retyrovision discussed below, if
pre-incentive fee net investment income exceed% 25any calendar quarter, Stellus Capital Managemexeives 20.0% of
our pre-incentive fee net investment income ashifile rate did not apply.

For this purpose, pre-incentive fee net investnrdme means interest income, dividend income agcbéher income
(including any other fees, such as commitment,iigiipn, structuring, diligence, managerial assiséaand consulting fees or
other fees that we receive from portfolio companéxrued during the calendar quarter, minus oeraing expenses for the
quarter (including the base management fee, expgraable under the administration agreement (exitbed below), and any
interest expense and any distributions paid onigssued and outstanding preferred stock, but exctuttie incentive fee).
Stellus Capital Management has agreed to perman&atVe any interest accrued on the portion ofitieentive fee attributable
to deferred interest (such as PIK interest or OID).

The foregoing incentive fee is subject to a totaim requirement, which provides that no incentéeesin respect of the
Company’s pre-incentive fee net investment incorileb& payable except to the extent 20.0% of thealative net increase in
net assets resulting from operations over the therent and 11 preceding quarters exceeds the atinaiincentive fees
accrued and/or paid for the 11 preceding quarkersther words, any ordinary income incentive fe&t s payable in a calendar
quarter will be limited to the lesser of (i) 20.@the amount by which our pre-incentive fee ngestment income for such
calendar quarter exceeds the 2.0% hurdle, sulgehet‘catch-up” provision, and (ii) (x) 20.0% @it cumulative net increase
in net assets resulting from operations for the tharent and 11 preceding calendar quartensis (y) the cumulative incentive
fees accrued and/or paid for the 11 preceding dalequarters. For the foregoing purpose, the “catiug net increase in net
assets resulting from operations” is the amounpitive, of the sum of pre-incentive fee net stweent income, realized gains
and losses and unrealized appreciation and deficecz the Company for the then current and 1T@déng calendar quarters.

There is no accumulation of amounts on the huatie from quarter to quarter, and accordingly there clawback of
amounts previously paid if subsequent quarterbel@wv the quarterly hurdle, and there is no defayayment if prior quarters
were below the quarterly hurdle.
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Pre-incentive fee net investment income does rabade any realized capital gains, realized capisdes or unrealized
capital appreciation or depreciation. Because @fsthucture of the incentive fee, it is possiblgt the may pay an incentive fee
in a quarter where we incur a loss, subject taated return requirement. For example, if we reegive-incentive fee net
investment income in excess of the quarterly mimmwrdle rate, we will pay the applicable incentige even if we have
incurred a loss in that quarter due to realizedwréalized capital losses. Our net investmentrirecased to calculate this
component of the incentive fee is also includethemamount of our gross assets used to calculate. 5% base management
fee. These calculations are appropriately prorfaedny period of less than three months and aeljLfsr any share issuances
or repurchases during the current quarter.

The following is a graphical representation of tiadculation of the income-related portion of thedntive fee:

Quarterly Incentive Fee Based on Net Investment Irame

Pre-incentive Fee Net Investment Income
(expressed as a percentage of the value of net assets)

0 2.0% 2.5%
I I |
>
| I |
- 0% >4 1000 ——»-4——— 2000 ————P

Percentage of Pre-incentive Fee Net Investment Inoe
Allocated to Income-Related Portion of Incentive Fe

The capital gains component of the incentive fedeiermined and payable in arrears as of the eeddf calendar year (or
upon termination of the investment advisory agre@nes of the termination date), commencing on béomr 31, 2012, and is
equal to 20.0% of our cumulative aggregate realcaggital gains from inception through the end @t ttalendar year,
computed net of our aggregate cumulative realizgital losses and our aggregate cumulative unezhiapital depreciation
through the end of such year, less the aggregabeiinof any previously paid capital gains incenfies, provided that the
incentive fee determined as of December 31, 2012wicalculated for a period of shorter than tveetalendar months to take
into account any realized capital gains computedhall realized capital losses and unrealizedtahdepreciation for the
period ending December 31, 2012. If such amounégative, then no capital gains incentive fee allpayable for such year.
Additionally, if the investment advisory agreemanterminated as of a date that is not a calendar gnd, the termination date
will be treated as though it were a calendar yedrfer purposes of calculating and paying the ehgiains incentive fee.

Stellus Capital Management has agreed to waivademntive fee for the years ending December 312201 December 31,
2013 to the extent required to support an annudlifrédend yield of 9.0% (to be paid on a quartdrdgis) based on the price
per share of our common stock in connection withioitial public offering (“IPQO”).

Examples of Quarterly Incentive Fee Calculation
Example 1: Income Related Portion of Incentive Febefore Total Return Requirement Calculation:

Alternative 1
Assumptions

Investment income (including interest, dividenagd, etc.) = 1.25%
Hurdle ratel) = 2.0%
Management fe®) = 0.4375%
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Other expenses (legal, accounting, custodian,feaagent, etc.) = 0.2%

Pre-incentive fee net investment income

(investment income — (management fee + other exgsgns 0.6125%

Pre-incentive fee net investment income does nodeck hurdle rate, therefore there is no incomeeglacentive fee.

Alternative 2
Assumptions

Investment income (including interest, dividengd, etc.) = 2.9%

Hurdle rate) = 2.0%

Management fe®) = 0.4375%

Other expenses (legal, accounting, custodian,feaagent, etc.) = 0.2%
Pre-incentive fee net investment income

(investment income — (management fee + other exgs@ns 2.2625%

Incentive fee = 100% x Pre-incentive fee net investt income (subject to “catch-ug®
=100% x (2.2625% — 2.0%)

=0.2625%

Pre-incentive fee net investment income exceedbuhdle rate, but does not fully satisfy the “catgdi provision, therefore the
income related portion of the incentive fee is @%%.

Alternative 3
Assumptions

Investment income (including interest, dividengzd, etc.) = 3.5%

Hurdle rate) = 2.0%

Management fe®) = 0.4375%

Other expenses (legal, accounting, custodian,feaagent, etc.) = 0.2%
Pre-incentive fee net investment income

(investment income — (management fee + other exgs@ns 2.8625%

Incentive fee = 100% x Pre-incentive fee net investt income (subject to “catch-ug®
Incentive fee = 100% x “catch-up” + (20.0% x (Pnedntive Fee Net Investment
Income — 2.5%))

“Catch-up” = 2.5% — 2.0%

=0.5%

Incentive fee = (100% x 0.5%) + (20.0% x (2.8625%:5%))

=0.5% + (20.0% x 0.3625%)

=0.5% + 0.0725%

=0.5725%

Pre-incentive fee net investment income exceedhuhdle rate, and fully satisfies the “catch-updyision, therefore the
income related portion of the incentive fee is @5%.

(1) Represents 8.0% annualized hurdle rate.
(2) Represents 1.75% annualized base management fee

(3) The “catch-up” provision is intended to provi@itellus Capital Management with an incentive fe2®0% on all pre-
incentive fee net investment income as if a hurale did not apply when our net investment incoweeeds 2.5% in any
fiscal quarter.

Example 2: Income Portion of Incentive Fee with Tal Return Requirement Calculation:
Alternative 1:
Assumptions

Investment income (including interest, divideng®d, etc.) = 3.5%
Hurdle rate) = 2.0%



Management fe€) = 0.4375%
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Other expenses (legal, accounting, custodian,feaagent, etc.$) = 0.2%

Pre-incentive fee net investment income

(investment income — (management fee + other exgsgrs2.8625%

Cumulative incentive compensation accrued and/mt foa preceding 11 calendar quarters = $9,000,000

20.0% of cumulative net increase in net assetdtiegdrom operations over current and precedingdlendar quarters =
$8,000,000

Although our pre-incentive fee net investment inecemceeds the hurdle rate of 2.0% (as shown inrdteve 3 of
Example 1 above), no incentive fee is payable bee20.0% of the cumulative net increase in netssssulting from
operations over the then current and 11 preceditendar quarters did not exceed the cumulativentgcand capital gains
incentive fees accrued and/or paid for the pregetiincalendar quarters.

Alternative 2:
Assumptions

Investment income (including interest, dividenagd, etc.) = 3.5%

Hurdle ratd!) = 2.0%

Management fe®) = 0.4375%

Other expenses (legal, accounting, custodian,feaagent, etc.) = 0.2%

Pre-incentive fee net investment income

(investment income — (management fee + other exgsgrs2.8625%

Cumulative incentive compensation accrued and/mt foa preceding 11 calendar quarters = $9,000,000

20.0% of cumulative net increase in net assetdtiegdrom operations over current and precedingdlendar quarters =
$10,000,000

Because our pre-incentive fee net investment incexaeeds the hurdle rate of 2.0% and because 26%.@8é cumulative
net increase in net assets resulting from operaterr the then current and 11 preceding calendaters exceeds the
cumulative income and capital gains incentive e@sued and/or paid for the preceding 11 calendartgrs, an incentive fee
would be payable, as shown in Alternative 3 of Egkani above.

(1) Represents 8.0% annualized hurdle rate.
(2) Represents 1.75% annualized base management fee

(3) The “catch-up” provision is intended to provifieellus Capital Management with an incentive f82000% on all pre-
incentive fee net investment income as if a huraie did not apply when our net investment incomeeeds 2.5% in any
fiscal quarter.

Example 3: Capital Gains Portion of Incentive Fee(}:

Alternative 1:
Assumptions

Year 1: $2.0 million investment made in Company‘iiestment A”), and $3.0 million investment maadeGompany B
(“Investment B”)

Year 2: Investment A sold for $5.0 million and faiarket value (“FMV”) of Investment B determinedide $3.5 million
Year 3: FMV of Investment B determined to be $2iDiom

Year 4: Investment B sold for $3.25 million

The capital gains portion of the incentive fee vabloé:

Year 1: None

Year 2: Capital gains incentive fee of $0.6 millien($3.0 million realized capital gains on saldrofestment A multiplied by
20.0%)

Year 3: None — $0.4 million (20.0% multiplied by3® million cumulative capital gains less $1.0 il cumulative capital
depreciation)) less $0.6 million (previous capgains fee paid in Year 2)

Year 4: Capital gains incentive fee of $50,000 —6$0million ($3.25 million cumulative realized cégdigains multiplied by
20.0%) less $0.6 million (capital gains incentiee taken in Year 2)
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Alternative 2
Assumptions

Year 1: $2.0 million investment made in Company‘laestment A”), $5.25 million investment made in@pany B
(“Investment B") and $4.5 million investment madeGompany C (“Investment C")

Year 2: Investment A sold for $4.5 million, FMV bfvestment B determined to be $4.75 million and Ff\nvestment C
determined to be $4.5 million

Year 3: FMV of Investment B determined to be $5iliom and Investment C sold for $5.5 million

Year 4: FMV of Investment B determined to be $6iliom

Year 5: Investment B sold for $4.0 million

The capital gains incentive fee, if any, would be:
Year 1: None
Year 2: $0.4 million capital gains incentive fee26.0% multiplied by $2.0 million ($2.5 million réaéd capital gains on
Investment A less $0.5 million unrealized capitabceciation on Investment B)
Year 3: $0.25 million capital gains incentive fée— $0.65 million (20.0% multiplied by $3.25 milligi$3.5 million
cumulative realized capital gains less $0.25 millimrealized capital depreciation)) less $0.4 oillcapital gains incentive fee
received in Year 2
Year 4: $0.05 million capital gains incentive fee$6:7 million ($3.50 million cumulative realizedpital gains multiplied by
20.0%) less $0.65 million cumulative capital gamentive fee paid in Year 2 and Year 3
Year 5: None — $0.45 million (20.0% multiplied b2.85 million (cumulative realized capital gainsk®.5 million less

realized capital losses of $1.25 million)) less/@illion cumulative capital gains incentive feédom Year 2, Year 3 and Year
42

* The hypothetical amounts of returns shown aretam a percentage of our total net assets ancthasso leverage. There is
no guarantee that positive returns will be realized actual returns may vary from those shownimédkample.

(1) As illustrated in Year 3 of Alternative 1 aboveaiportfolio company were to be wound up on a déter than its fiscal ye
end of any year, it may have paid aggregate cagdiials incentive fees that are more than the anafusuch fees that wou
be payable if such portfolio company had been waymdn its fiscal year end of such year.

(2) As noted above, it is possible that the cunivgaiggregate capital gains fee received by St€lamtal Management ($0.70
million) is effectively greater than $0.45 millig20.0% of cumulative aggregate realized capitatg#ss net realized
capital losses or net unrealized depreciation &ailion)).

Payment of Our Expenses

All investment professionals of Stellus Capital Mgament, when and to the extent engaged in prayidirestment
advisory and management services to us, and thpermsation and routine overhead expenses of persaitomable to these
services to us, are provided and paid for by Stellapital Management and not by us. We bear adratbit-of-pocket costs and
expenses of our operations and transactions, imgudithout limitation, those relating to:

e organization and offering;
e calculating our net asset value (including thst@nd expenses of any independent valuation firm);

- fees and expenses payable to third parties,dimduagents, consultants or other advisors, in todng financial and
legal affairs for us and in monitoring our investiteeand performing due diligence on our prospegiivfolio
companies or otherwise relating to, or associatittl wvaluating and making investments;

e interest payable on debt, if any, incurred t@fice our investments and expenses related to wssfatportfolio
acquisition efforts;

« offerings of our common stock and other secusijtie

« base management and incentive fees;
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< administration fees and expenses, if any, payatder the administration agreement (includingallacable portion of
Stellus Capital Management’s overhead in perfornitigbligations under the administration agreemiectuding rent
and the allocable portion of the cost of our cleigipliance officer, chief financial officer and theespective staffs);

< transfer agent, dividend agent and custodial &&ekexpenses;

e U.S. federal and state registration fees;

< all costs of registration and listing our shasasany securities exchange;

e U.S. federal, state and local taxes;

e independent directors’ fees and expenses;

e costs of preparing and filing reports or othecwents required by the SEC or other regulators;
e costs of any reports, proxy statements or otbéces to stockholders, including printing costs;

e costs and fees associated with any fidelity baliv@ctors and officers/errors and omissions ligbihsurance, and any
other insurance premiums;

« direct costs and expenses of administration, inatugdrinting, mailing, long distance telephone, yiog, secretarial an
other staff, independent auditors and outside legsis;

e proxy voting expenses; and
» all other expenses incurred by us or Stellus @hManagement in connection with administering lousiness.

Duration and Termination

Unless terminated earlier as described below,thestment advisory agreement will continue in dffeca period of two
years from its effective date. It will remain irfeft from year to year thereafter if approved atigiusy our board of directors or
by the affirmative vote of the holders of a majpof our outstanding voting securities, and, imeitcase, if also approved by a
majority of our directors who are not “interestasgpns.” The investment advisory agreement autcalibtiterminates in the
event of its assignment, as defined in the 1940 \cStellus Capital Management and may be terméhhy either party
without penalty upon 60 days’ written notice to tither. The holders of a majority of our outstagdioting securities may also
terminate the investment advisory agreement witpeuglty upon 60 days’ written notice.

Indemnification

The investment advisory agreement provides thagrwillful misfeasance, bad faith or gross neglice in the
performance of its duties or by reason of the eskdisregard of its duties and obligations unueirtvestment advisory
agreement, Stellus Capital Management and itsesffjananagers, partners, agents, employees, domgneérsons and
members, and any other person or entity affiliatét it, are entitled to indemnification from usrfany damages, liabilities,
costs and expenses (including reasonable attorfisgs’'and amounts reasonably paid in settlemesth@ifrom the rendering
of Stellus Capital Management'’s services undeirthestment advisory agreement or otherwise asroigstment adviser.

Board Approval of the Investment Advisory Agreement

Our board of directors approved the investmentsayiagreement at its first meeting, held on Sep&ra4, 2012. In its
consideration of the investment advisory agreentbatboard of directors focused on informationaitl ieceived relating to,
among other things: (a) the nature, quality aneémf the advisory and other services to be pexVit us by our investment
adviser; (b) comparative data with respect to amyigees or similar expenses paid by other busidesslopment companies
with similar investment objectives; (c) our projtttoperating expenses and expense ratio compabesittess development
companies with similar investment objectives; (ay axisting and potential sources of indirect ineaim our investment
adviser from its relationships with us and the pability of those relationships; (e) information
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about the services to be performed and the persperferming such services under the investmentsatdy agreement; (f) the
organizational capability and financial conditidhooir investment adviser; and (g) various othetdisc

Based on the information reviewed and the discuassithe board of directors, including a majoritytted non-interested
directors, concluded that the investment managefeeniates and terms are reasonable in relatitimeteervices to be provided
and approved the investment advisory agreemengiag in the best interests of our stockholders.

Administration Agreement

The administration agreement provides that St&llagital Management will furnish us with office fhitiés and equipment
and will provide us with clerical, bookkeeping, oedkeeping and other administrative services &t $acilities. Under the
administration agreement, Stellus Capital Managéiperiorms, or oversees the performance of, ouwrired administrative
services, which include being responsible for tharfcial and other records that we are requireddamtain and preparing
reports to our stockholders and reports and otlaenals filed with the SEC. In addition, Stelluapgital Management assists us
in determining and publishing our net asset vatwersees the preparation and filing of our taxrretand the printing and
dissemination of reports and other materials tosbockholders, and generally oversees the paynienireexpenses and the
performance of administrative and professionalises/rendered to us by others. Under the admitimragreement, Stellus
Capital Management also provides managerial assistan our behalf to those portfolio companies tiaate accepted our offer
to provide such assistance.

Payments under the administration agreement ar@ éman amount based upon our allocable portiohjést to the review
of our board of directors) of Stellus Capital Maeament’'s overhead in performing its obligations urtie administration
agreement, including rent, the fees and expensesiased with performing compliance functions and a@locable portion of
the cost of our chief financial officer and chiefnepliance officer and their respective staffs. didition, if requested to provide
significant managerial assistance to our portfobmpanies, Stellus Capital Management will be paicdditional amount
based on the services provided, which shall noéexthe amount we receive from such portfolio camgsafor providing this
assistance. The administration agreement has tad term of two years and may be renewed withapproval of our board of
directors. The administration agreement may beiteted by either party without penalty upon 60 dayriten notice to the
other party. To the extent that Stellus Capital Bgament outsources any of its functions, we wil {he fees associated with
such functions on a direct basis without any in@etal profit to Stellus Capital Management. Stod#tbobapproval is not
required to amend the administration agreement.

Indemnification

The administration agreement provides that, abs@minal conduct, willful misfeasance, bad faithgross negligence in
the performance of its duties or by reason of dukless disregard of its duties and obligationsl& Capital Management, its
affiliates and their respective directors, officermnagers, partners, agents, employees, cong@énsons and members, and
any other person or entity affiliated with it, anetitled to indemnification from us for any damadebilities, costs and
expenses (including reasonable attorneys’ feeaarmalints reasonably paid in settlement) arising fiteerrendering of Stellus
Capital Management'’s services under the administraigreement or otherwise as our administrator.

License Agreement

We have entered into a license agreement withuStéhpital Management under which Stellus Capitahdfement has
agreed to grant us a non-exclusive, royalty-freerise to use the name “Stellus Capital.” Underabieement, we have a right
to use the “Stellus Capital” name for so long adl& Capital Management or one of its affiliatesiains our investment
adviser. Other than with respect to this limitexttise, we have no legal right to the “Stellus Gédipitame. This license
agreement will remain in effect for so long asitheestment advisory agreement with Stellus Capitahagement is in effect.
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Exchange Act Reports

We maintain a website awww.stelluscapital.com. The information on our website is not incorporabgdeference in this
annual report on Form 10-K.

We make available on or through our website cergiorts and amendments to those reports thatevevith or furnish to
the SEC in accordance with the Securities Exch&ug®f 1934, or the “Exchange Act.” These include annual reports on
Form 10-K, our quarterly reports on Form 10-Q andaurrent reports on Form 8-K. We make this infation available on our
website free of charge as soon as reasonably pabtdi after we electronically file the informatiaith, or furnish it to, the
SEC.

Regulation as a Business Development Company

We are a business development company under ttHeA&4The 1940 Act contains prohibitions and riestins relating to
transactions between business development compamietheir affiliates (including any investment esvs), principal
underwriters and affiliates of those affiliatesumderwriters and requires that a majority of thedtors be persons other than
“interested persons,” as that term is defined @1B40 Act. In addition, the 1940 Act provides tlhatmay not change the
nature of our business so as to cease to bevathidraw our election as, a business developmemipenmy unless approved by
a majority of our outstanding voting securities.

Qualifying Assets

Under the 1940 Act, a business development compeyynot acquire any asset other than assets ¢fpkdisted in
section 55(a) of the 1940 Act, which are refereedd “qualifying assets,” unless, at the time ttguésition is made, qualifying
assets represent at least 70% of the companylisasgtats. The principal categories of qualifyingeds relevant to our business
are the following:

(1) Securities purchased in transactions not ifnaghany public offering from the issuer of suchugétes, which issuer
(subject to certain limited exceptions) is an &ligiportfolio company, or from any person who ishas been during the
preceding 13 months, an affiliated person of agitdi portfolio company, or from any other perssubject to such ruls
as may be prescribed by the SEC. Under the 194@rictthe rules thereunder, “eligible portfolio canfes”include (1,
private domestic operating companies, (2) publiméstic operating companies whose securities arbsted on a
national securities exchange (e.g., the New YodclSExchange), and (3) public domestic operatingmanies having
market capitalization of less than $250 millionbRudomestic operating companies whose secuidtiegjuoted on the
over-the-counter bulletin board or through Pink&he LC are not listed on a national securitieshaxge and therefore
are eligible portfolio companies.

(2) Securities of any eligible portfolio companyiaiwe control.

(3) Securities purchased in a private transactiomfa U.S. issuer that is not an investment comparisom an affiliated
person of the issuer, or in transactions incidersiich a private transaction, if the issuer isankouptcy and subject to
reorganization or if the issuer, immediately ptiothe purchase of its securities, was unable tet & obligations as
they came due without material assistance other¢baventional lending or financing arrangements.

(4) Securities of an eligible portfolio company glsed from any person in a private transactitimeife is no ready market
for such securities and we already own 60% of titstanding equity of the eligible portfolio company

(5) Securities received in exchange for or distaéblon or with respect to securities described abowpursuant to the
exercise of warrants or rights relating to suctusées.

(6) Cash, cash equivalents, U.S. government sexsugt high-quality debt securities that maturerile year or less from the
date of investment.

The regulations defining qualifying assets may g¢eaover time. We may adjust our investment focusezsled to comply
with and/or take advantage of any regulatory, lagise, administrative or judicial actions in tlasea.
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Managerial Assistance to Portfolio Companies

In order to count portfolio securities as qualifyiassets for the purpose of the 70% test, a bisstwselopment company
must either control the issuer of the securitiesiast offer to make available to the issuer ofgbeurities significant
managerial assistance. However, when the busim&tabment company purchases securities in congmetith one or more
other persons acting together, one of the othesoperin the group may make available such mandgessetance. Making
available managerial assistance means any arramgevhereby the business development company, thriasglirectors,
officers, employees or agents, offers to provieel, & accepted, does so provide, significant gad@eand counsel concerning
the management, operations or business objecthepdalicies of a portfolio company. Stellus Capltnagement will
provide such managerial assistance on our behabirtfolio companies that request this assistance.

Temporary Investments

Pending investment in other types of qualifyingetssas described above, our investments may tarfisiash, cash
equivalents, U.S. government securities, repurchgssements and high-quality debt investmentsrttzdtire in one year or less
from the date of investment, which we refer to)exdively, as temporary investments, so that 70%usfassets are qualifying
assets or temporary investments. Typically, we ivitest in U.S. Treasury bills or in repurchasesagnents, so long as the
agreements are fully collateralized by cash or sges issued by the U.S. government or its agenderepurchase agreement
involves the purchase by an investor, such asfusspecified security and the simultaneous agreeimethe seller to
repurchase it at an agreed-upon future date aaghate that is greater than the purchase pricanbgmount that reflects an
agreed-upon interest rate. There is no percentajgation on the proportion of our assets that tmaynvested in such
repurchase agreements. However, if more than 258ardfotal assets constitute repurchase agreerfrenisa single
counterparty, we would not meet the diversificatiests in order to qualify as a RIC for U.S. fedi@reome tax purposes.
Accordingly, we do not intend to enter into repuarsl agreements with a single counterparty in exafgbés limit. Stellus
Capital Management will monitor the creditworthiaes the counterparties with which we enter infpurehase agreement
transactions.

Senior Securities

We are permitted, under specified conditions, saésmultiple classes of indebtedness and one afatsck senior to our
common stock if our asset coverage, as definelderi940 Act, is at least equal to 200% immediaaéiigr each such issuance.
In addition, while any senior securities remainstariding, we may be prohibited from making anyritigtion to our
stockholders or repurchasing our securities oreshanless we meet the applicable asset coverage aathe time of the
distribution or repurchase. We may also borrow am®up to 5% of the value of our total assetsdamgorary or emergency
purposes without regard to asset coverage.

Codes of Ethics

We and Stellus Capital Management have each adaptede of ethics pursuant to Rule 17j-1 unded 80 Act that
establishes procedures for personal investmentsesstidcts certain personal securities transactiBessonnel subject to each
such code may invest in securities for their peabatvestment accounts, including securities thay tme purchased or held by
us, so long as such investments are made in acu@deith such code’s requirements.

Proxy Voting Policies and Procedures

We have delegated our proxy voting responsibibtptellus Capital Management. The proxy votinggies and procedures
of Stellus Capital Management are set out belove. diidelines will be reviewed periodically by StsliCapital Management
and our directors who are not “interested persamsgl, accordingly, are subject to change.

Introduction. As an investment adviser registered under thaskds Act, Stellus Capital Management has a falycduty
to act solely in our best interests. As part o thiity, Stellus Capital Management recognizesitimatist vote our securities in a
timely manner free of conflicts of interest andumr best interests.
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Stellus Capital Management'’s policies and proceslfoevoting proxies for its investment advisorienlts are intended to
comply with Section 206 of, and Rule 206(4)-6 undee Advisers Act.

Proxy Palicies. Stellus Capital Management votes proxies redatinour portfolio securities in what it perceiteshe the
best interest of our stockholders. Stellus Capfahagement reviews on a case-by-case basis egobsatlsubmitted to a
stockholder vote to determine its effect on thefpbo securities we hold. In most cases Stellupi@hManagement will vote
in favor of proposals that Stellus Capital Managenielieves are likely to increase the value ofgibgfolio securities we hold.
Although Stellus Capital Management will generalbte against proposals that may have a negatieetedh our portfolio
securities, Stellus Capital Management may votetich a proposal if there exist compelling longrteeasons to do so.

Stellus Capital Management has established a protigg committee and adopted proxy voting guidedined related
procedures. The proxy voting committee establighesy voting guidelines and procedures, overseegternal proxy voting
process, and reviews proxy voting issues. To enbateStellus Capital Management'’s vote is notfasluct of a conflict of
interest, Stellus Capital Management requires(thiadnyone involved in the decision-making proadisslose to our Chief
Compliance Officer any potential conflict that hesbe is aware of and any contact that he or skdad with any interested
party regarding a proxy vote; and (2) employeeslived in the decision-making process or vote adsiriafion are prohibited
from revealing how Stellus Capital Management idteto vote on a proposal in order to reduce amyrgited influence from
interested parties. Where conflicts of interest layresent, Stellus Capital Management will dselsuch conflicts to us,
including our independent directors and may reqgestance from us on how to vote such proxies.

Proxy Voting Records. You may obtain information about how Stellus Galpilanagement voted proxies by making a
written request for proxy voting information toe8tis Capital Investment Corporation, Attentiorvestor Relations, 10000
Memorial Drive, Suite 500, Houston, TX 77024, ordafling us collect at (713) 292-5400. Note tha¢aMarch 31, 2013, our
new address will be 4400 Post Oak Parkway Suit® 280uston, TX, 77027. The SEC also maintains asiteltwww.sec.gov
that contains this information.

Privacy Principles

We are committed to maintaining the privacy of stackholders and to safeguarding their nonpublisgeal information.
The following information is provided to help yoaderstand what personal information we collect, aprotect that
information and why, in certain cases, we may sirdoemation with select other parties.

Generally, we do not receive any nonpublic persarfalmation relating to our stockholders, althowgtain nonpublic
personal information of our stockholders may becawailable to us. We do not disclose any nonpyi#isonal information
about our stockholders or former stockholders tmar, except as permitted by law or as is necessamder to service
stockholder accounts (for example, to a transfenagr third-party administrator).

We restrict access to nonpublic personal infornmagibout our stockholders to employees of Stellyst@aManagement
and its affiliates with a legitimate business nfdhe information. We intend to maintain physjaectronic and procedural
safeguards designed to protect the nonpublic paetsaformation of our stockholders.

Other

We are required to provide and maintain a bonceddiy a reputable fidelity insurance company tdquious against
larceny and embezzlement. Furthermore, as a bssilee®lopment company, we are prohibited from ptotg any director or
officer against any liability to us or our stocktlets arising from willful misfeasance, bad faithogs negligence or reckless
disregard of the duties involved in the conducswth person’s office.

We and Stellus Capital Management are each reqtaradopt and implement written policies and praced reasonably
designed to prevent violation of relevant fedeeglsities laws, review these policies and proceslarmually for their
adequacy and the effectiveness of their implemiemaand designate a chief compliance officer todsponsible for
administering the policies and procedures.
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We may also be prohibited under the 1940 Act fraravkingly participating in certain transactions withr affiliates
without the prior approval of our board of directevho are not interested persons and, in some,qas@sapproval by the
SEC. The SEC has interpreted the business devetldprompany prohibition on transactions with affiis to prohibit all “joint
transactions” between entities that share a comma@stment adviser. The staff of the SEC has gdanteaction relief
permitting purchases of a single class of privapdficed securities provided that the adviser natggtino term other than price
and certain other conditions are met. As a readtpnly expect to co-invest on a concurrent bagis iwvestment funds,
accounts or investment vehicles managed by St€liystal Management when each of us and such inesstiand, account or
investment vehicle will own the same securitiethefissuer and when no term is negotiated other phiae. Any such
investment would be made, subject to complianch esxisting regulatory guidance, applicable regalaiand our allocation
procedures. If opportunities arise that would othise be appropriate for us and for an investmemd faccount or investment
vehicle managed by Stellus Capital Managementuesinin different securities of the same issuegll®& Capital Management
will need to decide which fund will proceed withetmvestment. Moreover, except in certain circumsta, we will be unable
to invest in any issuer in which an investment fuaxtount or investment vehicle managed by St&€hyital Management has
previously invested.

We and Stellus Capital Management have filed feneptive relief from the SEC to permit greater fleliy to negotiate
the terms of co-investments if our board of diresetermines that it would be advantageous fdo gg-invest with
investment funds, accounts and investment vehimbesaged by Stellus Capital Management (other thabt E. Shaw group
funds) in a manner consistent with our investméajgctive, positions, policies, strategies and retsdns as well as regulatory
requirements and other pertinent factors. We belthat co-investment by us and investment fundsyuatts and investment
vehicles managed by Stellus Capital Managemengfattan the D. E. Shaw group funds) may afforddgsteonal investment
opportunities and an ability to achieve greateedsification. Accordingly, our application for exptive relief is seeking an
exemptive order permitting us to invest with inweent funds, accounts and investment vehicles manag&tellus Capital
Management (other than the D. E. Shaw group fuindisle same portfolio companies under circumstancegich such
investments would otherwise not be permitted byli®40 Act. This exemptive application is still perg] and there can be no
assurance if and when the SEC would grant suaéfreli

Taxation as a Regulated Investment Company

As a business development company, we intend tt ®lde treated as a RIC under Subchapter M oftde. As a RIC,
we generally do not have to pay corporate-level fe&eral income taxes on any income that we distei to our stockholders
as dividends. To qualify as a RIC, we must, amahgrathings, meet certain source-of-income andtagersification
requirements (as described below). In additiomualify for RIC tax treatment we must distributeotar stockholders, for each
taxable year, at least 90% of our “investment camggaxable income,” which is generally our ordinargome plus the excess
of our realized net short-term capital gains owarrealized net long-term capital losses (the “AadriDistribution
Requirement”).

If we qualify as a RIC and satisfy the Annual Distition Requirement, then we generally will notsudbject to U.S. federal
income tax on the portion of our income we distréb(or are deemed to distribute) to stockholders. Wil be subject to U.S.
federal income tax at the regular corporate rateany income or capital gains not distributed @emed distributed) to our
stockholders.

We will be subject to a 4% nondeductible U.S. fatlekcise tax on certain undistributed income wies distribute in a
timely manner an amount at least equal to the sufh) ®8% of our net ordinary income for each cdlnyear, (2) 98.2% of
our capital gain net income for the one-year peending October 31 in that calendar year and (8)imcome recognized, but
not distributed, in preceding years (the “Excise Agoidance Requirement”).

In order to qualify as a RIC for U.S. federal inatax purposes, we must, among other things:

e continue to qualify as a business developmentpeomy under the 1940 Act at all times during eaghlige year;
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« derive in each taxable year at least 90% of sosgincome from dividends, interest, payments vagpect to loans of
certain securities, gains from the sale of stocétber securities, net income from certain “quatifpublicly traded
partnerships,” or other income derived with respeaiur business of investing in such stock or stes (the “90%
Income Test"); and

« diversify our holdings so that at the end of equhbrter of the taxable year:

» atleast 50% of the value of our assets consfatash, cash equivalents, U.S. Government seesyrgiecurities of
other RICs, and other securities if such other gges of any one issuer do not represent more Harof the value
of our assets or more than 10% of the outstandiigy securities of the issuer; and

* no more than 25% of the value of our assetsvissted in the securities, other than U.S. governsecurities or
securities of other RICs, of one issuer, of twenmre issuers that are controlled, as determinednyaplicable
Code rules, by us and that are engaged in the sasimilar or related trades or businesses or date“qualified
publicly traded partnerships” (the “Diversificatidiests”).

We may be required to recognize taxable incoméraumstances in which we do not receive cash. kample, if we hold
debt obligations that are treated under applicebeules as having original issue discount (suectebt instruments with PIK
interest or, in certain cases, increasing intewss or issued with warrants), we must includi@eé@me each year a portion of
the original issue discount that accrues overitaef the obligation, regardless of whether casgresenting such income is
received by us in the same taxable year. We maytalge to include in income other amounts that axemot yet received in
cash, such as PIK interest and deferred loan atigin fees that are paid after origination of th&n or are paid in non-cash
compensation such as warrants or stock. Becauserayiyal issue discount or other amounts accrudicdoe included in our
investment company taxable income for the yearcofual, we may be required to make a distribut@mour stockholders in
order to satisfy the Annual Distribution Requiremy@&ven though we will not have received any cqoesling cash amount.

Although we do not presently expect to do so, veeaauthorized to borrow funds and to sell assetsder to satisfy the
distribution requirements. However, under the 1846 we are not permitted in certain circumstartcasiake distributions to
our stockholders while our debt obligations andzotenior securities are outstanding unless cetaaset coverage” tests are
met. Moreover, our ability to dispose of assetsia®t our distribution requirements may be limitgd D) the illiquid nature of
our portfolio and/or (2) other requirements relgtin our status as a RIC, including the Diverstfma Tests. If we dispose of
assets in order to meet the Annual Distribution iRegnent or the Excise Tax Avoidance Requiremeptyvay make such
dispositions at times that, from an investmentdpaint, are not advantageous.

In accordance with certain applicable Treasury lagns and private letter rulings issued by theidmal Revenue Service,
a RIC may treat a distribution of its own stocKu@filling its RIC distribution requirements if eacstockholder may elect to
receive his or her entire distribution in eitheslta@r stock of the RIC, subject to a limitationtttiee aggregate amount of cash
to be distributed to all stockholders must be asi€0% of the aggregate declared distributiotadfmany stockholders elect to
receive cash, each stockholder electing to reczagl must receive a pro rata amount of cash (Witoalance of the
distribution paid in stock). In no event will antpekholder, electing to receive cash, receive tlkas 20% of his or her entire
distribution in cash. If these and certain othguigements are met, for U.S federal income tax psep, the amount of the
dividend paid in stock will be equal to the amoahtash that could have been received insteacdokstWWe have no current
intention of paying dividends in shares of our ktocaccordance with these Treasury regulatiorgrioate letter rulings.
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Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 imposes a wide tyaderegulatory requirements on publicly held canjges and their
insiders. Many of these requirements may affedh tise future when we are required to comply with Sarbanes-Oxley Act.
For example:

e pursuant to Rule 13a-14 under the Exchange Artpdncipal executive officer and principal finaalcofficer must
certify the accuracy of the financial statementstaimed in our periodic reports;

e pursuant to Item 307 under RegulatioiK Seur periodic reports must disclose our conclasiabout the effectiveness
our disclosure controls and procedures;

e pursuant to Rule 13a-15 under the Exchange Actn@nagement must prepare an annual report reggitdi
assessment of our internal control over finan@pbrting; and

e pursuant to Iltem 308 of Regulation S-K and Rue-15 under the Exchange Act, our periodic reporist disclose
whether there were significant changes in our mgtkcontrol over financial reporting or in othectfars that could
significantly affect these controls subsequenhtodate of their evaluation, including any corneetactions with regard
to significant deficiencies and material weaknesses

Our Status as an Emerging Growth Company

We are an “emerging growth company (“EGC") as dadiin the Jumpstart Our Business Startups Act‘@eBS Act”). An
EGC is defined as a company with total annual gregsnues of less than $1 billion in its most rélgecompleted fiscal year.
An EGC will retain such status until the earlier @) the fifth anniversary of the date it firsid@ecurities pursuant to an IPO
registration statement; (2) the last day of thedfigear in which it first exceeds $1 billion inraral gross revenues; (3) the time
it becomes a large accelerated filer (an SEC regidtcompany with a public float of at least $70Dion); or (4) the date on
which the EGC has, within the previous three yeaassied $1 billion of nonconvertible debt.

The JOBS Act affords an EGC an opportunity to getnaporary reprieve from certain SEC regulationglgmpting an
EGC from these regulations for up to five yearsedgheased requirements include an exemption fromircéinancial
disclosure and governance requirements and rel@sddctions on the sale of securities. The JOBSphavides scaled
disclosure provisions for EGCs, including, amorigeotthings, removing the requirement that EGCs dpmijih Sarbanes-
Oxley Act Section 404(b) auditor attestation okmmial control over financial reporting.

Section 107(b) of the JOBS Act also permits an EG€lect an extended transition period for comgyivith new or
revised accounting standards that have differdatt¥e dates for public and private companieslsuith time as these new or
revised standards are made applicable to all grivapanies. We have elected to take advantade @xtended transition
period for complying with new or revised accountgsigndards, which may make it more difficult fovésstors and securities
analysts to evaluate us since our financial statésmaay not be comparable to companies that comittypublic company
effective dates.

The New York Stock Exchange Corporate Governance Relations

The New York Stock Exchange has adopted corporatergance regulations that listed companies muspbowith. We
are in compliance with such corporate governarstimgj standards applicable to business developomenpanies.
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Iltem 1A. Risk Factors

Investing in our common stock involves a number of significant risks. Before you invest in our common stock, you should be
aware of various risks, including those described below. You should carefully consider these risk factors, together with all of the
other information included in this annual report on Form 10-K, before you decide whether to make an investment in our
common stock. The risks set out below are not the only risks we face. Additional risks and uncertainties not presently known to
us or not presently deemed material by us may also impair our operations and performance. If any of the following events occur,
our business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows could be materially and adver sely affected. In such case,
our net asset value and the trading price of our common stock could decline, and you may lose all or part of your investment.

Risks Relating to our Business and Structure

We have a limited operating history as a businesselopment company and have not yet elected todmedd as a RIC, and
Stellus Capital Management has limited experiencamaging a business development company, and we nuye able to
operate our business successfully or generate sigfit revenue to make or sustain distributions torestockholders.

We were formed in May 2012 and prior to the coniptebf our initial public offering in November 20,1&e did not
operate as a business development company anchgdalified to be treated as a RIC, and Stellygit@aManagement had
never managed any business development comparg/ résilt of our limited operating history, we héingéited operating
results under these regulatory frameworks thatdesnonstrate to you either their effect on our bessror our ability to manage
our business under these frameworks. We are subjéioe business risks and uncertainties assoaortbdecently formed
businesses, including the risk that we will notiael our investment objective and that the valugoofr investment could
decline substantially.

The 1940 Act and the Code impose numerous conttramthe operations of business development coiepand RICs
that do not apply to other investment vehicles myadaby Stellus Capital Management. Business dexedopcompanies are
required, for example, to invest at least 70% efrttotal assets primarily in securities of U.Svate or thinly traded public
companies, cash, cash equivalents, U.S. governseentities and other high-quality debt instrumeinés mature in one year or
less from the date of investment. Moreover, quadiibn for taxation as a RIC requires satisfactibsource-of-income, asset
diversification and distribution requirements. Wel&tellus Capital Management have limited expegesperating or advising
under these constraints, which may hinder ourtstiti take advantage of attractive investment ofymities and to achieve our
investment objective.

We are dependent upon key personnel of Stellus @Gapilanagement for our future success. If Stellusafital Management
were to lose any of its key personnel, our abilibyachieve our investment objective could be sigmhtly harmed.

We depend on the diligence, skill and network dfibess contacts of the investment professionaBtaifus Capital
Management to achieve our investment objectivdluSt€apital Management’s team of investment psifasls evaluates,
negotiates, structures, closes and monitors owsinvents in accordance with the terms of our imvest advisory agreement.
We can offer no assurance, however, that Stellpst&aManagement’s investment professionals wilitmue to provide
investment advice to us.

Stellus Capital Management’s investment commitidgch provides oversight over our investment atitigi is provided to
us by Stellus Capital Management under the investmévisory agreement. Stellus Capital Managemémgasstment
committee consists of three members of our boardirettors, Messrs. Ladd, D’Angelo and Davis, amd investment
professionals of Stellus Capital Management, Me€verbergen and Huskinson. The loss of any mewibstellus Capital
Management’s investment committee would limit obitiey to achieve our investment objective and @perour business. This
could have a material adverse effect on our fir@ra@indition, results of operations and cash flows.
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Our business model depends to a significant extepon strong referral relationships. Any inabilityfdStellus Capital
Management to maintain or develop these relatiorghior the failure of these relationships to generanvestment
opportunities, could adversely affect our business.

We depend upon Stellus Capital Management to maiitsarelationships with private equity sponsqgrscement agents,
investment banks, management groups and othercfadanstitutions, and we rely to a significant ext upon these
relationships to provide us with potential investrinepportunities. If Stellus Capital Managemenisf& maintain such
relationships, or to develop new relationships wither sources of investment opportunities, we moli be able to grow our
investment portfolio. In addition, individuals withhom Stellus Capital Management has relationsiiipsiot obligated to
provide us with investment opportunities, and we afier no assurance that these relationshipsgsitierate investment
opportunities for us in the future.

Our financial condition, results of operations anchsh flows will depend on our ability to manage dousiness effectively.

Our ability to achieve our investment objectivelwigpend on our ability to manage our businesstarmgow our
investments and earnings. This will depend, in,tamStellus Capital Management's ability to idBntinvest in and monitor
portfolio companies that meet our investment datefhe achievement of our investment objectiva @ost-effective basis will
depend upon Stellus Capital Management’s execuafiaur investment process, its ability to provigenpetent, attentive and
efficient services to us and, to a lesser extantaocess to financing on acceptable terms. St€lfystal Management’s
investment professionals will have substantial oesgbilities in connection with the management thieo investment funds,
accounts and investment vehicles. The personr@glatius Capital Management may be called upondwige managerial
assistance to our portfolio companies. These dietivinay distract them from sourcing new investnogmortunities for us or
slow our rate of investment. Any failure to manage business and our future growth effectively dduhve a material adverse
effect on our business, financial condition, resolt operations and cash flows.

There are significant potential conflicts of intest that could negatively affect our investment rats.

The members of Stellus Capital Management’s investrnommittee serve, or may serve, as officergctirs, members, or
principals of entities that operate in the sama mlated line of business as we do, or of investriwnds, accounts, or
investment vehicles managed by Stellus Capital idameent. Similarly, Stellus Capital Management mayehother clients
with similar, different or competing investment etfives. In serving in these multiple capacitiagytmay have obligations to
other clients or investors in those entities, thiéliment of which may not be in the best intesest us or our stockholders. For
example, Stellus Capital Management is currentikise to raise capital for a private credit fundtttvill have an investment
strategy that is identical to our investment stygté&Stellus Capital Management also provides sulisady services to the D. E.
Shaw group with respect to a private investmend famd a strategy of a private multi-strategy inwvesit fund to which the D.
E. Shaw group serves as investment adviser that fiainvestment strategy similar to our investnsénategy.

We intend to co-invest with investment funds, actewand investment vehicles managed by Stellust@lapganagement
(other than the D. E. Shaw group funds) where degs consistent with our investment strategy el as applicable law and
SEC staff interpretations. Without an exemptiveeorfdlom the SEC (as described below), we genevéllyonly be permitted to
co-invest with such investment funds, accountsianelstment vehicles when the only term that is tia¢ed is price. However,
we and Stellus Capital Management have filed amgxige application with the SEC to permit greatekibility to negotiate
the terms of co-investments with investment furdsounts and investment vehicles managed by Stedpgal Management
(other than the D. E. Shaw group funds) in a manaoasistent with our investment objective, posisiopolicies, strategies and
restrictions as well as regulatory requirementsa@hedr pertinent factors. This exemptive applicai®still pending, and we
can offer no assurance that such opportunitiesheithllocated to us fairly or equitably in the sHerm or over time, or that we
will receive exemptive relief from the SEC to perroné to co-invest with investment funds, accountsiavestment vehicles
managed by Stellus Capital Management (other that E. Shaw group funds) where terms other thige pre negotiated.
When we invest alongside other investment fundso@ats and investment vehicles
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managed by Stellus Capital Management, prior teivamy exemptive relief, we expect to make suctestients consistent
with Stellus Capital Management’s allocation pojiashich generally requires that each co-investrogpiortunity be allocated
between us and the other investment funds, accamatinvestment vehicles managed by Stellus Cadié@agement pro rata
based on each entity’s capital available for inwestt, as determined by Stellus Capital ManagenYgatexpect that available
capital for our investments will be determined flibsa the amount of cash on-hand, liquidity ava#alohder our financing
arrangements, including the borrowing capacity uode $115 million senior secured revolving crdditility with various
lenders, which is agented by SunTrust Bank seiourgd revolving credit agreement with SunTrustiBamisting
commitments and reserves, if any, the targeteddgeclevel, targeted asset mix and diversificatemuirements and other
investment policies and restrictions set by ounrtda@d directors or as imposed by applicable lawkes, regulations or
interpretations. In situations where co-investraahgside other investment funds, accounts andstment vehicles managed
by Stellus Capital Management, prior to receivirgraptive relief, is not permitted or appropriatects as when there is an
opportunity to invest in different securities oéthame issuer, Stellus Capital Management will neekcide whether we or
such other entity or entities will proceed with theestment. Stellus Capital Management will mdlese determinations based
on its policies and procedures, which generallpiregthat such opportunities be offered to eligiésdeounts on an alternating
basis that will be fair and equitable over time.rbtwver, except in certain circumstances, we willibable to invest in any
issuer in which an investment fund, account or s#twent vehicle managed by Stellus Capital Managémaspreviously
invested.

In addition, there may be times when Stellus CapiEnagement, members of its investment committats mther
investment professionals have interests that diften those of our stockholders, giving rise taoaftict of interest. In
particular, a private investment fund for whichllste Capital Management provides investment adyiservices hold minority
equity interests in certain of the portfolio comiganin which we hold debt investments. As a reSitk)lus Capital
Management, members of its investment committéts ather investment professionals may face casflié interest in
connection with making business decisions for thstfolio companies to the extent that such denwsiaffect the debt and
equity holders in these portfolio companies diffele In addition, Stellus Capital Management magef conflicts of interests
in connection with making investment or other detis, including granting loan waivers or concessjam our behalf with
respect to these portfolio companies given that #ieo provide investment advisory services toigape investment fund that
holds the equity interests in these portfolio conigs. Although our investment adviser will endeawohandle these
investment and other decisions in a fair and eblatenanner, we and the holders of the shares of@umon stock could be
adversely affected by these decisions. Moreoveergthe subjective nature of the investment andralecisions made by our
investment adviser on our behalf, we are unabiednitor these potential conflicts of interest bedwais and our investment
adviser; however, our board of directors, including independent directors, reviews conflicts ¢dliest in connection with its
review of the performance of our investment adviser

The senior investment team and other investmentfpssionals of Stellus Capital Management may, fréime to time,
possess material non-public information, limitinguo investment discretion.

The senior investment team and other investmerieégsmnals of Stellus Capital Management, includimembers of Stellus
Capital Management'’s investment committee, mayesasvdirectors of, or in a similar capacity witbrtfolio companies in
which we invest, the securities of which are pusgthor sold on our behalf. In the event that matednpublic information is
obtained with respect to such companies, or werheaubject to trading restrictions under the irdetrading policies of those
companies or as a result of applicable law or @ians, we could be prohibited for a period of tifr@m purchasing or selling
the securities of such companies, and this prabibihay have an adverse effect on us.

The incentive fee structure we have with Stelluspital Management may create incentives that are fudty aligned with the
interests of our stockholders.

In the course of our investing activities, we pagrmagement and incentive fees to Stellus Capitaldgament. We have
entered into an investment advisory agreement 8ti¢lus Capital Management that provides for a maneent fee based on
the value of our gross assets. Because this fegsisd on the value of our gross assets, StelluisaClfanagement will benefit
when we incur debt or use leverage. This fee
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structure may encourage Stellus Capital Managetoesduse us to borrow money to finance additiomatstments. Under
certain circumstances, the use of borrowed mongyintaease the likelihood of default, which wouldfdvor our
stockholders.

Our board of directors is charged with protecting interests by monitoring how Stellus Capital Mg@maent addresses
these and other conflicts of interests associai#fits management services and compensation. Véhildoard of directors is
not expected to review or approve each investmecisibn, borrowing or incurrence of leverage, outeipendent directors will
periodically review Stellus Capital Management's/gms and fees as well as its portfolio managerdenisions and portfolio
performance. In connection with these reviews,independent directors will consider whether ousfard expenses
(including those related to leverage) remain appatg. As a result of this arrangement, Stellusi@hpanagement may from
time to time have interests that differ from tho$eur stockholders, giving rise to a conflict.

Our incentive fee may induce Stellus Capital Managent to make speculative investments.

We pay Stellus Capital Management an incentivébéesed, in part, upon net capital gains realizedurinvestments.
Unlike that portion of the incentive fee based meoime, there is no hurdle rate applicable to thiégoof the incentive fee
based on net capital gains. Additionally, underitioentive fee structure, Stellus Capital Managemmay benefit when capital
gains are recognized and, because Stellus Capétahlyement will determine when to sell a holding|lG$ Capital
Management will control the timing of the recogmitiof such capital gains. As a result, Stellus @hpManagement may have a
tendency to invest more capital in investments dinatlikely to result in capital gains as comparethcome producing
securities. Such a practice could result in ouesting in more speculative securities than wouhgtise be the case, which
could result in higher investment losses, partitylduring economic downturns.

We may be obligated to pay Stellus Capital Managatiecentive compensation even if we incur a loggdamay pay more
than 20.0% of our net capital gains because we canhrecover payments made in previous years.

Stellus Capital Management is entitled to incentigmpensation for each fiscal quarter in an ameqguotl to a percentage
of the excess of our investment income for thattgugbefore deducting incentive compensation) atethreshold return for
that quarter and subject to a total return requéngmiThe general effect of this total return reguient is to prevent payment of
the foregoing incentive compensation except teettient 20.0% of the cumulative net increase inassets resulting from
operations over the then current and 11 precedifendar quarters exceeds the cumulative inceng@s &ccrued and/or paid
for the 11 preceding calendar quarters. Consegyemt may pay an incentive fee if we incurred Isssm®re than three years
prior to the current calendar quarter even if dosses have not yet been recovered in full. Thesmay be required to pay
Stellus Capital Management incentive compensatiom fiscal quarter even if there is a declinehim Yalue of our portfolio or
we incur a net loss for that quarter. If we payrarentive fee of 20.0% of our realized capital gainet of all realized capital
losses and unrealized capital depreciation on autative basis) and thereafter experience additioeelized capital losses or
unrealized capital depreciation, we will not beeatal recover any portion of the incentive fee poesgly paid.

The involvement of our interested directors in thialuation process may create conflicts of interest.

We make many of our portfolio investments in therf@f loans and securities that are not publicyléd and for which no
market based price quotation is available. As altesur board of directors determines the faiueabf these loans and
securities in good faith as described elsewhetkignannual report on Form 10-K. In connection wtitat determination,
investment professionals from Stellus Capital Ma&magnt may provide our board of directors with vibres based upon the
most recent portfolio company financial statemewiilable and projected financial results of eastifplio company. While
the valuation for each portfolio investment is esvéd by an independent valuation firm quarterlg, ultimate determination of
fair value is made by our board of directors, idahg our interested directors, and not by suchdtharty valuation firm. In
addition, Messrs. Ladd, D’Angelo and Davis, eaclindéerested member of our board of directors, hdisext pecuniary interest
in Stellus Capital Management. The participatiotstdllus Capital Management'’s investment profesdiom our valuation
process, and the pecuniary interest in
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Stellus Capital Management by certain members oboard of directors, could result in a conflictioferest as Stellus Capital
Management’'s management fee is based, in parheowalue of our gross assets, and incentive feebaged, in part, on
realized gains and realized and unrealized losses.

There are conflicts related to other arrangementgwStellus Capital Management.

We have entered into a license agreement withuStéhpital Management under which Stellus Capitahdfement has
agreed to grant us a non-exclusive, royalty-freense to use the name “Stellus Capital.” In additee have entered into an
administration agreement with Stellus Capital Maragnt pursuant to which we are required to paye¢tuS Capital
Management our allocable portion of overhead ahdratxpenses incurred by Stellus Capital Manageimeerforming its
obligations under such administration agreemert) si$ rent and our allocable portion of the costusfchief financial officer
and chief compliance officer and his staff. Thidl wieate conflicts of interest that our board o&dtors will monitor. For
example, under the terms of the license agreementyill be unable to preclude Stellus Capital Magragnt from licensing or
transferring the ownership of the “Stellus Capitadime to third parties, some of whom may compesénagus. Consequently,
we will be unable to prevent any damage to goodWwat may occur as a result of the activities @fl8¢ Capital Management
or others. Furthermore, in the event the licenseagent is terminated, we will be required to cleaogr name and cease using
“Stellus Capital” as part of our name. Any of thesents could disrupt our recognition in the magkate, damage any
goodwill we may have generated and otherwise hannosiness.

The investment advisory agreement and the admiristn agreement with Stellus Capital Management werot negotiated
on an arm’s length basis and may not be as favomtd us as if they had been negotiated with an Uiiated third party.

The investment advisory agreement and the admatistr agreement were negotiated between relatdig par
Consequently, their terms, including fees payabiStellus Capital Management, may not be as fal®tatus as if they had
been negotiated with an unaffiliated third partyatdition, we may choose not to enforce, or toref less vigorously, our
rights and remedies under these agreements besbogedesire to maintain our ongoing relationshith Stellus Capital
Management and its affiliates. Any such decisiawéwver, would breach our fiduciary obligations to stockholders.

The time and resources that Stellus Capital Managarhdevotes to us may be diverted, and we may &alcktional
competition due to the fact that Stellus Capital kiagement and its affiliates are not prohibited froraising money for, or
managing, another entity that makes the same typemvestments that we target.

Stellus Capital Management and some of its aféilatncluding our officers and our non-independgrgctors, are not
prohibited from raising money for, or managing, #ueo investment entity that makes the same typ@svebtments as those we
target. For example, Stellus Capital Managemeaotiiently seeking to raise capital for a privatedir fund that will have an
investment strategy that is identical to our inwe=tt strategy. We and Stellus Capital Managemere hkso filed for
exemptive relief from the SEC that would estabéisto-investment program with investment funds, ant®and investment
vehicles managed by Stellus Capital Managemenéfdtian the D. E. Shaw group funds); however, tharebe no assurance
if and when the SEC would grant such relief. Iniidid, pursuant to sub-advisory arrangements, S&ellapital Management
provides non-discretionary advisory services toDh&. Shaw group related to a private investmentifand a strategy of a
private multi-strategy investment fund to which teE. Shaw group serves as investment advisea. result, the time and
resources they could devote to us may be divemealddition, we may compete with any such investneatity for the same
investors and investment opportunities.

Our incentive fee arrangements with Stellus Capitdhnagement may vary from those of other investméntds, account or
investment vehicles managed by Stellus Capital Mgemnent, which may create an incentive for Stelluspgital Management
to devote time and resources to a higher fee-payfingd.

If Stellus Capital Management is paid a higher ganance-based fee from any of its other fundsaiy tmave an incentive
to devote more research and development or othieit&s, and/or recommend the allocation of invesht opportunities, to
such higher fee-paying fund. For example, to thersbStellus
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Capital Management'’s incentive compensation issnbfect to a hurdle or total return requiremenhwitspect to another fund,
it may have an incentive to devote time and ressutc such other fund.

Stellus Capital Management'’s liability is limitednder the investment advisory agreement and we hayeeed to indemnify
Stellus Capital Management against certain liabiéis, which may lead Stellus Capital Management t & a riskier
manner on our behalf than it would when acting fats own account.

Under the investment advisory agreement, Stellyst@ldManagement has not assumed any responsitalitg other than
to render the services called for under that agesenft will not be responsible for any action ofr dooard of directors in
following or declining to follow Stellus Capital Magement’s advice or recommendations. Under thesinvent advisory
agreement, Stellus Capital Management, its offiamembers and personnel, and any person contratiegntrolled by Stellus
Capital Management will not be liable to us, anlgssdiary of ours, our directors, our stockholdarsuay subsidiary’s
stockholders or partners for acts or omissionsoperéd in accordance with and pursuant to the invest advisory agreement,
except those resulting from acts constituting gresgligence, willful misfeasance, bad faith or ftesk disregard of the duties
that Stellus Capital Management owes to us undemntrestment advisory agreement. In addition, asgfdhe investment
advisory agreement, we have agreed to indemnifjuSt€apital Management and each of its officengalors, members,
managers and employees from and against any ctitieilities, including reasonable legal fees atider expenses
reasonably incurred, arising out of or in connettioth our business and operations or any actikertar omitted on our
behalf pursuant to authority granted by the investhadvisory agreement, except where attributabigrdss negligence, willful
misfeasance, bad faith or reckless disregard df pecson’s duties under the investment advisorgegent. These protections
may lead Stellus Capital Management to act inkaeiisnanner when acting on our behalf than it womteen acting for its own
account.

Our ability to enter into transactions with our affates is restricted, which may limit the scopeiof/estments available to us.

We are prohibited under the 1940 Act from partitiigain certain transactions with our affiliatestgut the prior approval
of our independent directors and, in some casesSHC. Any person that owns, directly or indirecB% or more of our
outstanding voting securities will be our affilidte purposes of the 1940 Act, and we are genepabhibited from buying or
selling any security from or to such affiliate wotht the prior approval of our independent directdige 1940 Act also prohibits
certain “joint” transactions with certain of oufites, which could include concurrent investneeint the same portfolio
company, without prior approval of our independginéctors and, in some cases, of the SEC. We alglpted from buying or
selling any security from or to any person thattome us or who owns more than 25% of our votincusiies or certain of that
person’s affiliates, or entering into prohibitedhfotransactions with such persons, absent the ppgproval of the SEC. As a
result of these restrictions, we may be prohibitedh buying or selling any security (other than aegurity of which we are the
issuer) from or to any portfolio company of a ptevéund managed by Stellus Capital Managemensafitliates without the
prior approval of the SEC, which may limit the sead investment opportunities that would otherwiseavailable to us.

We may, however, invest alongside Stellus Capitah&jement’s investment funds, accounts and investwedicles in
certain circumstances where doing so is consistéhtour investment strategy as well as applicéieand SEC staff
interpretations. For example, we may invest alatgsuch investment funds, accounts and investnadithes consistent with
guidance promulgated by the SEC staff to purch@sedsts in a single class of privately placed sges so long as certain
conditions are met, including that Stellus Capilanagement, acting on our behalf and on behaléich snvestment funds,
accounts and investment vehicles, negotiates noaéner than price. We may also invest alongsiédust Capital
Management'’s investment funds, accounts and imverstrehicles as otherwise permissible under regulaguidance,
applicable regulations and Stellus Capital Managdimallocation policy. This allocation policy priokes that allocations
among us and investment funds, accounts and ineestvehicles managed by Stellus Capital Manageamahits affiliates will
generally be made pro rata based on capital avaifabinvestment, as determined, in our case,unboard of directors as well
as the terms of our governing documents and thibseah investment funds, accounts and investmdrithes. It is our policy
to base our determinations on such factors asanttmunt of cash on-hand, existing commitments asérves, if any, our
targeted leverage
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level, our targeted asset mix and diversificatiequirements and other investment policies andictstis set by our board of
directors or imposed by applicable laws, rulesulatipns or interpretations. We expect that theterghinations will be made
similarly for investment funds, accounts and inestt vehicles managed by Stellus Capital ManagerhiEnwever, we can
offer no assurance that investment opportunitidish@iallocated to us fairly or equitably in theostiterm or over time.

In situations where co-investment with investmemtds, accounts and investment vehicles managedeliysSCapital
Management, prior to receiving exemptive reliefyéé permitted or appropriate, such as when theam iopportunity to invest
concurrently in different securities of the samsuer or where the different investments could heeeted to result in a conflict
between our interests and those of Stellus Cagditgalagement’s clients, subject to the limitationsaléed in the preceding
paragraph, Stellus Capital Management will needemde which client will proceed with the investrhestellus Capital
Management will make these determinations basets@olicies and procedures, which generally regjthat such
opportunities be offered to eligible accounts oraliernating basis that will be fair and equitaier time. Moreover, except in
certain circumstances, we will be unable to inwestny issuer in which an investment fund, accaumtvestment vehicle
managed by Stellus Capital Management has preyiduatsted.

We and Stellus Capital Management have filed feneptive relief from the SEC to permit greater flelty to negotiate
the terms of co-investments if our board of diresetermines that it would be advantageous fdo ge-invest with
investment funds, accounts and investment vehimbesaged by Stellus Capital Management (other thabt E. Shaw group
funds) in a manner consistent with our investméajgctive, positions, policies, strategies and retsdns as well as regulatory
requirements and other pertinent factors. We beltbat co-investment by us and investment fundsyuatts and investment
vehicles managed by Stellus Capital Managemengfattan the D. E. Shaw group funds) may afforddgsiteonal investment
opportunities and an ability to achieve greateediification. Accordingly, our application for exptive relief is seeking an
exemptive order permitting us to invest with inweent funds, accounts and investment vehicles manag&tellus Capital
Management (other than the D. E. Shaw group fuindisle same portfolio companies under circumstancegich such
investments would otherwise not be permitted byli®40 Act. This exemptive application is still perg] and there can be no
assurance if and when the SEC would grant suabfreli

Our ability to sell or otherwise exit investmentswhich affiliates of Stellus Capital Managementsad have an investment
may be restricted, which may have a materially acbeimpact on our ability to manage our investmepurtfolio.

Pursuant to the 1940 Act, unless and until we vecekemptive relief from the SEC permitting us tost, we may be
prohibited from exiting our positions in portfolemmpanies in which funds affiliated with Stelluspital Management also hold
positions. As more fully described elsewhere is #Hrinual report on Form 10-K, our portfolio corsizt 12 assets once held by
the D. E. Shaw group fund to which the D. E. Shasup serves as investment adviser and is sub-atiis&tellus Capital
Management. However, the D. E. Shaw group fundétaéned equity investments in 7 of those 9 pddfobmpanies. To the
extent that our investments in these portfolio canigs need to be restructured or that we choosgittthese investments in the
future, our ability to do so may be limited if sugstructuring or exit also involves an affiliatetbe D. E. Shaw group fund
therein because such a transaction could be caadidgoint transaction prohibited by the 1940 icthe absence of our
receipt of relief from the SEC in connection witkch transaction. For example, if the D. E. Shawigriund were required to
approve a restructuring of our investment in onthege portfolio companies in its capacity as artgdpolder thereof and the
D. E. Shaw group fund were deemed to be our afilisuch involvement by the D. E. Shaw group funthée restructuring
transaction may constitute a prohibited joint tesot®on under the 1940 Act. However, we do not beligat our ability to
restructure or exit these investments will be digantly hampered due to the fact that the equitsestments retained by the D.
E. Shaw group fund are minority equity positiond,aas a result, it is unlikely that the D. E. Shgrwup fund will be or will be
required to be involved in any such restructuriagexits.
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We operate in a highly competitive market for inweent opportunities, which could reduce returns anelsult in losses.

A number of entities compete with us to make thpegyof investments that we make. We compete withigand private
funds, commercial and investment banks, commeficiahcing companies and, to the extent they proaidalternative form of
financing, private equity and hedge funds. Mangwf competitors are substantially larger and haresiclerably greater
financial, technical and marketing resources tharda. For example, we believe some of our compstittay have access to
funding sources that are not available to us. bfitemh, some of our competitors may have highe tiderances or different
risk assessments, which could allow them to comsideider variety of investments and establish nietationships than us.
Furthermore, many of our competitors are not sulifethe regulatory restrictions that the 1940 igboses on us as a business
development company or the source-of-income, algetsification and distribution requirements wesmhsatisfy to maintain
our RIC qualification. The competitive pressuresfaee may have a material adverse effect on ounéss, financial
condition, results of operations and cash flowsaAssult of this competition, we may not be abléake advantage of
attractive investment opportunities from time toei and we may not be able to identify and makestments that are
consistent with our investment objective.

With respect to the investments we make, we deeek to compete based primarily on the interessnat offer, and we
believe that some of our competitors may make lodtisinterest rates that are lower than the ratesffer. With respect to all
investments, we may lose some investment oppoigsriftwe do not match our competitors’ pricingnte and structure.
However, if we match our competitors’ pricing, terand structure, we may experience decreasedteetshincome, lower
yields and increased risk of credit loss. We map abmpete for investment opportunities with inrestt funds, accounts and
investment vehicles managed by Stellus Capital idameent. Although Stellus Capital Management with@dte opportunities
in accordance with its policies and proceduresgalions to such investment funds, accounts arestment vehicles will
reduce the amount and frequency of opportunitiedave to us and may not be in the best intera@sts and our stockholders.

We will be subject to corporate-level income taxdamay default under the Credit Facility if we arenable to qualify or
maintain our qualification as a RIC under Subchapt® of the Code.

To qualify as a RIC under Subchapter M of the Caxiemust meet certain source-of-income, asset sifieation and
distribution requirements. The distribution reqment for a RIC is satisfied if we distribute atde80% of our net ordinary
income and net short-term capital gains in excésgblong-term capital losses, if any, to our ktwalders on an annual basis.
Because we incur debt, we will be subject to ceréaiset coverage ratio requirements under the Aé#dénd financial
covenants under loan and credit agreements thad,amuder certain circumstances, restrict us froakimg distributions
necessary to qualify as a RIC. If we are unablebtain cash from other sources, we may fail toiuak a RIC and, thus, may
be subject to corporate-level income tax. To quad a RIC, we must also meet certain asset diieatsbn requirements at the
end of each calendar quarter. Failure to meet ttasse may result in our having to dispose of @eiitevestments quickly in
order to prevent the loss of our qualification &l&. Because most of our investments are in pgigathinly-traded public
companies, any such dispositions may be made ad\thsitageous prices and may result in substansisét.

No certainty can be provided, however, that we salisfy the asset diversification requirementtherother requirements
necessary to qualify as a RIC. If we fail to quah a RIC for any reason and become subject fmcate income tax, the
resulting corporate income taxes could substaptialiuce our net assets, the amount of incomeadtaifor distributions to
our stockholders and the amount of funds availtdl@ew investments. Furthermore, if we falil to lifyaas a RIC, we may be
in default under the terms of the Credit Facilyich a failure would have a material adverse effeats and our stockholders.

We will need to raise additional capital to growdaise we must distribute most of our income.

We will need additional capital to fund new investrts and grow our portfolio of investments. Wenigk¢o access the
capital markets periodically to issue debt or egsécurities or borrow from financial institutiomsorder to obtain such
additional capital. Unfavorable economic conditieosild increase our
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funding costs, limit our access to the capital retslor result in a decision by lenders not to ekiEnedit to us. A reduction in
the availability of new capital could limit our &by to grow. In addition, we are required to diktrte at least 90% of our net
ordinary income and net short-term capital gainsxicess of net long-term capital losses, if anyuiostockholders to maintain
our qualification as a RIC. As a result, these isgswill not be available to fund new investmeris.inability on our part to
access the capital markets successfully could bunitability to grow our business and execute augiress strategy fully and
could decrease our earnings, if any, which wouleehen adverse effect on the value of our sharesmimon stock.

You may not receive distributions, or our distribahs may not grow over time.

We intend to make distributions on a quarterly $asiour stockholders out of assets legally avhlédr distribution. We
cannot assure you that we will achieve investmesitlts that will allow us to make a specified lesktash distributions or
year-to-year increases in cash distributions. @ilityto pay distributions might be adversely affed by the impact of one or
more of the risk factors described in this annepbrt on Form 10-K. Due to the asset coverageatgdicable to us under the
1940 Act as a business development company, webmdéiynited in our ability to make distributions.|Aistributions will be
made at the discretion of our board of directoi &ill depend on our earnings, financial conditiorgintenance of RIC status,
compliance with applicable business developmentpamy and such other factors as our board of directay deem relative
from time to time. We cannot assure you that wémidke distributions to our stockholders in theufet

We may have difficulty paying our required distritions if we recognize income before, or withoutcedving cash
representing such income.

For U.S. federal income tax purposes, we includadome certain amounts that we have not yet redeiv cash, such as
the accrual of original issue discount. This mageaif we receive warrants in connection with theking of a loan and in other
circumstances, or through contracted PIK intesgbich represents contractual interest added téote balance and due at the
end of the loan term. Such original issue discowhich could be significant relative to our oveliallestment activities, and
increases in loan balances as a result of conttd&ité arrangements are included in income beforeageive any
corresponding cash payments. We also may be requireclude in income certain other amounts thatwill not receive in
cash.

Since in certain cases we may recognize incomadefowithout receiving cash representing suchrimgove may have
difficulty meeting the requirement to distributel@dst 90% of our net ordinary income and net stesrh capital gains in excess
of net long-term capital losses, if any, to maimtaiir qualification as a RIC. In such a case, wg have to sell some of our
investments at times we would not consider advauag, raise additional debt or equity capital duoe new investment
originations to meet these distribution requireraetitwe are not able to obtain such cash fromragbarces, we may fail to
qualify as a RIC and thus be subject to corporaxellincome tax.

PIK interest payments we receive will increase @ssets under management and, as a result, will @ase the amount of
base management fees payable by us to Stellus Gddianagement.

Certain of our debt investments may contain prowsiproviding for the payment of PIK interest. BesmPIK interest
results in an increase in the size of the loanrz@af the underlying loan, the receipt by us ¢ Riterest will have the effect
of increasing our assets under management. AsiHi,lescause the base management fee that we (&igltos Capital
Management is based on the value of our grosssasietreceipt by us of PIK interest will resuliain increase in the amount of
the base management fee payable by us.

Regulations governing our operation as a businegvelopment company affect our ability to, and thayin which we, raise
additional capital. As a business development compahe necessity of raising additional capital maypose us to risks,
including the typical risks associated with leverag

We may issue debt securities or preferred stockoambrrow money from banks or other financial itagions, which we
refer to collectively as “senior securities,” upth@ maximum amount permitted by the
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1940 Act. Under the provisions of the 1940 Act,ave permitted as a business development compasgue senior securities
in amounts such that our asset coverage raticgfased in the 1940 Act, equals at least 200% ofgross assets less all
liabilities and indebtedness not represented biossecurities, after each issuance of senior #gsirlf the value of our assets
declines, we may be unable to satisfy this teshdf happens, we would not be able to borrow amfdit funds until we were
able to comply with the 200% asset coverage ratteuthe 1940 Act. Also, any amounts that we useteice our
indebtedness would not be available for distrimgito our common stockholders. If we issue ser@ousties, we will be
exposed to typical risks associated with leveragduding an increased risk of loss.

We are not generally able to issue and sell oumgomstock at a price below net asset value peeskiée may, however,
sell our common stock, or warrants, options ortsgb acquire our common stock, at a price belamtturrent net asset value
per share of our common stock if our board of doecdetermines that such sale is in our bestastey and if our stockholders
approve such sale. In any such case, the pricdiahvaur securities are to be issued and sold mapea less than a price that,
in the determination of our board of directorsselly approximates the market value of such seear{tess any distributing
commission or discount). If we raise additionaldarby issuing common stock or senior securitieyedible into, or
exchangeable for, our common stock, then the ptagerownership of our stockholders at that timé egtrease, and you may
experience dilution.

Because we finance our investments with borrowedneng, the potential for gain or loss on amounts irsted in us is
magnified and may increase the risk of investingus.

The use of leverage magnifies the potential fon gailoss on amounts invested. The use of levasgenerally considered
a speculative investment technique and increagessks associated with investing in our securitiege continue to use
leverage to partially finance our investments tigtobanks, insurance companies and other lendenisyifloexperience
increased risks of investing in our common stoanders of these funds have fixed dollar claims wrassets that are superior
to the claims of our common stockholders, and waldvexpect such lenders to seek recovery agaimsasaets in the event of
a default. As of December 31, 2012, substantidllgfaour assets were pledged as collateral ungeCredit Facility. In
addition, under the terms of the Credit Facilitg@my borrowing facility or other debt instrumerd way enter into, we are
likely to be required to use the net proceeds gfiamestments that we sell to repay a portion efamount borrowed under
such facility or instrument before applying such pceeds to any other uses. If the value of esets decreases, leveraging
would cause net asset value to decline more shtralyit otherwise would have had we not leveratgeeteby magnifying
losses or eliminating our stake in a leveragedstment. Similarly, any decrease in our revenu@corine will cause our net
income to decline more sharply than it would haad tve not borrowed. Such a decline would also meggtaffect our ability
to make distributions with respect to our commartkt Our ability to service any debt depends largel our financial
performance and is subject to prevailing econorai@dions and competitive pressures. Moreoverhasbtase management fee
payable to Stellus Capital Management is payaldedban the value of our gross assets, includinggtlagsets acquired through
the use of leverage, Stellus Capital Managemehhaile a financial incentive to incur leverage, ethinay not be consistent
with our stockholders’ interests. In addition, @ammon stockholders bear the burden of any increaser expenses as a
result of our use of leverage, including interegtemses and any increase in the base managemguayfalele to Stellus Capital
Management.

As a business development company, we generallsegrered to meet a coverage ratio of total agsetistal borrowings
and other senior securities, which include all af borrowings and any preferred stock that we rsayeé in the future, of at
least 200%. If this ratio declines below 200%, wk mot be able to incur additional debt until weable to comply with the
200% asset coverage ratio under the 1940 Act. dthifd have a material adverse effect on our ogeratiand we may not be
able to make distributions. The amount of leverthge we employ will depend on Stellus Capital Magragnt’'s and our board
of directors’ assessment of market and other facbthe time of any proposed borrowing. We caasstire you that we will
be able to obtain credit at all or on terms acdaptto us.

In addition, our debt facilities may impose finaa@nd operating covenants that restrict our bgsiaetivities, including
limitations that hinder our ability to finance atidhal loans and investments or to make the distidins required to maintain
our qualification as a RIC under the Code.
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We may default under the Credit Facility or any furte borrowing facility we enter into or be unable emend, repay or
refinance any such facility on commercially reasoble terms, or at all, which could have a materiad\zerse effect on our
business, financial condition, results of operatisrand cash flows.

As of December 31, 2012, substantially all of osseds were pledged as collateral under the Creditity. In the event we
default under the Credit Facility or any other fetborrowing facility, our business could be adebraffected as we may be
forced to sell all or a portion of our investmeqtsckly and prematurely at what may be disadvardaggrices to us in order to
meet our outstanding payment obligations and/opsuorking capital requirements under the Cré&ditility or such future
borrowing facility, any of which would have a ma&tiadverse effect on our business, financial cibonlj results of operations
and cash flows. In addition, following any suchaléf, the agent for the lenders under the Creditlifaor such future
borrowing facility could assume control of the disjtion of any or all of our assets, including gegection of such assets to be
disposed and the timing of such disposition, whicluld have a material adverse effect on our busirfesancial condition,
results of operations and cash flows.

Because we use debt to finance our investmentsjafket interest rates were to increase, our costapital could increase,
which could reduce our net investment income.

Because we borrow money to make investments, dunwvestment income will depend, in part, upondiféerence
between the rate at which we borrow funds anddtesat which we invest those funds. As a resultcaveoffer no assurance
that a significant change in market interest ratesld not have a material adverse effect on ouimetstment income in the
event we use debt to finance our investments. fioge of rising interest rates, our cost of fundsuld increase, which could
reduce our net investment income. We may use siteage risk management techniques in an effdiirtib our exposure to
interest rate fluctuations. We may utilize instrumsesuch as forward contracts, currency optionsirstiedest rate swaps, caps,
collars and floors to seek to hedge against flucina in the relative values of our portfolio pamits from changes in currency
exchange rates and market interest rates to teatpermitted by the 1940 Act. There is no limit@sur ability to enter into
such derivative transactions. In addition, a nisthe general level of interest rates typicallydeto higher interest rates
applicable to our debt investments. Accordinglyjrammease in interest rates may result in an irsered the amount of our pre-
incentive fee net investment income and, as atiemuincrease in incentive fees payable to St&lgital Management.
Adverse developments resulting from changes inéstaates or hedging transactions could have ariabadverse effect on
our business, financial condition and results arations.

Provisions in the Credit Facility or any other fute borrowing facility may limit our discretion in perating our business.

The Credit Facility is, and any future borrowingifily may be, backed by all or a portion of ouals and securities on
which the lenders will or, in the case of a futtaeility, may have a security interest. We may gkedp to 100% of our assets
and may grant a security interest in all of ouetssinder the terms of any debt instrument we éntemwith lenders. We expect
that any security interests we grant will be sethfin a guarantee and security agreement and msédieby the filing of
financing statements by the agent for the lenderaddition, we expect that the custodian for @mausities serving as collateral
for such loan would include in its electronic sysgenotices indicating the existence of such secimierests and, following
notice of occurrence of an event of default, if ayd during its continuance, will only accept sf@n instructions with respect
to any such securities from the lender or its destg If we were to default under the terms of aslyt éhstrument, the agent for
the applicable lenders would be able to assumedarftthe timing of disposition of any or all ofinassets securing such debt,
which would have a material adverse effect on ausiriess, financial condition, results of operatiand cash flows.

In addition, any security interests as well as tiggaovenants under the Credit Facility or anyeothorrowing facility may
limit our ability to incur additional liens or debhd may make it difficult for us to restructurerefinance indebtedness at or
prior to maturity or obtain additional debt or eguinancing. For example, under the terms of thed@ Facility, we have
generally agreed to not incur any additional setimdebtedness. In addition, we have agreed niocto any additional
indebtedness that has a maturity date prior torthturity date of the Credit Facility. Further, drdborrowing base under the
Credit Facility or any other borrowing facility weeto decrease, we would be required to secureiadalitassets in an amount
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equal to any borrowing base deficiency. In the étleait all of our assets are secured at the tinseicih a borrowing base
deficiency, we could be required to repay advaneeker the Credit Facility or any other borrowingifidy or make deposits to
a collection account, either of which could havaaterial adverse impact on our ability to fund fetinvestments and to make
stockholder distributions.

In addition, under the Credit Facility or any otherrowing facility we may be subject to limitat®as to how borrowed
funds may be used, which may include restrictiamg®@ographic and industry concentrations, loan giagment frequency and
status, average life, collateral interests andstment ratings, as well as regulatory restrictiomseverage which may affect the
amount of funding that may be obtained. There nisy lae certain requirements relating to portfolwfprmance, including
required minimum portfolio yield and limitations delinquencies and charge-offs, a violation of whgould limit further
advances and, in some cases, result in an evelefadlt. Furthermore, we expect that the term&iefCredit Facility will
contain a covenant requiring us to maintain conmgkawith RIC provisions at all times, subject totag remedial provisions.
Thus, a failure to maintain compliance with RIC\asions could result in an event of default under €redit Facility. An event
of default under the Credit Facility or any otherdowing facility could result in an acceleratedtordy date for all amounts
outstanding thereunder, which could have a matadaérse effect on our business and financial ¢cimmdiThis could reduce
our revenues and, by delaying any cash paymemeadido us under the Credit Facility or any othetrtwving facility until the
lenders have been paid in full, reduce our liqyiditd cash flow and impair our ability to grow dawsiness and maintain our
qualification as a RIC.

Adverse developments in the credit markets may impar ability to enter into any other future bornwing facility.

During the economic downturn in the United Stated began in mid-2007, many commercial banks anérdinancial
institutions stopped lending or significantly culed their lending activity. In addition, in an eft to stem losses and reduce
their exposure to segments of the economy deemiee Ihigh risk, some financial institutions limitefinancing and loan
modification transactions and reviewed the termexidting facilities to identify bases for accetarg the maturity of existing
lending facilities. If these conditions recur (fxtample, as a result of a broadening of the cuEend zone credit crisis), it may
be difficult for us to enter into a new borrowiragility, obtain other financing to finance the gtbvef our investments, or
refinance any outstanding indebtedness on accepeabhomic terms, or at all.

If we do not invest a sufficient portion of our asts in qualifying assets, we could fail to qualifg a business development
company or be precluded from investing accordingatar current business strategy.

As a business development company, we may not@&cguoy assets other than “qualifying assets” upkgsthe time of and
after giving effect to such acquisition, at leaB¥%vof our total assets are qualifying assets.

We believe that most of the investments that we agaire in the future will constitute qualifyingsets. However, we
may be precluded from investing in what we beligvbe attractive investments if such investmergsnat qualifying assets for
purposes of the 1940 Act. If we do not invest disight portion of our assets in qualifying assets,could violate the 1940 Act
provisions applicable to business development caoegaAs a result of such violation, specific rulesler the 1940 Act could
prevent us, for example, from making follow-on istreents in existing portfolio companies (which ebrésult in the dilution
of our position).

If we do not maintain our status as a businessldpreent company, we would be subject to regulati®m registered
closed-end investment company under the 1940 At Pegistered closed-end investment company, wddwie subject to
substantially more regulatory restrictions under 1840 Act which would significantly decrease opemating flexibility.

Most of our portfolio investments are recorded airfvalue and will continue to be recorded as faialue as determined in
good faith by our board of directors and, as a rétsthere may be and will continue to be uncertayras to the value of our
portfolio investments.

Most of our portfolio investments will take the foof securities that are not publicly traded. Taie ¥alue of loans,
securities and other investments that are not glyliaded may not be readily determinable,
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and we value these investments at fair value asmeted in good faith by our board of directorglinling to reflect significant
events affecting the value of our investments. Mibstot all, of our investments (other than casl aash equivalents) are
classified as Level 3 under ASC Topic 820. This msethat our portfolio valuations are based on uenkable inputs and our
own assumptions about how market participants wptitte the asset or liability in question. Inputiithe determination of
fair value of our portfolio investments requirersfgcant management judgment or estimation. Evebgervable market data is
available, such information may be the result afsemsus pricing information or broker quotes, wiiatude a disclaimer that
the broker would not be held to such a price imetnal transaction. The non-binding nature of cosss pricing and/or quotes
accompanied by disclaimers materially reducesehaehility of such information. We have retaineeé ervices of independent
service providers to review the valuation of thieems and securities. The types of factors thabtad of directors may take
into account in determining the fair value of oawéstments generally include, as appropriate, cosgrato publicly traded
securities including such factors as yield, mayusitd measures of credit quality, the enterpriseevaf a portfolio company,
the nature and realizable value of any collatéh&l portfolio company’s ability to make paymentsl &3 earnings and
discounted cash flow, the markets in which thefptict company does business and other relevanbifacBecause such
valuations, and particularly valuations of privaeeurities and private companies, are inherentterain, may fluctuate over
short periods of time and may be based on estimatesieterminations of fair value may differ méaby from the values that
would have been used if a ready market for thesmesl@nd securities existed. Our net asset valud bewadversely affected if
our determinations regarding the fair value of ionestments were materially higher than the vatbhaswe ultimately realize
upon the disposal of such loans and securities.

We adjust quarterly the valuation of our portfdiioreflect our board of directors’ determinatiortloé fair value of each
investment in our portfolio. Any changes in faitwaare recorded in our statement of operationmeashange in unrealized
appreciation or depreciation.

We may experience fluctuations in our quarterly apéing results.

We could experience fluctuations in our quartepgmating results due to a number of factors, inalgithe interest rate
payable on the loans and debt securities we acgh&elefault rate on such loans and securitiesletvel of our expenses,
variations in and the timing of the recognitiorreélized and unrealized gains or losses, the dégnebich we encounter
competition in our markets and general economiditmms. In light of these factors, results for greriod should not be relied
upon as being indicative of performance in futueequs.

We are an “emerging growth company” under the JOB®t, and we cannot be certain if the reduced distice
requirements applicable to emerging growth compamieill make our common stock less attractive toestors.

We are and we will remain an “emerging growth compias defined in the JOBS Act until the earliefaf the last day of
the fiscal year (i) following the fifth anniversaof the completion of this offering, (ii) in whickie have total annual gross
revenue of at least $1.0 billion, or (iii) in whigfe are deemed to be a large accelerated fileghwvhieans the market value of
our common stock that is held by non-affiliatesesas $700 million as of the prior June0and (b) the date on which we
have issued more than $1.0 billion in non-convéatdebt during the prior three-year period. Foloswm as we remain an
“emerging growth company” we may take advantageeatfain exemptions from various reporting requirete¢hat are
applicable to other public companies that are ratérging growth companies” including, but not liadtto, not being required
to comply with the auditor attestation requiremesftSection 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act. We capnedict if investors
will find our common stock less attractive becawsewill rely on some or all of these exemptionssdme investors find our
common stock less attractive as a result, therelmayless active trading market for our commonksémd our stock price may
be more volatile.

In addition, Section 107 of the JOBS Act also pdesi that an “emerging growth company” can take ridege of the
extended transition period provided in Section (2(dB) of the Securities Act for complying with new revised accounting
standards. In other words, an “emerging growth caomp can delay the adoption of certain accountiagdards until those
standards would otherwise apply to private commaiiée
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are choosing to take advantage of the extendediti@nperiod for complying with new or revised aaating standards, which
may make it more difficult for investors and setias analysts to evaluate us since our financééstents may not be
comparable to companies that comply with public pany effective dates and may result in less invesiofidence.

If we fail to maintain an effective system of inteal control over financial reporting, we may not kable to accurately report
our financial results or prevent fraud. As a resulstockholders could lose confidence in our finaatand other public
reporting, which would harm our business and theatting price of our common stock.

Effective internal controls over financial repodiare necessary for us to provide reliable findmrejports and, together with
adequate disclosure controls and procedures, argndel to prevent fraud. Any failure to implemesquired new or improved
controls, or difficulties encountered in their irapientation could cause us to fail to meet our téppobligations. In addition,
any testing by us conducted in connection with iBaet04 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, or the subseiesting by our
independent registered public accounting firm (whedertaken, as noted below), may reveal deficénici our internal
controls over financial reporting that are deenwedd material weaknesses or that may require pctispeor retroactive
changes to our consolidated financial statemenidenttify other areas for further attention or ilmpement. Inferior internal
controls could also cause investors to lose coniden our reported financial information, whictutsbhave a negative effect
on the trading price of our common stock.

We are required to disclose changes made in ogimiak control and procedures on a quarterly basisoar management is
required to assess the effectiveness of theseatemtnnually. However, for as long as we are anetgiimg growth company”
under the recently enacted JOBS Act, our indepéeragistered public accounting firm will not be végd to attest to the
effectiveness of our internal control over finahceporting pursuant to Section 404. We could bemerging growth company
for up to five years. An independent assessmettteoéffectiveness of our internal controls coultedeproblems that our
management’s assessment might not. Undetectediatateaknesses in our internal controls could leefihancial statement
restatements and require us to incur the expensaraddiation.

Our status as an “emerging growth company” underdldOBS Act may make it more difficult to raise céglias and when
we need it.

Because of the exemptions from various reportiggiirements provided to us as an “emerging growthgany” and
because we will have an extended transition pddodomplying with new or revised financial accongtstandards, we may
be less attractive to investors and it may bediffifor us to raise additional capital as and wivemeed it. Investors may be
unable to compare our business with other compéamiesr industry if they believe that our financélcounting is not as
transparent as other companies in our industryelfire unable to raise additional capital as anghwte need it, our financial
condition and results of operations may be matgréaid adversely affected.

New or modified laws or regulations governing ouperations may adversely affect our business.

We and our portfolio companies are subject to r&@tiph by laws at the U.S. federal, state and Imadls. These laws and
regulations, as well as their interpretation, magrge from time to time, and new laws, regulatiamd interpretations may also
come into effect. Any such new or changed lawsegulations could have a material adverse effecturrbusiness.

Additionally, changes to the laws and regulatioogggning our operations related to permitted inwestts may cause us to
alter our investment strategy in order to availselwes of new or different opportunities. Such gesncould result in material
differences to the strategies and plans set farthis annual report on Form 10-K and may shiftiouestment focus from the
areas of expertise of Stellus Capital Managemeattter types of investments in which Stellus Capitanagement may have
little or no expertise or experience. Any such dem if they occur, could have a material adveffeeteon our results of
operations and the value of your investment.
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Our board of directors may change our investmenjexdiive, operating policies and strategies withquitor notice or
stockholder approval.

Our board of directors has the authority, excepitherwise provided in the 1940 Act, to modify caiive certain of our
operating policies and strategies without prioiceand without stockholder approval. However, abseockholder approval,
we may not change the nature of our business Ena@esase to be, or withdraw our election as, anessi development
company. We cannot predict the effect any charmesit current operating policies and strategiesldvhave on our business,
operating results and the market price of our comstock. Nevertheless, any such changes could selyaffect our business
and impair our ability to make distributions to @tockholders.

Pending legislation may allow us to incur additiohkeverage.

As a business development company under the 194Quicare generally not permitted to incur indebtss unless
immediately after such borrowing we have an assetrage for total borrowings of at least 200% (tfee amount of debt may
not exceed 50% of the value of our assets). Raegisiation introduced in the U.S. House of Repnéstives, if passed, would
modify this section of the 1940 Act and increasedmount of debt that business development compamaég incur by
modifying the percentage from 200% to 150%. Assaltewe may be able to incur additional indebtedria the future and
therefore your risk of an investment in common ktoay increase.

Our board of directors is authorized to reclassdyny unissued shares of common stock into one or enolasses of preferred
stock, which could convey special rights and pragkes to its owners.

Under Maryland General Corporation Law and our traour board of directors is authorized to clgsand reclassify any
authorized but unissued shares of stock into omaare classes of stock, including preferred stétlar to issuance of shares of
each class or series, the board of directors willdmuired by Maryland law and our charter to kettérms, preferences,
conversion or other rights, voting powers, restrit, limitations as to stockholder distributiogsalifications and terms or
conditions of redemption for each class or sefiésis, the board of directors could authorize teaasice of shares of preferred
stock with terms and conditions which could haweéffect of delaying, deferring or preventing ang@ction or a change in
control that might involve a premium price for hetd of our common stock or that otherwise mighinbéeir best interest. The
cost of any such reclassification would be born@iycommon stockholders. Certain matters undet#4® Act require the
separate vote of the holders of any issued andamdting preferred stock. For example, the 1940phovides that holders of
preferred stock are entitled to vote separatelynfrmlders of common stock to elect two preferredlstirectors. We currently
have no plans to issue preferred stock. The isguahpreferred shares convertible into shares ofraon stock may also
reduce the net income and net asset value per shaus common stock upon conversion, provided, weawill only be
permitted to issue such convertible preferred stodke extent we comply with the requirements @ftidn 61 of the 1940 Act,
including obtaining common stockholder approvale3é effects, among others, could have an advedess eh your
investment in our common stock.

Provisions of the Maryland General Corporation Laand of our charter and bylaws could deter takeowttempts and have
an adverse impact on the price of our common stock.

The Maryland General Corporation Law and our chiatel bylaws contain provisions that may discourdeéy or make
more difficult a change in control of Stellus Capinvestment Corporation or the removal of ouediors. We are subject to
the Maryland Business Combination Act, subjectrtp applicable requirements of the 1940 Act. Ourrtiad directors has
adopted a resolution exempting from the Businesslfimation Act any business combination betweennasaany other person,
subject to prior approval of such business comhmnaty our board of directors, including approvalebmajority of our
independent directors. If the resolution exempboginess combinations is repealed or our boarireftdrs does not approve a
business combination, the Business Combinatiom#sst discourage third parties from trying to acqueioetrol of us and
increase the difficulty of consummating such arfOur bylaws exempt from the Maryland Control i@h&cquisition Act
acquisitions of our stock by any person. If we acheur bylaws to repeal the exemption from the Gdr8hare Acquisition
Act, the Control Share Acquisition Act also may matkmore difficult for a third party to obtain cwal of us and increase the
difficulty of consummating such a transaction.
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We have also adopted measures that may makeiduttiffor a third party to obtain control of usclnding provisions of our
charter classifying our board of directors in thetasses serving staggered three-year terms, ahdreming our board of
directors to classify or reclassify shares of dack in one or more classes or series, to causistbance of additional shares of
our stock, to amend our charter without stockholgmsroval and to increase or decrease the numistranés of stock that we
have authority to issue. These provisions, as agetither provisions of our charter and bylaws, delgy, defer or prevent a
transaction or a change in control that might atlige be in the best interests of our stockholders.

Stellus Capital Management can resign as our invasint adviser or administrator upon 60 days’ notiard we may not be
able to find a suitable replacement within that tenor at all, resulting in a disruption in our opetions that could adversely
affect our financial condition, business and resalbf operations.

Stellus Capital Management has the right undemibestment advisory agreement to resign as ouisinvent adviser at any
time upon 60 days’ written notice, whether we héotend a replacement or not. Similarly, Stellus @alglanagement has the
right under the administration agreement to resigany time upon 60 days’ written notice, whetherhave found a
replacement or not. If Stellus Capital Managemean ¥ resign, we may not be able to find a newstment adviser or
administrator or hire internal management with Eméxpertise and ability to provide the same arieglent services on
acceptable terms within 60 days, or at all. If we @nable to do so quickly, our operations ardyike experience a disruption,
our financial condition, business and results afraions as well as our ability to pay distribuido our stockholders are likely
to be adversely affected and the market price osbares may decline. In addition, the coordinatibaur internal
management and investment or administrative aiettyins applicable, is likely to suffer if we argble to identify and reach an
agreement with a single institution or group of@xeses having the expertise possessed by Stedpgadl Management. Even
if we are able to retain comparable managementthehénternal or external, the integration of sutdinagement and their lack
of familiarity with our investment objective mayskét in additional costs and time delays that nadweasely affect our
business, financial condition, results of operatiand cash flows.

We are highly dependent on information systems aydtems failures could significantly disrupt our bimess, which may, in
turn, negatively affect the market price of our conon stock and our ability to make distributions tar stockholders.

Our business is highly dependent on the commupicgatnd information systems of Stellus Capital Mgemaent. In
addition, certain of these systems are providestétlus Capital Management by third party servieevigers. Any failure or
interruption of such systems, including as a residhe termination of an agreement with any sinifdtparty service provider,
could cause delays or other problems in our a@#ifThis, in turn, could have a material adveffeceon our operating results
and negatively affect the market price of our commtwck and our ability to make distributions ta stockholders.

Recent market conditions materially and adverseffeated debt and equity capital markets in the UrdtStates and around
the world. If these conditions recur, debt capitalay not be available to us on favorable terms, vaH, which could
negatively affect our financial performance and nels.

From 2007 through 2009, the global capital markatserienced a period of disruption resulting iréasing spreads
between the yields realized on riskier debt seiegriind those realized on risk-free securitiesaatadgk of liquidity in parts of
the debt capital markets, significant write-offglie financial services sector relating to subprnnwtgages and the re-pricing
of credit risk in the broadly syndicated markete$é events, along with the deterioration of theshrmumarket, illiquid market
conditions, declining business and consumer conéidand the failure of major financial institutidnghe United States, led to
a decline of general economic conditions. This eouin decline materially and adversely affectedliteader financial and
credit markets and reduced the availability of ceiit equity capital for the market as a whole aniithancial firms in
particular during that time. These conditions megur (for example, as a result of a broadeningp@fcurrent Euro zone credit
crisis), in which case, to the extent that we wishse debt to fund our investments, the debt abibiait will be available to us,
if at all, may be at a higher cost, and on ternts@mnditions that may be less favorable, than wigaéxpect, which could
negatively affect our financial performance anditess A prolonged period of market illiquidity maguse us to reduce the
volume
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of loans and debt securities we originate and/od fand adversely affect the value of our portfoliestments, which could
have a material and adverse effect on our busifieascial condition, results of operations andhcBisws.

Risks Related to our Investments

Economic recessions or downturns could impair ousrtfolio companies and harm our operating results.

Many of the portfolio companies in which we maked &xpect to make, investments, including thoseeetily included in
our portfolio, are likely to be susceptible to ecoric slowdowns or recessions and may be unableg@ayrour loans during
such periods. Therefore, the number of our noneperihg assets are likely to increase and the vaflwair portfolio is likely to
decrease during such periods. Adverse economidtgmmgimay decrease the value of collateral segusome of our loans and
debt securities and the value of our equity investis. Economic slowdowns or recessions could ledidancial losses in our
portfolio and a decrease in revenues, net incordeaasets. Unfavorable economic conditions alsodciogkease our funding
costs, limit our access to the capital marketsesult in a decision by lenders not to extend credits. These events could
prevent us from increasing our investments and lemoperating results.

A portfolio company’s failure to satisfy financiat operating covenants imposed by us or other isnctuld lead to
defaults and, potentially, termination of its loamal foreclosure on its assets, which could triggess-defaults under other
agreements and jeopardize our portfolio comparnlyiliyato meet its obligations under the loans aedbt securities that we
hold. We may incur expenses to the extent necessasek recovery upon default or to negotiate tems with a defaulting
portfolio company. In addition, lenders in certaases can be subject to lender liability claimsafdions taken by them when
they become too involved in the borrower’s busir@saxercise control over a borrower. It is possiblat we could become
subject to a lender’s liability claim, including asesult of actions taken if we render significar@nagerial assistance to the
borrower. Furthermore, if one of our portfolio coamges were to file for bankruptcy protection, akvaptcy court might re-
characterize our debt holding and subordinateradl portion of our claim to claims of other cred#oeven though we may have
structured our investment as senior secured déletlikelihood of such a re-characterization woutghehd on the facts and
circumstances, including the extent to which wevigled managerial assistance to that portfolio camipa

Our investments in leveraged portfolio companiesyntze risky, and we could lose all or part of ouniestment.

Investment in leveraged companies involves a nurabsignificant risks. Leveraged companies in whighinvest may
have limited financial resources and may be unabiaeet their obligations under their loans and deburities that we hold.
Such developments may be accompanied by a det@sioia the value of any collateral and a reduciiothe likelihood of our
realizing any guarantees that we may have obtamednnection with our investment. Smaller levethgempanies also may
have less predictable operating results and mayinreequbstantial additional capital to support tlogierations, finance their
expansion or maintain their competitive position.

We may hold the loans and debt securities of ley@d companies that may, due to the significant agarg volatility typical
of such companies, enter into bankruptcy proceeding

Leveraged companies may experience bankruptcyrolasifinancial distress. The bankruptcy processdaumber of
significant inherent risks. Many events in a bapkey proceeding are the product of contested nsatted adversary
proceedings and are beyond the control of the ttmesdiA bankruptcy filing by a portfolio company ynadversely and
permanently affect that company. If the proceedngpnverted to a liquidation, the value of thetfmdio company may not
equal the liquidation value that was believed tisteat the time of the investment. The duratiom dankruptcy proceeding is
also difficult to predict, and a creditor’s retwn investment can be adversely affected by delatistbie plan of reorganization
or liquidation ultimately becomes effective. Theradistrative costs in connection with a bankrugtcgceeding are frequently
high and would be paid out of the debtor’s estaitar oo any return to creditors. Because the staedslfor classification of
claims under bankruptcy law are vague, our infl@awith respect to the class of securities or otlitigations we own may be
lost by increases in the number and amount of dlamthe
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same class or by different classification and tret. In the early stages of the bankruptcy prqodéessoften difficult to
estimate the extent of, or even to identify, angtoment claims that might be made. In additiomtaia claims that have
priority by law (for example, claims for taxes) mag substantial.

Our investments in private and middle-market poittbocompanies are risky, and we could lose all @rpof our investment.

Investment in private and middle-market companieslves a number of significant risks. Generaliyiel public
information exists about these companies, and Weorethe ability of Stellus Capital Managementigéstment professionals
to obtain adequate information to evaluate therg@kreturns from investing in these companiesvéfare unable to uncover
all material information about these companiesnves not make a fully informed investment decisiamg we may lose money
on our investments. Middle-market companies maHiavited financial resources and may be unablaget their obligations
under their loans and debt securities that we aldch may be accompanied by a deterioration invdiae of any collateral
and a reduction in the likelihood of our realizizngy guarantees we may have obtained in connecitbrowr investment. In
addition, such companies typically have shorterafireg histories, narrower product lines and smatlarket shares than larger
businesses, which tend to render them more vultestalzompetitors’ actions and market conditiorsswell as general
economic downturns. Additionally, middle-market quamies are more likely to depend on the managetaksmits and efforts
of a small group of persons. Therefore, the dediffability, resignation or termination of one ormof these persons could
have a material adverse impact on one or moreegpdintfolio companies we invest in and, in turnusnMiddle-market
companies also may be parties to litigation and beagngaged in rapidly changing businesses wittiymts subject to a
substantial risk of obsolescence. In addition,exacutive officers, directors and investment adwvisay, in the ordinary course
of business, be named as defendants in litigatisimg from our investments in portfolio companies.

The lack of liquidity in our investments may advety affect our business.

Most of our assets are invested in illiquid loand aecurities, and a substantial portion of ouegtments in leveraged
companies are subject to legal and other restnistan resale or are otherwise less liquid than rogyadly traded public
securities. The illiquidity of these investmentsynmaake it difficult for us to sell such investmeiftthe need arises. In addition,
if we are required to liquidate all or a portionafr portfolio quickly, we may realize significapiless than the value at which
we have previously recorded our investments. Adsmoted above, we may be limited or prohibitedunability to sell or
otherwise exit certain positions in our portfol®such a transaction could be considered a jains#ction prohibited by the
1940 Act.

Price declines and illiquidity in the corporate detmarkets may adversely affect the fair value ofrquortfolio investments,
reducing our net asset value through increased netealized depreciation.

As a business development company, we are requgireary our investments at market value or, ifmarket value is
ascertainable, at fair value as determined in daitkd by our board of directors. As part of theuation process, we may take
into account the following types of factors, ifeeant, in determining the fair value of our investits:

« available current market data, including relevaamd applicable market trading and transaction @vaiges;
« applicable market yields and multiples;

e security covenants;

« call protection provisions;

« information rights;

« the nature and realizable value of any collateral

* the portfolio company’s ability to make paymerits earnings and discounted cash flows and th&etaim which it
does business;

43




TABLE OF CONTENTS

e comparisons of financial ratios of peer compatties are public;
e comparable merger and acquisition transactiomd; a
« the principal market and enterprise values.

When an external event such as a purchase tramsagtiblic offering or subsequent equity sale ogcwe use the pricing
indicated by the external event to corroboratevaluation. We record decreases in the market valuéar values of our
investments as unrealized depreciation. Declingsiges and liquidity in the corporate debt markats/ result in significant
net unrealized depreciation in our portfolio. Thieet of all of these factors on our portfolio maduce our net asset value by
increasing net unrealized depreciation in our pticf Depending on market conditions, we could ingwbstantial realized
losses and may suffer additional unrealized loss&sgure periods, which could have a material adgeffect on our business,
financial condition, results of operations and ciaivs.

We are a non-diversified investment company witliie meaning of the 1940 Act, and therefore we ar himited with
respect to the proportion of our assets that mayimessted in securities of a single issuer.

We are classified as a non-diversified investmemtgany within the meaning of the 1940 Act, whichamethat we are not
limited by the 1940 Act with respect to the projmortof our assets that we may invest in securifes single issuer. Beyond
the asset diversification requirements associafddour qualification as a RIC under the Code, wendt have fixed guidelines
for diversification. To the extent that we assuargé positions in the securities of a small nundféssuers or our investments
are concentrated in relatively few industries, et asset value may fluctuate to a greater exeant that of a diversified
investment company as a result of changes in ttamfiial condition or the market's assessment ofsthger. We may also be
more susceptible to any single economic or regoladocurrence than a diversified investment company

Our failure to make follow-on investments in our pifolio companies could impair the value of our pifolio.

Following an initial investment in a portfolio compy, we may make additional investments in thatfplaws company as
“follow-on” investments, in seeking to:

* increase or maintain in whole or in part our positas a creditor or equity ownership percentageportfolio company
e exercise warrants, options or convertible seiasithat were acquired in the original or subsetfirancing; or
e preserve or enhance the value of our investment.

We have discretion to make follow-on investmentbjact to the availability of capital resourcesili@ on our part to
make follow-on investments may, in some circumstaneopardize the continued viability of a poitf@ompany and our
initial investment, or may result in a missed oppoity for us to increase our participation in asessful operation. Even if we
have sufficient capital to make a desired followhovrestment, we may elect not to make a follow+orestment because we
may not want to increase our level of risk, becauserefer other opportunities or because we dnibited by compliance with
business development company requirements of th@ A8t or RIC requirements under the Code. Ouiitgtid make follow-
on investments may also be limited by Stellus GaManagement’s allocation policy.

Because we generally do not hold controlling equitiyerests in our portfolio companies, we may na &ble to exercise
control over our portfolio companies or to preveticisions by management of our portfolio companibat could decrease
the value of our investments.

We do not hold controlling equity positions in asfithe portfolio companies included in our portfoéind, although we may
do so in the future, we do not currently intendhddd controlling equity positions in our portfolammpanies (including those
included in our portfolio). As a result, we are jgab to the risk that a portfolio company may maksiness decisions with
which we disagree, and that the management anckiolders of a portfolio company may take risketherwise act in ways
that are adverse to our interests.
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Due to the lack of liquidity of the debt and equityestments that we hold in our portfolio companige may not be able to
dispose of our investments in the event we disagrttethe actions of a portfolio company and magréiore suffer a decrease
in the value of our investments.

Defaults by our portfolio companies will harm ourperating results.

A portfolio company’s failure to satisfy financiat operating covenants imposed by us or other isnctuld lead to
defaults and, potentially, termination of its loamsl foreclosure on its assets. This could triggess-defaults under other
agreements and jeopardize such portfolio compaathyily to meet its obligations under the loangiebt or equity securities
that we hold. We may incur expenses to the extecgéssary to seek recovery upon default or to reigatiew terms, which
may include the waiver of certain financial covetsawith a defaulting portfolio company.

Prepayments of our debt investments by our portiaibmpanies could adversely impact our results pémtions and ability
to make stockholder distributions and result in &adine in the market price of our shares.

We are subject to the risk that the debt investmest make in our portfolio companies may be repaiar to maturity. We
expect that our investments will generally allow fepayment at any time subject to certain persaliéhen this occurs, we
intend to generally reinvest these proceeds in tearg investments, pending their future investnemiccordance with our
investment strategy. These temporary investmentsypically have substantially lower yields tharetdebt being prepaid, and
we could experience significant delays in reinvesthese amounts. Any future investment may alsat b@ver yields than the
debt that was repaid. As a result, our resultspefations could be materially adversely affectezhi# or more of our portfolio
companies elects to prepay amounts owed to ustidddily, prepayments could negatively impact obitity to make, or the
amount of, stockholder distributions with respecotir common stock, which could result in a declinthe market price of our
shares.

Our portfolio companies may incur debt that rankgually with, or senior to, our investments in suclompanies.

We invest a portion of our capital in second liex aubordinated loans issued by our portfolio camgsa The portfolio
companies usually have, or may be permitted torjrather debt that ranks equally with, or senigithe loans in which we
invest. By their terms, such debt instruments mayide that the holders are entitled to receivenpayt of interest or principal
on or before the dates on which we are entitle@t¢eive payments in respect of the loans in whiehrwest. Also, in the event
of insolvency, liquidation, dissolution, reorgartipa or bankruptcy of a portfolio company, holdefglebt instruments ranking
senior to our investment in that portfolio compavguld typically be entitled to receive paymentuti before we receive any
distribution in respect of our investment. Aftepaging senior creditors, a portfolio company mayrave any remaining assets
to use for repaying its obligation to us. In theecaf debt ranking equally with loans in which wedst, we would have to share
any distributions on an equal and ratable basis atther creditors holding such debt in the everaroinsolvency, liquidation,
dissolution, reorganization or bankruptcy of thievant portfolio company.

Additionally, certain loans that we make to poitiatompanies may be secured on a second priordig lbg the same
collateral securing senior secured debt of suchpemnes. The first priority liens on the collaterall secure the portfolio
company’s obligations under any outstanding seshétit and may secure certain other future debtntiagtbe permitted to be
incurred by the portfolio company under the agregmsgoverning the loans. The holders of obligatieesured by first priority
liens on the collateral will generally control tliguidation of, and be entitled to receive procefrdm, any realization of the
collateral to repay their obligations in full bedaus. In addition, the value of the collaterallia event of liquidation will depend
on market and economic conditions, the availabditpuyers and other factors. There can be no assarthat the proceeds, if
any, from sales of all of the collateral would béfigient to satisfy the loan obligations securgtdtie second priority liens after
payment in full of all obligations secured by tlvstfpriority liens on the collateral. If such pemxls were not sufficient to repay
amounts outstanding under the loan obligationsrsédoy the second priority liens, then we, to tkieet not repaid from the
proceeds of the sale of the collateral, will onvé an unsecured claim against the portfolio colyipaemaining assets, if any.
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We may also make unsecured loans to portfolio comegameaning that such loans will not benefit framy interest in
collateral of such companies. Liens on such paafcbmpanies’ collateral, if any, will secure tharfolio company’s
obligations under its outstanding secured debtraayg secure certain future debt that is permittdoetincurred by the portfolio
company under its secured loan agreements. Theisobd obligations secured by such liens will galtgrcontrol the
liquidation of, and be entitled to receive procefedm, any realization of such collateral to replagir obligations in full before
us. In addition, the value of such collateral ia #vent of liquidation will depend on market andremmic conditions, the
availability of buyers and other factors. There bamo assurance that the proceeds, if any, frées s such collateral would
be sufficient to satisfy our unsecured loan oblaya after payment in full of all secured loan ghtions. If such proceeds were
not sufficient to repay the outstanding secured loialigations, then our unsecured claims would rapkally with the unpaid
portion of such secured creditors’ claims agaihstgortfolio company’s remaining assets, if any.

The rights we may have with respect to the colidteecuring the loans we make to our portfolio canigs with senior debt
outstanding may also be limited pursuant to thesenf one or more intercreditor agreements tha¢mter into with the holders
of such senior debt. Under a typical intercreditgreement, at any time that obligations that hagebenefit of the first priority
liens are outstanding, any of the following actitimst may be taken in respect of the collaterdl vélat the direction of the
holders of the obligations secured by the firsoty liens:

< the ability to cause the commencement of enfomrgmroceedings against the collateral;
< the ability to control the conduct of such pradiegs;

< the approval of amendments to collateral docusjent

» releases of liens on the collateral; and

e waivers of past defaults under collateral docurmien

We may not have the ability to control or directisactions, even if our rights are adversely affect

If we make subordinated investments, the obligordtte portfolio companies may not generate suffistecash flow to service
their debt obligations to us.

We may make subordinated investments that rankabetber obligations of the obligor in right of pagmnt. Subordinated
investments are subject to greater risk of detaalh senior obligations as a result of adversegdsim the financial condition
of the obligor or economic conditions in generfilvé make a subordinated investment in a portfiolimpany, the portfolio
company may be highly leveraged, and its relatididjn debt-to-equity ratio may create increasekbribat its operations might
not generate sufficient cash flow to service alit®tebt obligations.

The disposition of our investments may result inntimgent liabilities.

Substantially all of our investments involve loam&l private securities. In connection with the d&sfion of an investment
in loans and private securities, we may be requivadake representations about the business aanciis affairs of the
portfolio company typical of those made in connattivith the sale of a business. We may also benexjto indemnify the
purchasers of such investment to the extent thasach representations turn out to be inaccuratétbrrespect to potential
liabilities. These arrangements may result in cayent liabilities that ultimately result in fundimdpligations that we must
satisfy through our return of distributions prevsumade to us.

We may not realize gains from our equity investment

When we invest in loans and debt securities, we atgyire warrants or other equity securities offptio companies as
well. We may also invest in equity securities dilyecTo the extent we hold equity investments, wk attempt to dispose of
them and realize gains upon our disposition of thdowever, the equity interests we receive mayapptreciate in value and,
may decline in value. As a result, we may not He sbrealize gains from our equity interests, anygl gains that we do realize
on the disposition of any equity interests maybw®sufficient to offset any other losses we expege
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Risks Relating to Our Common Stock

Shares of closed-end investment companies, inclgdiusiness development companies, may trade aseodint to their net
asset value.

Shares of closed-end investment companies, indudiisiness development companies, may trade atautit from net
asset value. This characteristic of closed-endsimrent companies and business development comparsegarate and distinct
from the risk that our net asset value per shargdealine. We cannot predict whether our commonkstuaill trade at, above or
below net asset value.

There is a risk that you may not receive distribortis or that our distributions may not grow over tévand a portion of our
distributions may be a return of capital.

We intend to make distributions on a quarterly ®asiour stockholders out of assets legally avhlédr distribution (i.e.,
not subject to any legal restrictions under Marglléaw on the distribution thereof). We cannot assuou that we will achieve
investment results that will allow us to make acéfped level of cash distributions or year-to-y@aereases in cash distributions.
Our ability to pay distributions might be adversaffected by the impact of one or more of the fadtors described in this
annual report on Form 10-K. Due to the asset coeetest applicable to us under the 1940 Act assabss development
company, we may be limited in our ability to makstigbutions. In addition, for so long as the Ctdehcility, or any other
borrowing facility that we enter into, is outstamglj we anticipate that we may be required by itsi$eto use all payments of
interest and principal that we receive from ourent investments as well as any proceeds recereed the sale of our current
investments to repay amounts outstanding thereundiéch could adversely affect our ability to makistributions.

When we make distributions, we will be requirediédermine the extent to which such distributioresg@aid out of current
or accumulated earnings and profits. Distributiinexcess of current and accumulated earnings eofidspwill be treated as a
non-taxable return of capital to the extent ofrarestor’s basis in our stock and, assuming thataestor holds our stock as a
capital asset, thereafter as a capital gain.

Investing in our common stock may involve an abaserage degree of risk.

The investments we make in accordance with oursitnvent objective may result in a higher amounis¥, and higher
volatility or loss of principal, than alternativeviestment options. Our investments in portfolio pames may be speculative
and, therefore, an investment in our common stoagk not be suitable for someone with lower risk afee.

The market price of our common stock may fluctuegignificantly.

The market price and liquidity of the market forsts of our common stock may be significantly aéddy numerous
factors, some of which are beyond our control aag mot be directly related to our operating perfange. These factors
include:

< significant volatility in the market price andtfing volume of securities of business developroentpanies or other
companies in our sector, which is not necessaglted to the operating performance of these coiapan

e changes in regulatory policies or tax guidelimmsticularly with respect to RICs or business d@wement companies;
« loss of our qualification as a RIC or businesgefi@oment company;

e changes in earnings or variations in operatisglts;

< changes in the value of our portfolio of investise

< changes in accounting guidelines governing vanaif our investments;

< any shortfall in revenue or net income or anyéase in losses from levels expected by investossaurities analysts;

e departure of Stellus Capital Management’s kepqeanel;
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e operating performance of companies comparahbls;iand

e general economic trends and other external factor

Sales of substantial amounts of our common stocklie public market may have an adverse effect oa tharket price of
our common stock.

Upon expiration of any applicable lock-up periosisares issued by us in connection with our acduisdf the initial
portfolio to the private investment fund to whid¢tetD. E. Shaw group serves as investment advidlegevierally be freely
tradable in the public market, subject to the m@imris and applicable holding periods set forthiheRL.44 under the Securities
Act. Sales of substantial amounts of our commookstihe availability of such common stock for satghe registration of such
common stock for sale could adversely affect tlevaiting market prices for our common stock. Irsttégard, we have granted
the D. E. Shaw group fund certain registration tsgtursuant to which we have agreed to prepardilendith the SEC a
registration statement on Form N-2 pursuant to Raeto register the resale of the shares of oomeon stock we issued to it
in connection with our purchase of the initial folib. Specifically, we have agreed to use our cartially reasonable efforts
to file with the SEC promptly after a request by th. E. Shaw group fund to file such a registratitatement with the SEC.
We have also agreed to use our commercially reaémefforts to cause such a registration statenoeb¢ declared effective by
the SEC within 90 days of the initial filing thefegith the SEC. The D.E. Shaw group fund may ongreise these registration
rights after May 12, 2013 and then, with limiteadeptions, only on two occasions. If this occurspitild impair our ability to
raise additional capital through the sale of s¢i@srishould we desire to do so.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

None.

Iltem 2. Properties

We do not own any real estate or other physicgbemes materially important to our operation. @eadquarters are
located at 10000 Memorial Drive, Suite 500, Housfoexas 77024. As of April 1, 2013 we will relocatgr executive office to
4400 Post Oak Parkway, Suite 2200, Houston, Téxasphone number will remain the same. We also tammioffices in the
New York City area, San Francisco, California, #mel\Washington, D.C. area. All locations are predido us by Stellus
Capital Management pursuant to the administratgreement. We believe that our office facilities ewerently suitable and
adequate for our business.

Iltem 3. Legal Proceedings

We are not currently subject to any material lgateedings, nor, to our knowledge, is any matée@dl proceeding
threatened against us. From time to time, we may |berty to certain legal proceedings in the onditaurse of business,
including proceedings relating to the enforcemdmiur rights under contracts with our portfolio coamies. While the outcome
of these legal proceedings cannot be predicted eeittainty, we do not expect that these proceediiljhave a material effect
upon our financial condition or results of operatio

Iltem 4. Mine Safety Disclosures

Not applicable.
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PART Il
Item 5.Market for Registrant’'s Common Equity, Related Stodkholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Sectties
Price Range of Common Stock

Our common stock is traded on the New York Stoc&Haxge under the symbol “SCM.” The following tabéts forth the
range of high and low sales prices of our commonksas reported on the New York Stock Exchangeéah fiscal quarter
since our IPO on November 7, 2012:

Price Range
High Low
Fiscal 2012
Fourth quarter (from November 7, 2012) $ 163t $ 15.0C
Fiscal 2013
First quarter (through March 8, 2013) $ 167 $ 1451

The last reported sale price for our common statkhe New York Stock Exchange on March 8, 2013 $&523 per share.
As of March 8, 2013, we had 27 shareholders ofrceco

Shares of BDCs may trade at a market price tHasssthan the value of the net assets attributaliteose shares. The
possibility that our shares of common stock walde at a discount from net asset value per shatepremiums that are
unsustainable over the long term are separate iatidad from the risk that our net asset valuegi@are will decrease. It is not
possible to predict whether the common stock waltie at, above, or below net asset value per share.

Dividends

Our dividends, if any, are determined by our bazrdirectors. We intend to elect to be treatedfiéoleral income tax
purposes as a RIC under Subchapter M of the Code fualify as a RIC, we will not be taxed on awestment company
taxable income or realized net capital gains, éoektent that such taxable income or gains araliiséd, or deemed to be
distributed, to stockholders on a timely basis.

To qualify for RIC tax treatment, we must, amonlestthings, distribute at least 90% of our netmmady income and
realized net short-term capital gains in exceggalized net long-term capital losses, if any. Dejieg on the level of taxable
income earned in a tax year, we may choose to éamnward taxable income in excess of current yéstridutions into the next
tax year and pay a 4% excise tax on such incomg .sfioh carryover taxable income must be distribtheough a dividend
declared prior to filing the final tax return reddtto the year which generated such taxable inciveecan offer no assurance
that we will achieve results that will permit thaypnent of any cash distributions and, if we issr@ar securities, we may be
prohibited from making distributions if doing sous&s us to fail to maintain the asset coveragesratipulated by the 1940 Act
or if distributions are limited by the terms of amfyour borrowings.

We have adopted an “opt out” dividend reinvestnman (“DRIP”) for our common stockholders. As aulgsif we make
cash distributions, then stockholders’ cash distitims will be automatically reinvested in additbshares of our common
stock, unless they specifically “opt out” of the&idiend reinvestment plan so as to receive cashiiiibns.

The following table reflects the distributions [stare that our board of directors has declareduoc@mmon stock since
our IPO in November 2012:

Amount Per
Date Declared Record Date Payment Date Share
Fiscal 2012
December 7, 2012 December 21, 201. December 27,201 $ 0.181:
Total (2012) $ 0.181:
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Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities

On September 28, 2012, we issued 100 shares of oarstack to Stellus Capital Management for $500j@l@bnnection
with the organization of Stellus Capital Investm€otrporation. The issuance of such shares was abtniee exempt from
registration under the Securities Act of 1933 iiree on Section 4(2) as transactions by an issoeinvolving a public
offering. On October 18, 2012, the Company declarstbck dividend to stockholders of record on Get®2, 2013. In
connection with the dividend, the Company issue@38 shares to its sole stockholder, Stellus Chlditmagement, on
October 25, 2013.

On November 2, 2012, we offered and sold 849,98%eshof common stock in a private placement tagegurchasers,
including persons and entities associated withi&elapital Management, for an aggregate purchase @f $12.7 million.
The issuance of such shares was deemed to be ekemptegistration under the Securities Act of 1938eliance on Section 4
(2) and Rule 506 thereunder as transactions bgsarei not involving a public offering.

On November 7, 2012, we issued 1,943,943 sharesmofon stock for an aggregate value of $29.2 miltman affiliate of
the D. E. Shaw group in connection with the purehafsour initial investment portfolio. The issuarafesuch shares was
deemed to be exempt from registration under therBixs Act of 1933 in reliance on Section 4(2) &wle 506 thereunder as
transactions by an issuer not involving a publiehg.

During the period from Inception through Decembgr&012, we issued a total of 7,746.773 sharesmiwon stock under
the DRIP. This issuance was not subject to thestegion requirements of the Securities Act of 1938 aggregate value of
the shares of our common stock issued under th@DRE approximately $113 thousand.

Use of Proceeds from Recent Sales of Registered @édeEs

On November 7, 2013, our registration statemerfiam N-2 (SEC File No. 333-184195) for the IPO lodues of our
common stock became effective. We sold 9,200,088eshof the Company’s common stock in connectidh thie IPO at an
aggregate offering price of $138 million. The Compased all of the net proceeds from the IPO tayepportion of the
outstanding indebtedness under its $156 millioditfacility with SunTrust Bank. Raymond James &tifel, Nicolaus &
Company, Incorporated served as joint book-runniagagers, Robert W. Baird & Co. Incorporated angeédpeimer & Co.
Inc. served as co-lead managers, and Janney Moetgddeott LLC and Sterne, Agee & Leach, Inc. sem®do-managers for
the IPO.

Underwriting discounts and commissions for the sda&old in the IPO totaled $8.3 million. Stellupifal Management
agreed to pay $3.3 million of such underwritingcdisnts and commissions. The Company also paid $88&and in other
expenses relating to the IPO. None of these expameee paid directly or indirectly to our directooéficers or associates, or to
persons owning 10% or more of our common stockat of other affiliates. After deducting underwrgidiscounts and
commissions and other expenses, we received net¢gule of $132.2 million from the IPO.

Purchases of Equity Securities

None.

Stock Performance Graph

This graph compares the return on our common skaitkthat of the Standard & Poor's 500 Stock Inded the Russell
2000 Financial Services Index, for the period fidovember 7, 2012 (initial public offering) througrecember 31, 2012. The
graph assumes that, on November 7, 2012, a pargested $100 in each of our common stock, the S&PIBdex, and the
Russell 2000 Financial Services Index. The grapasmees total stockholder return, which takes ictmant both changes in
stock price and dividends. It assumes that dividgradd are invested in like securities.
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The graph and other information furnished undes Bart Il Item 5 of this Form 10- K shall not beedeed to be “soliciting
material” or to be “filed” with the SEC or subjeactRegulation 14A or 14C, or to the liabilities®&ction 18 of the 1934 Act.
The stock price performance included in the abaeplyis not necessarily indicative of future stpdke performance.

Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The following selected financial data for the pdrfoom Inception (May 18, 2012) through DecemberZ112 and at
December 31, 2012 is derived from our financialesteents which have been audited by Grant Thorntd?, bur independent
registered public accounting firm. The data shdaddead in conjunction with our financial statenseartd related notes thereto

and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Firer@ondition and Results of Operations” includégbe/here in this
report.

Inception through
December 31, 2012

Statement of Operations Data:

Total investment income $ 3,696,43.
Total expenses 2,392,071
Net investment incom 1,304,35
Net increase in net assets resulting from opers. 1,298,42.

Per Share Data:

Net asset valu $ 14.4¢
Net investment incom 0.11
Net increase in net assets resulting from opers. 0.11
Distributions declared 0.181:

At December 31, 2012

Balance Sheet Data:

Investments at fair value $ 195,451,25
Cash and cash equivalents $ 62,131,68
Total assets $  262,542,97



Total net assets

173,845,95
Other Data:
Number of portfolio companies at period ¢ 15
Weighted average yield on debt investments 12.5%
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Iltem 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Rancial Condition and Results of Operations

Forward-Looking Statements

Some of the statements in this annual report omHAd-K constitute forward-looking statements, whielate to future
events or our future performance or financial ctodi The forward-looking statements containechis innual report on Form
10-K involve risks and uncertainties, includingtetaents as to:

« our future operating results;

* our business prospects and the prospects ofatfofio companies;

« the effect of investments that we expect to make;

e our contractual arrangements and relationshipis third parties;

e actual and potential conflicts of interest witlelfis Capital Management;

« the dependence of our future success on the @esmnomy and its effect on the industries in Whi@ invest;
« the ability of our portfolio companies to achigheir objectives;

« the use of borrowed money to finance a portioowfinvestments;

« the adequacy of our financing sources and workapgtal,

« the timing of cash flows, if any, from the opévat of our portfolio companies;

* the ability of Stellus Capital Management to lecsuitable investments for us and to monitor airdiaister our
investments;

* the ability of Stellus Capital Management toadtrand retain highly talented professionals;
e our ability to qualify and maintain our qualifitan as a RIC and as a BDC; and

« the effect of future changes in laws or regulaidincluding the interpretation of these laws esgllations by
regulatory authorities) and conditions in our opiagpareas, particularly with respect to businesgetbpment
companies or RICs.

Such forward-looking statements may include statgsnpreceded by, followed by or that otherwiselidel the words
“may,” “might,” “will,” “intend,” “should,” “could,” “can,” “would,” “expect,” “believe,” “estimate,™anticipate,” “predict,”
“potential,” “plan” or similar words.

” ” ” ” o« ” w " ” ow

We have based the forward-looking statements imelud this annual report on Form 10-K on informatavailable to us
on the date of this annual report on Form 10-K, wedaissume no obligation to update any such forlaoking statements.
Actual results could differ materially from thosetigipated in our forward-looking statements, antiife results could differ
materially from historical performance. We undeetalo obligation to revise or update any forwardklng statements, whether
as a result of new information, future events tieotise, unless required by law or SEC rule or lagn. You are advised to
consult any additional disclosures that we may nthiextly to you or through reports that we in thiure may file with the
SEC, including annual reports on Form 10-K, quérteports on Form 10-Q and current reports on F&+h

Overview

We were formed were organized as a Maryland cotjporan May 18, 2012 and formally commenced openretion
November 7, 2012. Our investment objective is taximae the total return to our stockholders in them of current income
and capital appreciation through debt and relatgitginvestments in middle-market companies.

We are an externally managed, non-diversified,edesnd investment company that has elected tochaated as a BDC
under the 1940 Act. As a BDC, we are required toply with certain regulatory requirements. For amste, we generally have
to invest at least 70% of our total assets in “fiyialy assets,”
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including securities of private or thinly tradedbtioc U.S. companies, cash, cash equivalents, lb@&mment securities and
high-quality debt investments that mature in onarye less.

As a BDC, we must not acquire any assets other“tnaalifying assets” specified in the 1940 Act wsdeat the time the
acquisition is made, at least 70% of our total @saee qualifying assets (with certain limited gpttens). Qualifying assets
include investments in “eligible portfolio compasieUnder the relevant SEC rules, the term “eligipbrtfolio company”
includes all private companies, companies whoserges are not listed on a national securitieshexgie, and certain public
companies that have listed their securities ontiama securities exchange and have a market dapiian of less than $250
million, in each case organized in the United $tate

In order to expedite the ramp-up of our investrnaativities and further our ability to meet our istment objectives on
November 7, 2012, we acquired our initial portfolidie total consideration paid was $194.4 millioonsisting of $165.2
million in cash and $29.2 million in shares of @@mmon stock based on the price of $15.00 per shaf&194.4 million in
total for 11 companies (excluding accrued inteoéstpproximately $2.3 million) from a private invegent fund to which the D.
E. Shaw group serves as investment adviser andiS@hpital Management serves as a non-discreticudr-adviser.

We financed the cash portion of the acquisitioowf initial portfolio by (i) borrowing $152.5 mithn under a $156 million
credit facility led by SunTrust Bank (the “Bridgedility”) and (ii) using the $12.7 million of proeds we received in
connection with the sale of shares of our commoaksin a private placement transaction to certairtipasers, including
persons and entities associated with Stellus dd@aaagement, at a purchase price of $15.00 peesha

On November 13, 2012, we completed our IPO and $@a0,000 shares (including 1,200,000 shares gffrthe
underwriters’ exercise of their overallotment op)iof our common stock through a group of undemwsitat an initial public
offering price of $15.00 per share. We received2i2 3nillion of total net proceeds in connectionhwtite IPO. We used the net
proceeds from our IPO and borrowings under the iCFattility to pay down all amounts outstanding enthe Bridge Facility
and terminated the Bridge Facility in conjunctioithassuch repayment.

On November 13, 2012, we entered into the CreditliBg which provides for borrowings in an aggrégamount up to
$115 million on a committed basis and an accoréioran additional $35 million for a total facilisize of $150 million. The
exercise of the accordion will require sufficiemtribwing base and additional commitments from tkisting lender group
and/or new lenders. The Credit Facility expire20 6. Borrowings under the Credit Facility beaeiest, subject to the
Company’s election, on a per annum basis equd) IdBOR plus 3.00% with no LIBOR floor or (ii) 2% plus an alternate
base rate based on the highest of the Prime Rader& Funds Rate plus 0.5% or one month LIBOR plo%. The Company
pays unused commitment fees of 0.50% per annurheoariused lender commitments under the Creditifaditterest is
payable quarterly in arrears. Any amounts borrowsder the Credit Facility will mature, and all ased and unpaid interest
thereunder will be due and payable, on NovembeRQ26. As of December 31, 2012, we had $38.0 millioborrowings
outstanding under the Credit Facility.

The Company incurred costs of $2,015,415 in conmeetith obtaining the Credit Facility, which the@pany has
recorded as prepaid loan structure fees on itsraeit of assets and liabilities and is amortizivesé fees over the life of the
Credit Facility. As of December 31, 2012, $1,94D,82 such prepaid loan structure fees have yeetarbortized.

We intend to elect to be treated for tax purposes RIC under Subchapter M of the Code. To qualfa RIC, we must,
among other things, meet certain source-of-inconteagset diversification requirements. As a RIC gererally will not have
to pay corporate-level taxes on any income weildigie to our stockholders.

Portfolio Composition and Investment Activity

Portfolio Composition

We completed 2012 with $195.5 million (at fair v@Junvested in 15 companies. As of December 312 26ur portfolio
included approximately 22.5% of first lien debt, 2% of second lien debt, 56.9% of mezzanine detht0a®%6 of equity
investments at fair value. In addition, we heldrappnately
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$50.0 million of United States Treasury securiiefair value at December 31, 2012. The UnitedeSt@teasury securities were
purchased and temporarily held in connection witimglying with RIC diversification requirements um@ubchapter M of the
Code.

We originate and invest primarily in privately-hetdddle-market companies (typically those with $&illion to $50.0
million of EBITDA) through first lien, second liemnitranche and mezzanine debt financing, ofteedimith a corresponding
equity investment. The composition of our investteers of December 31, 2012 was as follows:

Cost Fair Value
Senior Secured — First Lien $ 44,014,21  $ 44,014,21
Senior Secured — Second Lien 38,597,29 38,597,62
Unsecured Debt 111,129,87 111,125,13
Equity 1,714,28 1,714,28
Total Investments $ 195,455,67 $ 195,451,25

At December 31, 2012, our average portfolio compamgstment at amortized cost and fair value was@pmately $13
million and $13 million, respectively, and our lagg portfolio company investment by amortized ewst fair value was
approximately $33 million and $33 million, respeetiy.

At December 31, 2012, 40% of our debt investmeats interest based on floating rates (subjectterést rate floors),
such as LIBOR, and 60% bore interest at fixed rates

The weighted average yield on all of our debt itwests at December 31, 2012 was approximately 12T%8 weighted
average yield was computed using the effectivadsteates for all of our debt investments, inahgdaccretion of original issue
discount.

Investment Activity

On November 7, 2012, we acquired our initial pditféor $165.2 million in cash and $29.2 million $mares of our
common stock based on the price of $15.00 per shaf194.4 million in total (excluding accruedeargst of approximately
$2.3 million) from a private investment fund to whithe D. E. Shaw group serves as investment adamigkStellus Capital
Management serves as a non-discretionary sub-ad@se initial portfolio was comprised of a portiofithe loans to middle-
market companies that were originated over theipusvthree years by the Stellus Capital Managenmmeestment team during
their time with the D. E. Shaw group and were delé&éor our initial portfolio because they are danto the type of
investments we originate. Our initial portfolio Inded middle-market loans that had an internal rédkng of 2 or better (e.g.,
investments that were performing at or above exgtiects and whose risks were neutral or favorabtepared to the expected
risk at the time of the original investment).

Subsequent to November 7, 2012 and through DeceBih@012, we made $67.5 million of investmentg imew portfolio
companies and none for existing portfolio companies

Subsequent to November 7, 2012 and through DeceBih@012, we received $66.5 million in proceedsgipally from
prepayments of our investments and the paydowraamattization of certain other investments.

Our level of investment activity can vary substalhifrom period to period depending on many fastamcluding the
amount of debt and equity capital to middle madahpanies, the level of merger and acquisitiorvigtithe general
economic environment and the competitive envirortinfi@mthe types of investments we make.
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Asset Quality

In addition to various risk management and monigptools, Stellus Capital Management uses an imagst rating system
to characterize and monitor the credit profile ardected level of returns on each investment inpoutfolio. This investment
rating system uses a five-level numeric scale.fdlewing is a description of the conditions assted with each investment
rating:

* Investment Rating 1 is used for investments déinatperforming above expectations, and whose reskain favorable
compared to the expected risk at the time of tigiral investment.

* Investment Rating 2 is used for investments dginatperforming within expectations and whose rigksain neutral
compared to the expected risk at the time of tigiral investment. All new loans are initially rdte.

* Investment Rating 3 is used for investments déinatperforming below expectations and that recgloser monitoring,
but where no loss of return or principal is expdctortfolio companies with a rating of 3 may bé @ucompliance
with financial covenants.

« Investment Rating 4 is used for investments @natperforming substantially below expectations whdse risks have
increased substantially since the original invesitm€&hese investments are often in work out. Innesits with a rating
of 4 are those for which some loss of return buloss of principal is expected.

« Investment Rating 5 is used for investments éhatperforming substantially below expectations whdse risks have
increased substantially since the original investimehese investments are almost always in worklauestments witl
a rating of 5 are those for which some loss ofrretind principal is expected.

The following table shows the investment rankinfjewr investments at fair value as December 312201

Number of
Portfolio

Investment Rating Fair Value % of Portfolio Companies
1 $ — — —
2 195.5 10C 15
3 — — —
4 — — —
5 — — —

Total $ 195¢ 10C 15

Loans and Debt Securities on Non-Accrual Status

We will not accrue interest on loans and debt sgesiif we have reason to doubt our ability tolecl such interest. As of
December 31, 2012, we had no loans on non-accrual.

Results of Operations

We commenced operations on November 7, 2012 ineattiom with our acquisition of a $194.4 million #stment portfolio
from a private investment fund to which the D. Ba® group serves as investment adviser and Stelipgal Management
serves as a non-discretionary sub-adviser. Pribioteember 7, 2012, our activity was limited to waitis relating to our IPO.

An important measure of our financial performarscaét increase (decrease) in net assets resuitimgdperations, which
includes net investment income (loss), net realgad (loss) and net unrealized appreciation (dz@atien). Net investment
income (loss) is the difference between our incfmom interest, dividends, fees and other investnmaudme and our operating
expenses including interest on borrowed funds.rdgized gain (loss) on investments is the diffeecbetween the proceeds
received from dispositions of portfolio investmeatsl their amortized cost. Net unrealized appriecigtepreciation) on
investments is the net change in the fair valueurfinvestment portfolio.
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From Inception (May 18, 2012) through December 32012

Revenues

We generate revenue in the form of interest incomdebt investments and capital gains and distdbst if any, on
investment securities that we may acquire in pbetitompanies. Our debt investments typically haterm of five to seven
years and bear interest at a fixed or floating. raterest on our debt securities is generally pleyguarterly. Payments of
principal on our debt investments may be amortest the stated term of the investment, deferreddweral years or due
entirely at maturity. In some cases, our debt itests may pay interest in-kind, or PIK. Any outstimg principal amount of
our debt securities and any accrued but unpaideastevill generally become due at the maturity datee level of interest
income we receive is directly related to the bataoicinterest-bearing investments multiplied by wedghted average yield of
our investments. We expect that the dollar amotiiriterest and any dividend income that we earint¢cease as the size of our
investment portfolio increases. In addition, we rgaperate revenue in the form of prepayment feeandtment, loan
origination, structuring or due diligence feessféar providing significant managerial assistaned eonsulting fees.

Investment income for the period from May 18, 28 i®»ugh December 31, 2012 totaled $3.7 millionndéiest income.

Expenses

Our primary operating expenses include the paymkfaes to Stellus Capital Management under thestment advisory
agreement, our allocable portion of overhead exggenader the administration agreement and otheatipg costs described
below. We bear all other out-of-pocket costs armeeses of our operations and transactions, whighintéude:

« the cost of calculating our net asset value uidiclg the cost of any third-party valuation sersice
* the cost of effecting sales and repurchasesareshof our common stock and other securities;

» fees payable to third parties relating to makingestments, including out-of-pocket fees and egpsrassociated with
performing due diligence and reviews of prospediivestments;

« transfer agent and custodial fees;

« out-of-pocket fees and expenses associated vadtketing efforts;

« federal and state registration fees and any st@ckange listing fees;

* U.S. federal, state and local taxes;

« independent directors’ fees and expenses;

e brokerage commissions;

« fidelity bond, directors’ and officers’ liabilitinsurance and other insurance premiums;
« direct costs, such as printing, mailing, longaliee telephone and staff;

+ fees and expenses associated with independeit and outside legal costs;

e costs associated with our reporting and compéantdigations under the 1940 Act and other appleébS. federal and
state securities laws; and

» other expenses incurred by Stellus Capital Mamege or us in connection with administering ouribess, including
payments under the administration agreement tledb@ased upon our allocable portion of overheadi€sulo the
review of our board of directors).

Operating expenses totaled $2.4 million for theqeefrom Inception through December 31, 2012 antsisied of base
management fees, administrator expenses, feesddtathe Bridge Facility and the Credit Facilibyofessional fees, valuation
fees, insurance expenses, directors’ fees, and gémeral and administrative expenses.
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The base management fee for the period from Inmephirough December 31, 2012 was $0.5 million,rasigded for in the
investment advisory agreement.

Professional fees for the period from Inceptiomtiyh December 31, 2012 totaled $0.7 million andhprily related to the
legal and other expenses incurred by us in cororeatith the completion of our IPO and the closifighe Bridge Facility and
the Credit Facility. For the period from Inceptittmough December 31, 2012, fees and expensesdétatee Bridge Facility
and the Credit Facility, including interest and atization of deferred financing costs, were $0.dior.

Net Investment Income

For the period from Inception through December2,2, net investment income was $1.3 million, ad%Qer common
share (based on 12,035,023 common shares outsjeatdirecember 31, 2012).

Net Realized Gains and Losses

We measure realized gains or losses by the differéetween the net proceeds from the repaymert@asad the
amortized cost basis of the investment, using peeific identification method, without regard torealized appreciation or
depreciation previously recognized.

We did not recognize any realized gains or lossesun investments during the period from Inceptimough December
31, 2012.

Net Change in Unrealized Appreciation of Investmerand Cash Equivalents

Net change in unrealized appreciation primarilyeet the change in portfolio investment valuesrduthe reporting
period, including the reversal of previously reedppreciation or depreciation when gains or base realized.

Net change in unrealized depreciation on investmant! cash equivalents totaled $5,932 for the géram Inception
through December 31, 2012.

Net Increase in Net Assets Resulting from Operaton

For the period from Inception through DecemberZ8,2, net increase in net assets resulting fromatipas totaled $1.3
million, or $0.11 per common share (based on 12028 common shares outstanding at December 31)2012

Financial condition, liquidity and capital resources

Cash Flows from Operating and Financing Activities

Our operating activities used cash of $164.4 nrilfior the period from Inception through DecemberZ112, primarily in
connection with the purchase of investments, ifolyidhe initial investment portfolio we acquiredrimadiately prior to our IPO
from a private investment fund to which the D. Ba® group serves as investment adviser and Steipgal Management
serves as a non-discretionary sub-adviser. Ounding activities provided cash of $226.5 milliorinparily from our IPO and
borrowings under the Credit Facility.

Our liquidity and capital resources are derivedrthe Credit Facility and cash flows from operasioimcluding investment
sales and repayments, and income earned. Our primsarof funds from operations includes investmenfsortfolio companies
and other operating expenses we incur, as welleapdyment of dividends to the holders of our comistock. We used, and
expect to continue to use, these capital resoasegell as proceeds from turnover within our pdigfand from public and
private offerings of securities to finance our istreent activities.

Although we expect to fund the growth of our invesht portfolio through the net proceeds from futomélic and private
equity offerings and issuances of senior securitigfsiture borrowings to the extent permitted by 1940 Act, our plans to
raise capital may not be successful. In this reghoir common stock trades at a price below bentcurrent net asset value
per share, we may be limited in our ability to eaégjuity capital given that we cannot sell our camrstock at a price below
net asset value per share unless our stockholgprs\& such a sale and our board of directors medeain determinations in
connection therewith.
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In addition, we intend to distribute between 90% 460% of our taxable income to our stockholdersrier to satisfy the
requirements applicable to RICs under Subchaptef e Code. Consequently, we may not have thesfandhe ability to
fund new investments, to make additional investménbur portfolio companies, to fund our unfundednmitments to
portfolio companies or to repay borrowings. In diddi, the illiquidity of our portfolio investmentsay make it difficult for us
to sell these investments when desired and, ifr@eegjuired to sell these investments, we mayzealignificantly less than
their recorded value.

Also, as a business development company, we génaralrequired to meet a coverage ratio of tadakss, less liabilities
and indebtedness not represented by senior sesutibi total senior securities, which include &lbor borrowings and any
outstanding preferred stock, of at least 200%. Téngmlirement limits the amount that we may borrAs of December 31,
2012, we were in compliance with this requirem@&iiie amount of leverage that we employ will depenaor assessment of
market conditions and other factors at the timarof proposed borrowing, such as the maturity, canepackage and rate
structure of the proposed borrowings, our abilityaise funds through the issuance of shares of@mamon stock and the risks
of such borrowings within the context of our inwreent outlook. Ultimately, we only intend to usedeage if the expected
returns from borrowing to make investments will @ed the cost of such borrowing.

In accordance with the 1940 Act, with certain exusys, we are only allowed to borrow amounts sinet dur asset
coverage, as defined in the 1940 Act, is at le@8¢Rafter such borrowing. We were in compliancélile asset coverage at
all times during the period and at 12/31/12 ouetssverage ratio was 309%.

As of December 31, 2012, we had cash of $12.1anilind United States Treasury securities of $5@I®m

Credit Facility

The Credit Facility is a syndicated multi-currerfagility and provides for borrowings up to $115 lioih and matures in
November 2016. As of December 31, 2012, we hadod3dlion of borrowings outstanding under the Ctdehcility.
Borrowings under the Credit Facility are generédiyear interest at LIBOR plus 3.00%. The Crediilitg size may be
increased up to $150 million, subject to certainditions, with additional new lenders or throughirrerease in commitments
of current lenders. The Credit Facility is a fowray revolving facility secured by substantially@fllour investment portfolio
assets. The Credit Facility contains affirmative agstrictive covenants, including but not limitednaintenance of a minimum
shareholders’ equity amount and maintenance di@ahtotal assets (less total liabilities othiean indebtedness) to total
indebtedness of not less than 2.0:1.0. In additidhe asset coverage ratio described in the piregegntence, borrowings
under the Credit Facility (and the incurrence ataie other permitted debt) are subject to compgkawith a borrowing base
that apply different advance rates to differenetypf assets in our portfolio. We have also gelyeagireed under the terms of
the Credit Facility not to incur any additional sesd indebtedness. In addition, we have agreetbrintur any additional
unsecured indebtedness that has a maturity datetprihe maturity date of the Credit Facility. th@armore, the Credit Facility
contains a covenant requiring us to maintain coamgk with RIC provisions at all times, subject ¢otain remedial provisions.

Other

We intend to apply for a license to form a SBICsdiary; however, the application is subject torappl by the SBA and
we can make no assurances that the SBA will appwsavapplication. The SBIC subsidiary would be akal to issue SBA-
guaranteed debentures up to a maximum of $150omillnder current SBIC regulations, subject to neglicapitalization of the
SBIC subsidiary and other requirements. SBA guaethtiebentures generally have longer maturitiesaamet interest rates
than other forms of debt that may be availablestoamd we believe therefore would represent aadiitie source of debt
capital.
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Contractual Obligations

As of December 31, 2012, our future fixed committedar cash payments on contractual obligationgémh of the next
five years and thereafter are as follows:

2018 and
Total 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 thereafter
(dollars in thousands)
Credit facility payable $38,00( $38,00(
Short-term loan $45,000 $45,00(
Administrative service expen: $ 88( $ 42C $ 46C
Total $83,88( $4542( $ 46C $38,000 $ 0 $ 0 % 0

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We may be a party to financial instruments withtmdfance sheet risk in the normal course of busitesneet the financial
needs of our portfolio companies. As of December2B12, our only off-balance sheet arrangementsistad of $2 million of
unfunded commitments, which was comprised of $Hanilto provide debt financing to one of our polibacompanies.

Regulated Investment Company Status and Dividends

We intend to elect to be treated as a RIC undecl@aier M of the Code. If we qualify as a RIC, wi# mot be taxed on
our investment company taxable income or realiztccapital gains, to the extent that such taxaiderne or gains are
distributed, or deemed to be distributed, to stoblérs on a timely basis.

Taxable income generally differs from net incomefiioancial reporting purposes due to temporary peananent
differences in the recognition of income and expenand generally excludes net unrealized appieciat depreciation until
realized. Dividends declared and paid by us inax yeay differ from taxable income for that yeasash dividends may
include the distribution of current year taxableame or the distribution of prior year taxable imscarried forward into and
distributed in the current year. Distributions atsay include returns of capital.

To qualify for RIC tax treatment, we must, amonlestthings, distribute, with respect to each tagafelar, at least 90% of
our investment company net taxable income (i.e.hetiordinary income and our realized net shortiteapital gains in excess
of realized net long-term capital losses, if atfjve qualify as a RIC, we will also be subjeciatéederal excise tax, based on
distributive requirements of our taxable incomeaaralendar year basis.

We intend to distribute to our stockholders betw@@% and 100% of our annual taxable income (whicktudes our
taxable interest and fee income). However, the rants contained in the Credit Facility may prohisitfrom making
distributions to our stockholders, and, as a resuolild hinder our ability to satisfy the distritmrt requirement. In addition, we
may retain for investment some or all of our ngatde capital gains (i.e., realized net long-teapital gains in excess of
realized net short-term capital losses) and tneett amounts as deemed distributions to our stodkins! If we do this, our
stockholders will be treated as if they receivetialcdistributions of the capital gains we retaiaed then reinvested the net
after-tax proceeds in our common stock. Our stoltldre also may be eligible to claim tax credits {orcertain circumstances,
tax refunds) equal to their allocable share ofté#txewe paid on the capital gains deemed distribtagdem. To the extent our
taxable earnings for a fiscal taxable year falblbethe total amount of our dividends for that fispaar, a portion of those
dividend distributions may be deemed a return pftahto our stockholders.

We may not be able to achieve operating resultsviliigallow us to make distributions at a specifiwel or to increase the
amount of these distributions from time to timeatidition, we may be limited in our ability to madtistributions due to the
asset coverage test for borrowings applicable tasues business development company under the 184andl due to
provisions in Credit Facility. We cannot assurekhmlders that they will receive any distributiarsdistributions at a
particular level.

In accordance with certain applicable Treasury le&gns and private letter rulings issued by therdmal Revenue Service,
a RIC may treat a distribution of its own stockuw@élling its RIC distribution requirements
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if each stockholder may elect to receive his ordmire distribution in either cash or stock of RIE, subject to a limitation
that the aggregate amount of cash to be distrittotedl stockholders must be at least 20% of thggegpte declared
distribution. If too many stockholders elect tog®e cash, each stockholder electing to receive oasst receive a pro rata
amount of cash (with the balance of the distribupaid in stock). In no event will any stockholdelgcting to receive cash,
receive less than 20% of his or her entire distidouin cash. If these and certain other requirasare met, for U.S federal
income tax purposes, the amount of the dividend pastock will be equal to the amount of cash ttmatld have been received
instead of stock. We have no current intentionayfipg dividends in shares of our stock in accordamith these Treasury
regulations or private letter rulings.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

See Note 1 to the financial statements for a detsoni of recent accounting pronouncements, if amgluding the expected
dates of adoption and the anticipated impact otfittaacial statements.

Critical Accounting Policies

The preparation of our financial statements reguinanagement to make estimates and assumptioreffénctithe reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and exgsei@hanges in the economic environment, finameéakets and any other
parameters used in determining such estimates cauwiske actual results to differ. In addition to discussion below, our
significant accounting policies are further desedlin the notes to the financial statements.

Valuation of portfolio investments

As a business development company, we generalgstrin illiquid loans and securities including dahtl equity securities
of middle-market companies. Under procedures astadadl by our board of directors, we value investiséor which market
quotations are readily available at such marketatioms. We obtain these market values from angaddent pricing service or
at the mean between the bid and ask prices obt&ioedat least two brokers or dealers (if availablinerwise by a principal
market maker or a primary market dealer). Debtegudty securities that are not publicly traded twose market prices are not
readily available are valued at fair value as dnileed in good faith by our board of directors. Sdetermination of fair values
may involve subjective judgments and estimatebpaljh we engage independent valuation providersview the valuation of
each portfolio investment that does not have ailseadailable market quotation at least once eaddrigr. Investments
purchased within 60 days of maturity are valuedoat plus accreted discount, or minus amortizethjur®, which
approximates value. With respect to unquoted seesiriour board of directors, together with ourdpendent valuation
advisors, values each investment considering, arotmgy measures, discounted cash flow models, cosopa of financial
ratios of peer companies that are public and ddetors.

When an external event such as a purchase tramsagtiblic offering or subsequent equity sale ogcaur board of
directors uses the pricing indicated by the extezmant to corroborate and/or assist us in ouratédn. Because there is not a
readily available market for substantially all bétinvestments in our portfolio, we value most of portfolio investments at
fair value as determined in good faith by our baairdirectors using a documented valuation policgt a consistently applied
valuation process. Due to the inherent uncertaififetermining the fair value of investments thatt have a readily
available market value, the fair value of our ifmesnts may differ significantly from the valuesttiauld have been used had
a readily available market value existed for suntestments, and the differences could be material.

With respect to investments for which market quotet are not readily available, our board of disestundertakes a multi-
step valuation process each quarter, as descréded/b

*  Our quarterly valuation process begins with eaatifolio company or investment being initially uald by the
investment professionals of Stellus Capital Managrgmesponsible for the portfolio investment;

*  Preliminary valuation conclusions are then docot®e and discussed with our senior management ifidsSCapital
Management;

e The audit committee of our board of directorstheviews these preliminary valuations;

60




TABLE OF CONTENTS

e Atleast once each quarter, the valuation fohgamtfolio investment is reviewed by an independetuation firm; and

e The board of directors then discusses valuatiodsdatermines the fair value of each investmenuinpmrtfolio in gooc
faith, based on the input of Stellus Capital Mamagut, the independent valuation firm and the acamlibtmittee.

Revenue recognition

We record interest income on an accrual basisg@tent it is deemed collectible. For loans arfat decurities with
contractual PIK interest, which represents contraldnterest accrued and added to the loan baklatgenerally becomes due
at maturity, we do not accrue PIK interest if tletfolio company valuation indicates that such Riterest is not collectible.
We will not accrue interest on loans and debt sgesiif we have reason to doubt our ability toleot such interest. Loan
origination fees, original issue discount and madigcount or premium are capitalized, and we #nerete or amortize such
amounts using the effective interest method asdéaténcome. Upon the prepayment of a loan or debarity, any unamortized
loan origination is recorded as interest income.rdémrd prepayment premiums on loans and debtisiesuas interest income.
Dividend income, if any, will be recognized on #redividend date.

Net realized gains or losses and net change in wiized appreciation or depreciation

We measure realized gains or losses by the differéetween the net proceeds from the repaymert@asd the
amortized cost basis of the investment, withouarddo unrealized appreciation or depreciation ipesly recognized. Net
change in unrealized appreciation or depreciagédfiects the change in portfolio investment valuesrdy the reporting period,
including any reversal of previously recorded ulizea appreciation or depreciation, when gainesés are realized.

Payment-in-Kind Interest

We have investments in our portfolio that contallid interest provision. Any PIK interest is addedhe principal balance
of such investments and is recorded as incombeipbrtfolio company valuation indicates that sBtK interest is collectible.
In order to maintain our status as a RIC, substhytll of this income must be paid out to stodklgss in the form of
dividends, even if we have not collected any cash.

Iltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative DisclosuresAbout Market Risk

We are subject to financial market risks, includaignges in interest rates. For the period sincepition (May 18, 2012)
through December 31, 2012, 40%, or 9 of the loarmur portfolio bore interest at floating ratesv&e of these 9 loans in our
portfolio have interest rate floors, which haveeefively converted the loans to fixed rate loanghacurrent interest rate
environment. In the future, we expect other loansur portfolio will have floating rates. Assumititat the Statement of Assets
and Liabilities as of December 31, 2012, were toai@ constant and no actions were taken to aleeefiisting interest rate
sensitivity, a hypothetical one percent increadelBOR would increase our net income by less thah thousand due the
current floors in place. A hypothetical decreaseIBOR would not affect our net income, again, do¢he aforementioned
floors in place. Although we believe that this measis indicative of our sensitivity to intereste@hanges, it does not adjust
for potential changes in credit quality, size anthposition of the assets on the balance sheetthed lousiness developments
that could affect net increase in net assets iaguttom operations, or net income. Accordingly,assurances can be given that
actual results would not differ materially from thetential outcome simulated by this estimate. g medge against interest
rate fluctuations by using standard hedging insamits such as futures, options and forward consadigct to the requirements
of the 1940 Act. While hedging activities may iresiel us against adverse changes in interest ragsptay also limit our
ability to participate in the benefits of lowerénést rates with respect to our portfolio of inwestts. For the period since
Inception (May 18, 2012) through December 31, 20dedid not engage in hedging activities.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors and Shareholders
Stellus Capital Investment Corporation

We have audited the accompanying statement ofsaandtliabilities of Stellus Capital Investment ganation (a Maryland
corporation) (the “Company”), including the schexlaf investments as of December 31, 2012, andelaged statements of
operations, changes in net assets, and cash ftovtisef period from inception (May 18, 2012) throudgcember 31, 2012 and
the financial highlights (see Note 8) for the pdrfmom inception (May 18, 2012) through DecemberZ112. These financial
statements and financial highlights are the respditg of the Company’s management. Our respotisibis to express an
opinion on these financial statements and finaragtlights based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighamBioUnited States).
Those standards require that we plan and perfoenadklit to obtain reasonable assurance about whaghénancial statements
and financial highlights are free of material mégéstment. The Company is not required to have, moewe engaged to
perform an audit of its internal control over fircéad reporting. Our audits included consideratiéimeernal control over
financial reporting as a basis for designing aptdicedures that are appropriate in the circumstareé not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of thie@any’s internal control over financial reportidgcordingly, we express
no such opinion. An audit also includes examinmga test basis, evidence supporting the amouutslianlosures in the
financial statements, assessing the accountingiptas used and significant estimates made by neamagt, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement preg@maOur procedures included verification by comfation of securities as of
December 31, 2012, or by other appropriate audfiiogedures where replies were not received. Weugethat our audits
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements and finahisighlights referred to above present fairlyalhmaterial respects, the
financial position of Stellus Capital Investmentr@aration as of December 31, 2012, and the restilts operations and its
cash flows for the period from inception (May 1812) through December 31, 2012 and the financghlights for the period
from inception (May 18, 2012) through DecemberZ112 in conformity with accounting principles gesigr accepted in the
United States of America.

/s/ Grant Thornton, LLP

Houston, Texas
March 11, 2013
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STELLUS CAPITAL INVESTMENT CORPORATION

STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

December 31,

2012
ASSETS
Non-controlled, non-affiliated investments, at feaue (amortized cost of $195,455,671 $195,451,25
Cash and cash equivalents 62,131,68
Interest receivable 2,573,83.
Prepaid loan structure fees 1,947,82
Prepaid expenses 438,38
Total Assets m
LIABILITIES
Payable for investments purchased 4,750,001
Credit facility payable 38,000,00
Short-term loan 45,000,94
Base management fees payable 527,03
Accrued offering costs 147,12:
Interest payable 66,477
Other accrued expenses and liabilities 205,44!
Total Liabilities 88,697,02
Net Assets $173,845,95
NET ASSETS
Common Stock, par value $0.001 per share (100,00G;6ares authorized, 12,035,023
shares issued and outstanding) $ 12,03t
Paid-in capital 174,714,83
Distributions in excess of net investment income (874,98¢)
Unrealized depreciation on investments and caslvaignts (5,939
Net Assets $173,845,95
Total Liabilities and Net Assets $262,542,97
Net Asset Value Per Share $ 14.4¢

See Notes to Financial Satements .
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STELLUS CAPITAL INVESTMENT CORPORATION

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

For the Period from
Inception
(May 18, 2012) througt

December 31, 2012

INVESTMENT INCOME

Interest income $ 3,696,43
Total Investment Income 3,696,43.
OPERATING EXPENSES
Management fees 527,03
Valuation fees 184,50(
Administrative services expenses 103,48:
Professional fees 734,36!
Directors' fees 109,43
Insurance expense 79,27¢
Interest expense and other fees 282,62¢
Credit facility fees 317,59
Other general and administrative expenses 53,754
Total Operating Expenses 2,392,071
Net Investment Income 1,304,35!
Net Change in Unrealized Depreciation on Investmestand Cash Equivalents (5,939
Net Increase in Net Assets Resulting from Operatian $ 1,298,42.
Net Investment Income Per Share $ 0.11
Net Increase in Net Assets Resulting from OperatianPer Share $ 0.11
Shares of Common Stock Outstanding 12,035,02

See Notes to Financial Satements .
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STELLUS CAPITAL INVESTMENT CORPORATION

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

For the period from
Inception
(May 18, 2012) througt

December 31, 2012

Increase in Net Assets Resulting from Operations

Net investment incom $ 1,304,35I
Net change in unrealized depreciation on investsantl cash equivaler (5,937)
Net Increase in Net Assets Resulting from Operatian 1,298,42.

Stockholder distributions
Distributions from net investment income (2,179,34)

Capital share transactions

Issuance of common stock 180,409,14
Reinvestments of stockholder distributions 112,94¢
Sales load (4,959,72)
Offering costs (835,500
Net increase in net assets resulting from capitahare transactions 174,726,87
Total increase in net assets 173,845,95

Net assets at beginning of period —
Net assets at end of period $ 173,845,95

See Notes to Financial Statements .
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STELLUS CAPITAL INVESTMENT CORPORATION

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the period from
Inception (May 18,
2012) through
December 31, 2012

Cash flows from operating activities
Net increase in net assets resulting from opers. $

Adjustments to reconcile net increase in net agestdting from operations to net cas
used in operating activities:

Purchases of investments
Proceeds from sales and repayments of investments
Net change in unrealized depreciation on investment
Increase in investments due to PIK
Accretion of discount
Increase in interest receivable
Increase in prepaid expenses and fees
Increase in payable for investments purchased
Increase in management fees payable
Increase in interest payable
Increase in other accrued expenses and liabilities
Net cash used in operating activit
Cash flows from financing activities
Net proceeds from common shares issued
Borrowings on bridge note
Payments on bridge note
Sales load
Offering costs paid
Stockholder distributions paid
Borrowings under credit facility
Borrowings under short term loan
Net cash provided by financing activiti
Net increase in cash and cash equival
Cash and cash equivalents balance at beginningrafco
Cash and cash equivalents balance at end of period $
Non-cash items
Purchase of portfolio companies through the isse@icommon stock $
Accrued deferred offering costs

Common stock issued in connection with dividendvestments

See Notes to Financial Satements .

1,298,42.

(232,708,41)
66,458,11
4,41t
(18,044
(28,17%)
(2,573,83)
(2,386,20)
4,750,001
527,03
66,47
205,44

(164,404,76)

151,250,00
156,000,00
(156,000,00)

(4,959,72)

(688,37)
(2,066,39)
38,000,00
45,000,94

226,536,45

62,131,68

62,131,68

29,159,14
147,12:
112,94t
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STELLUS CAPITAL INVESTMENT CORPORATION

SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2012

Principal
Headquarters/ Amount/ % of Net
Investments Industry Shares Cost Fair Value @ Assets
Non-controlled, non-affiliated investments
Aderant North America Inc. Atlanta, GA
Term Loan-Second Lien, Prime + 7.759%
due 6/20/201¢) Services: Business $1,500,000 $ 1,477,62. $ 1,477,62; 0.85%
Ascend Learning, Inc. Burlington, MA
Term Loan-Second Lien, Euro + 10.009
Euro 1.50%, due 12/6/2012 High Tech Industries $10,000,000 10,000,00 10,000,00 5.7%%
ATX Networks West Ajax, Ontario
Term Loan-Unsecured, 12.00% cash,
2.00% PIK, due 5/12/2018) (3) (4) High Tech Industries ~ $20,778,456 20,778,45 20,778,45  11.9:%
Baja Broadband, LLC Fort Mill, SC
Term Loan-Second Lien, L + 11.00%, Media: Broadcasting &
LIBOR 1.50%, due 12/20/2017) Subscription $15,000,000 15,000,00 15,000,00 8.6%
Binder and Binder Hauppauge, New Yorl
Senior Subordinated Note-Unsecured,
13.00% cash, 2.00% PIK, due
2/27/20163) Services: Business  $13,000,000 13,000,00 13,000,00 7.46%
Blackhawk Mining, LLC Lexington, KY
Term Loan-First Lien, 12.50%, due
10/5/2016(7) Metals & Mining $5,000,000 4,535,71. 4,535,71. 2.61%
Common Shares, Class® (®) 36 shares 214,281 214,28t  0.12%
Total 4,750,001 4,750,00! 2.7%
Eating Recovery Center, LLC Denver, CO
Mezzanine Term LoakMsecured, 12.00'
cash, 1.00% PIK, due
12/28/20182) 3) $18,400,000 18,032,63 18,032,63  10.31%
Healthcare &
Common Shares, SeriesA Pharmaceuticals 86,667 share 1,500,00 1,500,00t 0.86%
Total 19,532,63 19,532,63 11.23%
Holley Performance Products Bowling Green, KY
Term Loan-First Lien, Prime + 6.00%,
Prime 3.50%, due 11/30/20§% Automotive $12,500,000 12,345,64 12,345,64 7.1(%
Refac Optical Group (&) Blackwood, NJ
Term A Loan-First Lien, L + 7.50%,
LIBOR 0.2077%, due 3/23/201® Retail $3,780,40 3,780,40: 3,780,40: 2.1&%
Term B Loan-First Lien, L + 8.50%,
LIBOR 0.2077%, 1.75% PIK, due
3/23/20162 (3) $6,098,781 6,098,78 6,098,78 3.51%
Total 9,879,18! 9,879,18! 5.6%
Securus Technologies Holdings Dallas, TX
Term Loan-Second Lien, Euro + 9.00%
Euro 1.75%, due 6/1/201% Telecommunications $12,000,000 12,119,67 12,120,00 6.97%
Snowman Holdings, LLC Lebanon, IN
Term Loan-Unsecured, 11.00% cash,
2.00% PIK, due 1/11/201® Transportation: Cargc ~ $8,969,955 8,969,95! 8,969,95! 5.16%



Term LoanFirst Lien, Euro + 5.50%, Eu
1.50%, due 10/31/201® Capital Markets $7,500,000 7,351,60. 7,351,60. 4.22%

See Notes to Financial Statements .
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Principal
Headquarters/ Amount/ % of Net

Investments Industry Shares Cost Fair Value () Assets
Sportsmans Warehouse Holdings, Inc. Midvale, UT
Term Loan-First Lien, L + 7.00%, LIBO}

1.50%, due 11/13/2018® Retail $10,000,000 9,902,06: 9,902,06: 5.7(%
Studer Group, LLC (The) Gulf Breeze, FL
Term Loan-Unsecured, 12.00% cash,

2.00% PIK, due 3/29/201% Services: Business $16,639,880 16,639,88 16,639,88 9.57%
Woodstream Corp. Lititz, PA
Subordinated Debt-Unsecured, 12.00% Consumer Goods:

due 2/27/201%? Non-Durable $3,017,977 2,910,98 2,906,24 1.67%
Woodstream Group, Inc. Lititz, PA
Senior Subordinated Note-Unsecured, Consumer Goods:

12.00%, due 2/27/2015 Non-Durable $31,982,02 30,797,96 30,797,96 17.7%
Total Non-controlled, non-affiliated

investments $195,455,671 $195,451,25 112.4%
LIABILITIES IN EXCESS OF OTHER

ASSETS (21,605,30) (12.4%)
NET ASSETS $173,845,95 100.0%

(1) See Note 1 of the Notes to Financial Statemfenta discussion of the methodologies used toesakcurities in the
portfolio.

(2) Coupon is subject to Prime and LIBOR floors.

(3) Represents a payment-in-kind security whichsgaportion of interest in additional par.

(4) The investment is not a qualifying asset uriderinvestment Company Act of 1940, as amended.
(5) Security is non-income producing.

(6) Common shares position will settle after Decengi, 2012.

(7) The loan will settle after December 31, 2012.

(8) This instrument also includes an undrawn revolgan commitment in an amount not to exceed $2,@N,8n interest ra
of Libor plus 7.5%, and a maturity of March 23, B0This investment is accruing an unused fee d%.per annum.

Abbreviation Legend
PIK — Payment-In-Kind

See Notes to Financial Statements .
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Nature of Operations

Stellus Capital Investment Corporation (the “Compamwas formed as a Maryland corporation on May 2&12
(“Inception”) and is an externally managed, closed; non-diversified management investment compaimg.Company
intends to elect to be treated as a business dewelot company under the Investment Company AcBdblas amended (the
“1940 Act”) and as a regulated investment compdRyQ") for U.S. federal income tax purposes. Then@any’s investment
activities are managed by Stellus Capital ManagénéiC (“Stellus Capital”) also “the (Advisor)”

On November 7, 2012, the Company priced its infighlic offering (the “Offering”), at a price of $100 per share.
Through its initial public offering the Company d@&,200,000 shares (including 1,200,000 sharesigfir¢the underwriters’
exercise of the overallotment option) for grossceexs of $138,000,000. As of December 31, 201Ztmepany has raised
$180,409,145 including (i) the Offering proceeds%500,010 of seed capital contributed by Ste@agpital, (i) $12,749,990 in
a private placement to certain purchasers, inclygersons and entities associated with Stellust@apnd (iv) $29,159,145 in
connection with the acquisition of the Companyisiah portfolio. The Company’s shares are curretitjed on the New York
Stock Exchange under the symbol “SCM”".

Immediately prior to the pricing of the OfferingetiCompany acquired its initial portfolio of asskeis$165,235,169 in cash
and $29,159,145 in shares of the Company’s comruak,sor $194,394,314 in total. The cash portiothefacquisition of the
initial portfolio was financed by (i) borrowing $2%85,179 under a credit facility (“Bridge Facififyvith Sun Trust and (ii)
using the $12,749,990 of proceeds received in adiorewith the private placement. The Bridge Fagitiad a maturity date of
not more than 7 days after the pricing date ofQffering. Borrowings under the Bridge Facility ban¢erest at the highest of
(i) a prime rate, (ii) the Federal Funds Rate @)% and (iii) Libor plus 1.00%. The Company utieelnet proceeds from the
Offering together with borrowings under the Comparyedit facility (see Note 9) to repay in fultloutstanding indebtedness
under the Bridge Facility, at which point the Brédgacility terminated.

The Company’s investment objective is to achiecersistent payment of cash dividends and to maximdpital
appreciation. The Company will seek to achievénigstment objective by originating and investimgrarily in private U.S.
middle-market companies (typically those with $&illion to $50.0 million of EBITDA (earnings befoiaterest, taxes,
depreciation and amortization)) through first lisecond lien, unitranche and mezzanine debt fingnaiften times with a
corresponding equity co-investment. It expectolaree investments primarily through the extensiggvork of relationships
that the principals of its investment adviser hagetbped with financial sponsor firms, financiadtitutions, middle-market
companies, management teams and other profesgiterahediaries.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying financial statements have begraprd on the accrual basis of accounting in confgrwith accounting
principles generally accepted in the United StafeSmerica (“GAAP”).

In accordance with Regulation S-X under the Seiesrifct of 1933 and Securities Exchange Act of 1984 Company
does not consolidate portfolio company investments.

The accounting records of the Company are mairdamé).S. dollars.

Portfolio Investment Classification

The Company classifies its portfolio investmentthwihe requirements of the 1940 Act, (a) “Controldstments” are
defined as investments in which the Company ownerttan 25% of the voting securities or has rightsaintain greater than
50% of the board representation, (b) “Affiliate &stiments” are defined as investments in which thmgany owns between
5% and 25% of the voting securities and does ne¢ ha
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rights to maintain greater than 50% of the boapdlegentation, and (c) “Non-controlled, non-affdiatvestments are defined as
investments that are neither Control Investmentsfiiiate Investments.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash consists of bank demand deposits. We deeairceliS. Treasury Bills, repurchase agreemento#met high-quality,
short-term debt securities as cash equivalentthédend of each fiscal quarter, we may take preadieps to preserve
investment flexibility for the next quarter by irsteng in cash equivalents, which are dependent tip@eomposition of our
total assets at quarter end. We may accomplishrttsisveral ways, including purchasing U.S. Treya®ills and closing out
positions after quarter-end, temporarily drawingvdmn the Credit Facility (see footnote 9), orimiilg repurchase agreements
or other balance sheet transactions as are degwpegpaiate for this purpose. On December 28, 2@E2purchased $50
million of U.S. Treasury Bills with a 30 day matiyron margin using $5 million in cash and the pestefrom a $45 million
short term loan from Raymond James. The loan hadfantive annual interest rate of approximately. Gt January 2, 2013,
we sold the Treasury Bills, repaid the $45 millloan from Raymond James and received back the Bi&minargin payment
(net of fees and expenses of $8,943).

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the statement of assets anttitiedin conformity with GAAP requires managementmake estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amouassdts and liabilities and disclosure of contingasets and liabilities at the
date of the financial statements. Changes in tha@uic environment, financial markets and any offa@ameters used in
determining these estimates could cause actudtsesudiffer materially.

Investments

As a business development company, the Companyaeiikrally invest in illiquid loans and securitiesluding debt and
equity securities of middle-market companies. Urtecedures established by the board of directbesCompany intends to
value investments for which market quotations aeslily available at such market quotations. The @amy will obtain these
market values from an independent pricing servicat the mean between the bid and ask prices @utdiom at least two
brokers or dealers (if available, otherwise byiagipal market maker or a primary market dealegbfand equity securities
that are not publicly traded or whose market pranesnot readily available will be valued at faiwe as determined in good
faith by our board of directors. Such determinatibfiair values may involve subjective judgments astimates, although the
Company will also engage independent valuationigerg to review the valuation of each portfolioéstment that does not
have a readily available market quotation at least quarterly. Investments purchased within 6G adynaturity will be
valued at cost plus accreted discount, or minusréed premium, which approximates value. With extgo unquoted
securities, our board of directors, together with independent valuation advisors, will value easlestment considering,
among other measures, discounted cash flow mazt@isparisons of financial ratios of peer comparties are public and other
factors. When an external event such as a purdhassaction, public offering or subsequent equétye ®ccurs, the board will
use the pricing indicated by the external evemitwoborate and/or assist us in our valuation. Beedhe Company expects that
there will not be a readily available market fornpaf the investments in our portfolio, the Compamxpects to value most of
our portfolio investments at fair value as detemmii good faith by the board of directors usirdpaumented valuation policy
and a consistently applied valuation process. Bube inherent uncertainty of determining the ¥ailue of investments that do
not have a readily available market value, thevfaiue of our investments may differ significarfilgm the values that would
have been used had a readily available market eaisted for such investments, and the differeicoetd be material.

In following these approaches, the types of factioas will be taken into account in fair value jmig investments will
include, as relevant, but not be limited to:
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« available current market data, including relevaamd applicable market trading and transaction @vaiges;
« applicable market yields and multiples;
e security covenants;
« call protection provisions;
e information rights;
« the nature and realizable value of any collateral

« the portfolio company’s ability to make paymerits,earnings and discounted cash flows and thé&eteam which it
does business;

e comparisons of financial ratios of peer compatties are public;
e comparable merger and acquisition transactiomd; a
< the principal market and enterprise values.

Determination of fair values involves subjectivdgments and estimates not susceptible to subsiantlay auditing
procedures. Under current auditing standards, dbesrto our financial statements refer to the uag®y with respect to the
possible effect of such valuations, and any chamgech valuations, on our financial statements.

Revenue Recognition

We record interest income on an accrual basisa@xtent they are deemed collectible. For loansdahd securities with
contractual PIK interest, which represents contir@adnterest accrued and added to the loan bakhatgenerally becomes due
at maturity, we do not accrue PIK interest if thetfolio company valuation indicates that such Biterest is not collectible.
We will not accrue interest on loans and debt seesiif we have reason to doubt our ability toleol such interest. Loan
origination fees, original issue discount and madigcount or premium are capitalized, and we #rete or amortize such
amounts using the effective interest method asaaténcome. Upon the prepayment of a loan or deturrity, any unamortized
loan origination is recorded as interest income.réémrd prepayment premiums on loans and debtisesuas interest income.
Dividend income, if any, will be recognized on #edividend date.

Net Realized Gains or Losses and Net Change in Wtimed Appreciation or Depreciation

We measure realized gains or losses by the differéetween the net proceeds from the repaymert@asd the
amortized cost basis of the investment, withouarddo unrealized appreciation or depreciation ipesly recognized. Net
change in unrealized appreciation or depreciaédfiects the change in portfolio investment valuesrdy the reporting period,
including any reversal of previously recorded ulizea appreciation or depreciation, when gainesés are realized.

Payment-in-Kind Interest

We have investments in our portfolio that contalPlid interest provision. Any PIK interest is addedhe principal balance
of such investments and is recorded as incombeipbrtfolio company valuation indicates that sBtK interest is collectible.
In order to maintain our status as a RIC, substiytll of this income must be paid out to stodklgss in the form of
dividends, even if we have not collected any cash.

Investment Transaction Costs

Costs associated with an investment transactiefyding legal expenses, are included in the cosiskE purchases and
deducted from the proceeds of sales unless suth aasreimbursed by the borrower.
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Payable for Unsettled Securities Transaction

Payable for unsettled securities transaction relet¢he purchase of the Blackhawk Mining, LLC tdo@n and Blackhawk
Mining, LLC common shares that were unsettled atdbgber 31, 2012, and settled subsequent to year-end

U.S. Federal Income Taxes

The Company intends to elect to be treated aswdategl investment company (“RIC”) under subchaptesf the Internal
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and to operatmanner so as to qualify for the tax treatmeptiegble to RICs. In order
to qualify as a RIC, among other things, the Comgpamequired to timely distribute to its stockhetd at least 90% of
investment company taxable income, as defined &yCibde, for each year. As a part of maintaining Regus, dividends
pertaining to a given fiscal year may be distribut@ to 12 months subsequent to the end of thalfisear provided such
dividends are declared prior to the filing of thenipany’s federal income tax return. So long astbmpany maintains its
status as a RIC, it generally will not pay corpetkavel U.S. federal income taxes on any ordinacpime or capital gains that it
distributes at least annually to its stockholdersli@idends. Rather, any tax liability relatedrioame earned by the Company
represents obligations of the Company’s investodswill not be reflected in the financial statenweaof the Company.

As of December 31, 2012 the Company had no unilig&d long-term capital gains or capital loss damyards for federal
income tax purposes.

The Company has estimated its taxable income fopériod from Inception through December 31, 2@18e
approximately $2.4 million which reflects book/tdikferences of approximately $1.1 million relatedniion-recurring expenses
that are expensed for book purposes but deferr@@uanortized over 15 years for tax purposes. Thegamy declared and paid
a dividend of $2.2 million in December 2012 leavapproximately $0.2 million of undistributed ordigancome at December
31, 2012. The Company expects to distribute theaneimg amount to shareholders prior to the filidgt® federal income tax
return. The Company’s taxable income for 2012 igstimate and will not be finally determined uthié Company files its
2012 tax return. Therefore, the final taxable inecand the taxable income earned in 2012 and cdoradrd for distribution
in 2013 may be different than this estimate.

The Company evaluates tax positions taken or egpdotbe taken in the course of preparing its éaxrns to determine
whether the tax positions are “more-likely-than®raftbeing sustained by the applicable tax autlofitax positions deemed to
meet a “more-likely-than-not” threshold would bessded as a tax benefit or expense in the appégadliod. Although the
Company files federal and state tax returns, itomntax jurisdiction is federal. The 2012 fedem tyear for the Company
remains subject to examination by the Internal ReeeService.

As of December 31, 2012, the Company had not recbadiability for any unrecognized tax positiohanagement’s
evaluation of uncertain tax positions may be sutijeceview and adjustment at a later date based tgrtors including, but
not limited to, an on-going analysis of tax lanegulations and interpretations thereof. The Comisgoglicy is to include
interest and penalties related to income taxepficable, in general and administrative experiBesre were no such expenses
for the year ended December 31, 2012.

Organization Costs, Offering Costs and Sales Load

Organization costs include costs relating to thhenedion and incorporation of the business. Thesésomere expensed as
incurred. For the period from Inception through Braber 31, 2012, the Company has incurred and eggderganization costs
of $690,114. Offering costs include legal fees atiebr costs pertaining to the initial public offegi These costs have been
offset against capital proceeds from the publiewfigs. For the period from Inception through DebenB1, 2012, these costs
amount to $835,500. Sales
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load represents the underwriting discounts and dssiams related to the initial public offering. Rbe period from Inception
through December 31, 2012 sales load totaled $47969

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

From time to time, new accounting pronouncemerdgdsaued by the Financial Accounting Standards @¢&ASB”) or
other standards setting bodies that are adoptéldebompany as of the specified effective date. Tbmpany believes that the
impact of recently issued standards that are no¢fective will not have a material impact onfitsancial statements upon
adoption.

NOTE 2 — RELATED PARTY ARRANGEMENTS

Investment Advisory Agreement

The Company entered into an investment advisorgeagent with Stellus Capital Management (AdvisodysBant to this
agreement, the Company has agreed to pay to S@&dpisal Management a base annual fee of 1.75%0sEgssets, including
assets purchased with borrowed funds or other fofteverage and excluding cash and cash equivslant an annual
incentive fee consisting of two parts. The firsttpavhich is calculated and payable quarterly iears, equals 20.0% of the
“pre-incentive fee net investment income” (as dediin the agreement) for the immediately precedimgrter, subject to a
hurdle rate of 2.0% per quarter (8.0% annualizad), is subject to a “catch-up” feature.

The second part is calculated and payable in @&@saof the end of each calendar year (or, upomrtation of the
investment advisory agreement, as of the terminatate) and equals 20.0% of the aggregate cumelegalized capital gains
from inception through the end of each calendar,yammputed net of aggregate cumulative realizgitaldosses and
aggregate cumulative unrealized capital depreciatioough the end of such year, less the aggregateint of any previously
paid capital gain incentive fees. The incentiveifesubject to a total return requirement of 20%e fet pre-incentive fee
investment income used to calculate this part efiticentive fee is also included in the amountwfgross assets used to
calculate the 1.75% base management fee.

Stellus Capital Management has agreed to waivademntive fee for the years ending December 312201 December 31,
2013 to the extent required to support an annudlifrédend yield of 9.0% (to be paid on a quartdrdgis) based on the price
per share of our common stock in connection with@ffering. Stellus Capital earned $527,034 in baaeagement fees and
no incentive fees for the period from Inceptiorotigh December 31, 2012.

As of December 31, 2012, the Company was not dyeaarount from Stellus Capital for reimbursemenéxppenses paid
for by the Company that were the responsibilitytdllus Capital. Any such amounts due to the Comparuld be included in
the Statement of Assets and Liabilities.

As of December 31, 2012, the Company owed onetdir€é29,452 for unpaid director fees.

As agreed to in the Amended and Restated Side Agmeemade and entered into as of November 12, BQEhd between
Stellus Capital Management, LLC (the “Advisor”) aRdymond James & Associates, Inc. and Stifel, Migsl& Company,
Incorporated, the Advisor has agreed to pay onlbehthe Company, 2.41% of the 6% Underwritereesdbad, or $3,320,280
in total. Of this amount, $1,940,280 was paid orvé&nber 14, 2012 and the remaining $1,380,000 isrdequal, quarterly
installments beginning March 31, 2013.

Administration Agreement

The Company entered into an administration agreemigin Stellus Capital Management pursuant to wigtéllus Capital
Management will furnish the Company with officeifdies and equipment and will provide the Compavith the clerical,
bookkeeping, recordkeeping and other administra@rgices
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necessary to conduct day-to-day operations. Udeatiministration agreement, Stellus Capital Managnt will perform, or

oversee the performance of, its required adminiggaervices, which includes, among other thitgsng responsible for the

financial records which it is required to maintaimd preparing reports to its stockholders and tegibed with the SEC. There
were $62,716 of such costs incurred under the Adtnéion Agreement for the period from Inceptibnough December 31,

2012, and are included in Administrative Servicgpdnses.

Indemnifications

The investment advisory agreement provides thagratwillful misfeasance, bad faith or gross negiice in the
performance of its duties or by reason of the exkdisregard of its duties and obligations uneirnvestment advisory
agreement, Stellus Capital Management and itsesffjananagers, partners, agents, employees, dognpérsons and
members, and any other person or entity affiliatétl it, are entitled to indemnification from the@pany for any damages,
liabilities, costs and expenses (including reastmatiorneys’ fees and amounts reasonably paidtttement) arising from the
rendering of Stellus Capital Management’s servigeger the investment advisory agreement or otheragsour investment
adviser.

NOTE 3 — DISTRIBUTIONS

The Company intends to make quarterly distributiohavailable income to its stockholders. The Conypatends to
distribute net capital gaing.€. , net long-term capital gains in excess of nettstesm capital losses), if any, at least annually.
The quarterly stockholder distributions, if any|lWe determined by the board of directors. Anycktwlder distribution to
stockholders will be declared out of assets legallgilable for distribution. The amount of the imlidistribution equates to an
annualized dividend yield of 9.0% based on theeppier share of our common stock in connection thighOffering ($15.00 per
share).

The following table reflects the distributions thla¢ Company has declared and paid on its comnook #tirough
December 31, 2012:

Distribution
Per Share Amount
Ordinary income $ 0181 $ 2,179,34

Unless the stockholder elects to receive its tistions in cash, the Company intends to make sisthitditions in
additional shares of the Company’s common stocleutite Company’s dividend reinvestment plan. Algitodistributions
paid in the form of additional shares of the Conyaoommon stock will generally be subject to U&leral, state and local
taxes in the same manner as cash distributionsstaxs participating in the Company’s dividend vestment plan will not
receive any corresponding cash distributions witlicty to pay any such applicable taxes. If a stolddroholds shares of the
Company’s common stock in the name of a brokeimantial intermediary, the stockholder should consaich broker or
financial intermediary regarding their electiorrézeive distributions in cash in lieu of shareshef Company’s common stock.
Any distributions reinvested through the issuanftghares through the Company’s dividend reinvestrpkm will increase the
Company’s gross assets on which the base managéeesnid the incentive fee are determined andtpatdellus Capital
Management. Of the total distributions made toahalders through December 31, 2012, $2,066,394 made in cash and the
remainder in shares.

NOTE 4 — PORTFOLIO INVESTMENTS AND FAIR VALUE

In accordance with the authoritative guidance anv@ue measurements and disclosures under GAMPCbmpany
discloses the fair value of its investments inexdnichy that prioritizes the inputs to valuatiochteiques used to measure fair
value. The hierarchy gives the highest prioritpbt@adjusted quoted prices in active markets fortidahassets or liabilities
(Level 1 measurements) and the lowest priorityrtoliservable inputs (Level 3 measurements). Theaggiel establishes three
levels of the fair value hierarchy as follows:
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Level 1 — Unadjusted quoted prices in active markieat are accessible at the measurement dateefotical, unrestricted
assets or liabilities;

Level 2 — Quoted prices in markets that are nosim®red to be active or financial instruments fbick significant inputs
are observable, either directly or indirectly;

Level 3 — Prices or valuations that require inghtg are both significant to the fair value measwet and unobservable.

The level of an asset or liability within the famlue hierarchy is based on the lowest level ofiapyt that is significant to
the fair value measurement. However, the determoimaif what constitutes “observable” requires digant judgment by
management.

The Company considers whether the volume and Evattivity for the asset or liability have sigmidintly decreased and
identifies transactions that are not orderly iredatining fair value. Accordingly, if the Companytelamines that either the
volume and/or level of activity for an asset oblidy has significantly decreased (from normal ditions for that asset or
liability) or price quotations or observable inpate not associated with orderly transactions giased analysis and
management judgment will be required to estimatevidue. Valuation techniques such as an inconpeageh might be
appropriate to supplement or replace a market agprin those circumstances.

At December 31, 2012, the Company had investmerit$ iportfolio companies. The total cost and faiue of the 20
positions were $195,455,671 and $195,451,256, ctisply. The composition of our investments as ecBmber 31, 2012 is as
follows:

Cost Fair Value
Senior Secured — First Lien $ 44,01421 $ 44,014,21
Senior Secured — Second Lien 38,597,29 38,597,62
Unsecured Debt 111,129,87 111,125,13
Equity 1,714,28 1,714,28
Total Investments $195,455,67 $ 195,451,25

The Company’s investment portfolio may contain k#mt are in the form of lines of credit or revnty credit facilities,
which require the Company to provide funding whequested by portfolio companies in accordance thighterms of the
underlying loan agreements. As of December 31, 22Company had one such investment which wasawving loan
agreement, with an aggregate unfunded commitme$2 800,000. The Company maintains sufficient aashand to fund
such unfunded loan commitments should the need.aris

The fair values of our investments disaggregatealtime three levels of the fair value hierarchydaagpon the lowest level
of significant input used in the valuation as otcBeber 31, 2012 are as follows:

Quoted Prices ir Significant
Active Markets Other Significant
for Identical Observable Unobservable
Securities (Leve Inputs Inputs
1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

Senior Secured — First Lien $ — 3 — $ 44,014,21 $ 44,014,21
Senior Secured — Second Lien — 12,120,00 26,477,62 38,597,62
Unsecured Debt — — 111,125,13 111,125,13
Equity —_ —_ 1,714,28: 1,714,28:
Total Investments 0 $12,120,00 $183,331,25 $195,451,25
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The aggregate values of Level 3 portfolio investta@manged during the period from Inception throDgleember 31, 2012
are as follows:

Senior Secured  Senior Secured

Loans — Loans — Unsecured
First Lien Second Lien Debt Equity Total
Fair value at beginning of
period $ — 3 — 3 — 3 — 3 —
Purchases of investments 97,066,022 16,477,50 124,507,79 1,714,281 239,765,60
Sales and Redemptions (53,057,37) — (13,400,74) — (66,458,11)
Change in unrealized
depreciation included in
earnings — — (4,749 — (4,742
Accretion of discount 5,56% 122 22,82 — 28,50¢
Transfer from Level 2 10,000,00 10,000,00

Transfer to Level 2 — — — — —
Fair value at end of period $ 44,014,221 $ 26,477,62 $111,125,13 $ 1,714,28 $183,331,25

Change in unrealized
depreciation on Level 3
investments still held as o
December 31, 2012 $ — % — $ 4,749 % — $ (4,749

During the period from Inception through Decembg&r&012, there was one transfer from Level 2 toel 8v

The following is a summary of geographical concatittn of our investment portfolio as of Decembey 3112:
% of

Cost Fair Value Total Investments
Pennsylvania $ 33,708,95 $ 33,704,20 17.2¢%
Canada 20,778,45 20,778,45 10.6%
Colorado 19,532,63 19,532,63 9.9%%
Kentucky 17,095,64 17,095,64 8.75%
Florida 16,639,88 16,639,88 8.51%
New York 13,000,00 13,000,00 6.65%
Texas 12,119,67 12,120,00 6.2(%
Massachusetts 10,000,00 10,000,00 5.12%
South Carolina 15,000,00 15,000,00 7.67%
Utah 9,902,06: 9,902,06: 5.07%
New Jerse) 9,879,18! 9,879,18! 5.05%
Indiana 8,969,95! 8,969,95! 4.5%
Connecticut 7,351,60: 7,351,60: 3.7¢%
Georgia 1,477,62; 1,477,62; 0.77%

$ 195,455,67 $ 195,451,25 100.0(%
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The following is a summary of industry concentrataf our investment portfolio as of December 31120

Consumer Goods: Non-Durable
High Tech Industries

Retall

Healthcare & Pharmaceuticals
Services: Business

Media: Broadcasting & Subscription
Services: Business

Automotive
Telecommunications
Transportation: Cargo

Capital Markets

Metals & Mining

Services: Business

% of

Cost Fair Value Total Investments
$ 33,708,95 $ 33,704,20 17.2%%
30,778,45 30,778,45 15.7%%
19,781,25 19,781,25 10.12%
19,532,63 19,532,63 9.9%
16,639,88 16,639,88 8.51%
15,000,00 15,000,00 7.61%
13,000,000 13,000,00 6.65%
12,345,64 12,345,64 6.32%
12,119,67 12,120,00 6.2(%
8,969,95! 8,969,95! 4.5%
7,351,60: 7,351,60. 3.7¢%
4,750,001 4,750,001 24%
1,477,62. 1,477,62. 0.7%
$ 195,455,67 $ 195,451,25 100.0(%

The following table provides quantitative infornmatiabout the Company’s level 3 fair value measungsnas of December

31, 2012:
Description: Fair Value Valuation Technique Unobservable Inputs Range (Average)(l) ®
First lien debt HY credit
Income/Marke spreads,
Risk free rates, -.22% to .11Y
$ 44,014,211 approach (@ credit quality © -12 %)
Second lien debt HY credit
spreads, -.49% to -
Income/Marke Risk free rates, .18%
$ 26,477,62 approach credit quality (-.30 %)
Unsecured debt HY credit
spreads,
Income/Marke Risk free rates, -.31% to .03Y
$ 111,125,13 approach credit quality (--20 %)
Equity investments Underwriting
multiple/EBITDA
Market
$ 1,714,28 approach (¥ Multiple 5x to 12x
Total Long Term
Level 3 Investments

$ 183,331,25

(1) Weighted average based on fair value as of Dbee 31, 2012.



(2) Inclusive of but not limited to the income apach (by discounting future cash flows using arrapiate yield) and the
market approach (by ensuring sufficient enterpredee).

(3) The Company calculates the price of the loadibgounting future cash flows using an appropryaéd calculated as of the
valuation date. This yield is calculated basedhenidan's yield at the original investment anddigisted as of the valuation
date based on: changes in comparable credit spfeadBarclay's high yield indexes, changes in fisk interest rates (per
swap rates), and changes in credit quality (viastimated shadow rating). Significant increasesr@ses) in any of these
factors would result in a significantly lower (higf) fair value measurement. As an example, the gedAverage)” for first
lien debt instruments in the table above indic#tas the most negative change in the HY spreadsiskdree rates between
the date a loan closed and the valuation date ®a%0-(22 basis points) and the largest positiomgbavas .11%. The
average of all changes was -.12%.
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NOTE 4 — PORTFOLIO INVESTMENTS AND FAIR VALUE - (c ontinued)

(4) The primary significant unobservable input usethe fair value measurement of the Company'&gqwestments is the
EBITDA multiple, or the Multiple. Significant inceses (decreases) in the Multiple in isolation woekllt in a significantl
higher (lower) fair value measurement. To deterniireeMultiple for the market approach, the Compemwsiders current
market trading and/or transaction multiples, pdidfecompany performance (financial ratios) relatiwepublic and private
peer companies and leverage levels, among othier§a€hanges in one or more of these factors aga a similar
directional change on other factors in determirthreyappropriate Multiple to use in the market applho

NOTE 5 — EQUITY OFFERINGS AND RELATED EXPENSES

The Company issued 12,035,023 shares of commok gtoing the period from Inception through Decemb®r2012. The
proceeds raised, the related sales load, the mffexpenses and the prices at which these sharedsseed are as follows:

Number of Offering Offering
Issuance of Common Stock Shares Gross Proceeds Sales Load Expenses Price
September 30, 2012 10C $ 500,01 $ — 3 — $5,000.1(
October 25, 201 33,23¢ — — — —
November 2, 201®) 849,99¢ 12,749,99 — — 15.0¢
November 7, 201©) 1,943,94: 29,159,14 — — 15.0C
835,50(
November 7, 201 9,200,001 138,000,00 4,959,72 @ 15.0¢
December 28, 2019 7,741 112,94¢ — — 14.5¢
Total 12,035,02 $ 180,522,009 $4,959,72 835,50(

(1) Stock dividend of 33,234 shares issued on @gt@b, 2012 to stockholders of record on Octobe2R22. Results in
average price per share of $15.00.

(2) Issued in connection with the private placemmaniNovember 2, 2012

(3) Issued in connection with the purchase andagleement with D.E. Shaw Direct Capital Portfglios..C dated November
2,2012.

(4) Includes $147,123 of offering expenses thaeveexcrued on December 31, 2012.

(5) Issued in connection with stockholder distribntreinvestment.

NOTE 6 — NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET ASSETS PERCOMMON SHARE

The following information sets forth the computatiof net increase (decrease) in net assets rag@ilim operations per
common share for the period from Inception throDgitember 31, 2012.

For the period from
May 18, 2012

(Inception) through

December 31, 2012

Net increase in net assets resulting from opers. $ 1,298,42.
Average common sharé€s 12,035,02

Basic and diluted earnings per common share $ 0.11



(1) Average common shares for the period from Itioeghrough December 31, 2012 represents the 5223 shares
outstanding at December 31, 2012.
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NOTE 7 — COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Company is currently not subject to any maltéeal proceedings, nor, to our knowledge, is araterial legal
proceeding threatened against us. From time to, tiveeanay be a party to certain legal proceedindlerordinary course of
business, including proceedings relating to themeiment of our rights under contracts with outtfotio companies. While the
outcome of these legal proceedings cannot be pestigith certainty, we do not expect that thesepedings will have a
material effect upon our business, financial caadibr results of operations.

NOTE 8 — FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

For the period from
Inception (May 18,
2012) through
December 31, 2012

Per Share Data:(
Net asset value at beginning of per $ 15.0C

Issuance of common shaf@s —

Reinvestments of stockholder distributions 0.01
Sales load (0.47)
Offering costs (0.07)
Net investment incom 0.11
Change in unrealized depreciation (0.01
Total from investment operations 0.1C
Stockholder distributions (0.1¢)
Net asset value at end of per! $ 14.4%
Per share market value at end of period $ 16.3¢
Total return based on market valde 10.48%
Shares outstanding at end of per#®d 12,035,02
Ratio/Supplemental Data:

Net assets at end of peri $ 173,845,95
Average net asset8 $ 173,845,95
Annualized ratio of operating expenses to net a§8et 5.5(%
Annualized ratio of net investment income to nesess®) 4.9%
Portfolio Turnover® 35%

(1) Financial highlights are based on shares audstg as of December 31, 2012.
(2) Issuance of common shares is based on the teeigiverage offering price for the shares issuemhgihe period.

(3) Total return based on market value is basethemrhange in market price per share assumingvastiment at the initial
public offering price of $15.00 per share. Totalira based on net asset value is based upon thgelianet asset value per
share between the opening and ending net assetsviadr share and the issuance of common shates petiod. The total
returns are not annualized.



(4) Financial Highlights for periods of less thamegyear are annualized and the ratio of operatipgreses to average net assets
and net investment income to average net assetslpreted accordingly. Non-recurring expenses weteannualized. For
the period from Inception through December 31, 282 Company incurred $1,123,518 of non-recurexgenses.

Average net assets for the period from Inceptisoubh December 31, 2012, are determined to bessetsiat December .

2012.
(5) Calculated as payoffs divided by average pbeotfsalance using the periods 11/7/12, 11/30/18, B2/31/12.

(6) Represents the shares outstanding at Decerhb2032.
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NOTE 9 — CREDIT FACILITY

On November 7, 2012 the Company entered into a,908600 credit facility (the “Bridge Facility”) wh SunTrust Bank
in order to acquire the initial portfolio. To seeuhe Bridge Facility and certain rights and olligrgs under the purchase
agreement for the initial portfolio, the partiegexrd into certain pledge and/or escrow arrangesnehich were pending the
completion of the initial offering. Such arrangertseterminated upon completion of the initial offeyiand were replaced by the
pledge and security arrangements entered intorinaxdion with the Credit Facility described beldve Company acquired
the initial portfolio for $165,235,169 in cash aP,159,145 in shares of the Company’s common diaskd on the initial
public offering price of $15.00 per share, or $B8%4,314 in total. The Company financed the castigroof the acquisition of
the initial portfolio by (i) borrowing $152,485,11der the Bridge Facility and (ii) using the $48090 of proceeds received
in connection with the sale of shares of our comstogk in a private placement transaction to cengparchasers, including
persons and entities associated with Stellus Qapita purchase per share equal to the initialipwififering price per share.
The outstanding borrowings under the Bridge Faoiliere repaid in full with the proceeds from thiiah public offering and
the facility matured on November 16, 2012 at whpoimt it was terminated. Borrowings under the Beidgpcility accrued
interest at the highest of (i) a prime rate, i@ Federal Funds rate plus 0.50% and (iii) LIBO&s{L.00%. The Company
recorded and paid interest expense of $85,904ah tehich included $83,115 of interest and $2,@86scrow and legal fees
for the period ended December 31, 2012. The Comppenyred and expensed costs of $250,000 in coimmewith obtaining
the Bridge Facility, which the Company has recordsdoan origination fees on the statement of djpersfor the period ended
December 31, 2012.

On November 7, 2012, the Company entered into @lvig credit facility, or (the “Credit Facility”)with various lenders.
SunTrust Bank is one of the lenders and servedrasastrative agent under the Credit Facility. Tedit Facility provides for
borrowings in an aggregate amount up to $115,00@0000a committed basis and an accordion for antiaddl $35,000,000 for
a total facility size of $150,000,000. The exer@$éhe accordion will require sufficient borrowitgse and additional
commitments from the existing lender group andéw tenders.

The Company’s obligations to the lenders are seichiyea first priority security interest in its pfmfio of securities and
cash, but excluding short term investments.

Borrowings under the Credit Facility bear interasihject to the Company’s election, on a per anhasis equal to (i)
LIBOR plus 3.00% with no LIBOR floor or (ii) 2.00us an alternate base rate based on the hightst &rime Rate, Federal
Funds Rate plus 0.5% or one month LIBOR plus 1.08& Company pays unused commitment fees of 0.50%rpaum on the
unused lender commitments under the Credit Faclhtgrest is payable quarterly in arrears. Any ants borrowed under the
Credit Facility will mature, and all accrued andbai interest thereunder will be due and payaliidNovember 12, 2016.

As of December 31, 2012, $38,000,000 was outstgnatimler the Credit Facility. The carrying amounttef amount
outstanding under the Credit Facility approximatesair value. The Company incurred costs of $3,815 in connection with
obtaining the Credit Facility, which the Company Inacorded as prepaid loan structure fees oraitsraent of assets and
liabilities and is amortizing these fees over ife df the Credit Facility. As of December 31, 20$2,947,820 of such prepaid
loan structure fees have yet to be amortized.

For the period since Inception (May 18, 2012) tfieative interest rate under the Credit Facilitysnepproximately 3.6%
(approximately 5.4% including commitment fees oa timused portion of the Credit Facility). Intensgpaid quarterly in
arrears and commenced November 30, 2012. The Compeorded interest expense of $187,725 for thimgended
December 31, 2012, of which $61,264 related to cament fees on the unused portion of the Crediilifaand $6,712
related to other loan fees. The Company paid $B8i@terest expense for the period ended DeceBihe2012. The average
borrowings under the Credit Facility for the periemtded December 31, 2012 were $24,979,592.
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NOTE 10 — SELECTED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDI TED)

The following table sets forth the results of opierss for the period Inception through DecemberZ1,2. This information
was derived from the Company's audited financitieshents. Results for any quarter are not necssaticative of results for
the full year or for any future quarter.

Total Investment Income Net Investment Income Net Unrealized Net Increase in Net Assets
(Loss) (Loss) Depreciation from Operations
Per Per Per Per

Period Ended Total Share® Total Share® Total  Share®@ Total Share®
June 30, 2012 $ (126,629 nfe $ (126,62 n/e — n/e $ (126,629 n/a
September 31, 2012 $ (264,99) $ (2,650 $ (264,99) $ (2,650 = — $ (264,99) $ (2,650
December 31,

2012 $3,696,43. $ 0.3C $1,304,35 $ 0.11 $(5,937) $ — $1,29842. $ 0.11

(1) Per share amounts are calculated using shatstoding during the period.
(2) For the period from Inception through DecemBkr2012.
NOTE 11 — SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Investment Portfolio

Since December 31, 2012, we made investmentsrtgtd1.4 million in three new portfolio companiekigh brings the
investment portfolio to $217 million and the avezagvestment per company to $12 million.

Credit Facility

The outstanding balance under the Credit FacifitpfaMarch 5, 2013 was $46 million due to additidmarowings
subsequent to year end in order to fund new inverstsn

Dividend declared

On March 7, 2013, our board of directors declardd/alend of $0.34 per share payable on March 28320 shareholders
of record as of March 21, 2013.
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Item 9.Changes in and Disagreements with Independent Retgsed Public Accounting Firm on Accounting and Finacial
Disclosure

There were no changes in or disagreements on aiieguot financial disclosure with Grant ThorntonRLthe Company’s
independent registered public accounting firm Far period from Inception through December 31, 2012.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures.

(a) Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedwwre

As of December 31, 2012 (the end of the period eléy this report), we, including our Chief ExacatOfficer and Chief
Financial Officer, evaluated the effectivenesshef dlesign and operation of our disclosure conttntsprocedures (as defined
in Rule 13a-15(e) of the 1934 Act). Based on tatweation, our management, including our Chief Exme Officer and Chief
Financial Officer, concluded that our disclosuratcols and procedures were effective and providadonable assurance that
information required to be disclosed in our pero8EC filings is recorded, processed, summarizedeported within the time
periods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms, thiatlsuch information is accumulated and commuedétt our management,
including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Bircial Officer, as appropriate, to allow timely @&ns regarding required
disclosure. However, in evaluating the disclosurnetiols and procedures, management recognize@yatontrols and
procedures, no matter how well designed and oprate provide only reasonable assurance of aclyehidesired control

objectives, and management necessarily was requairagply its judgment in evaluating the cost-b@nefationship of possible
controls and procedures.

(b) Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Rejpiing

Management did not identify any change in the Camfsainternal control over financial reporting thatcurred during the
quarter ended December 31, 2012 that has mateaffdigted, or is reasonably likely to materialljeat, the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting.

This annual report on Form 10-K does not includeprt of management’'s assessment regarding inteonarol over
financial reporting or an attestation report of cegistered public accounting firm due to a traosiperiod established by rules
of the SEC for newly reporting companies and priowis in the JOBS Act applicable to emerging groedmpanies.

Item 9B. Other Information.

None.
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PART Il

We will file a definitive Proxy Statement for oud23 Annual Meeting of Stockholders with the SEQspant to
Regulation 14A, not later than 120 days after the @& our fiscal year. Accordingly, certain infortizen required by Part 1l has
been omitted under General Instruction G(3) toameual report on Form 10-K. Only those sectionsusfdefinitive Proxy
Statement that specifically address the itemsas#t herein are incorporated by reference.

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporée Governance

The information required by Item 10 is hereby inpmated by reference from the Company’s definifivexy Statement
relating to the Company’s 2013 Annual Meeting afckholders, to be filed with the Securities and&amge Commission
within 120 days following the end of the Comparfjsgal year.

We have adopted a code of business conduct anuh ¢hizit applies to our directors, officers and eygés. This code of
ethics is published on our websitenatw.stelluscapital.com . We intend to disclose any future amendmentsrtojaivers from,
this code of conduct within four business dayshefwaiver or amendment through a Web site posting.

Iltem 11. Executive Compensation

The information required by Item 11 is hereby inpmoated by reference from the Company’s definifivexy Statement
relating to the Company’s 2013 Annual Meeting afckholders, to be filed with the Securities and&amge Commission
within 120 days following the end of the Comparfjsgal year.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial @vners and Management and Related Stockholder Matter

The information required by Item 12 is hereby inpmoated by reference from the Company’s definifivexy Statement
relating to the Company’s 2013 Annual Meeting afckholders, to be filed with the Securities and&amge Commission
within 120 days following the end of the Comparfjsgal year.

Iltem 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transdions, and Director Independence

The information required by Item 13 is hereby inpmoated by reference from the Company’s definifivexy Statement
relating to the Company’s 2013 Annual Meeting afckholders, to be filed with the Securities and&amge Commission
within 120 days following the end of the Comparfjsgal year.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information required by Item 14 is hereby immoated by reference from the Company’s definifvexy Statement
relating to the Company’s 2013 Annual Meeting afckholders, to be filed with the Securities andl&amge Commission
within 120 days following the end of the Comparfysgal year.
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PART IV
Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules

a. Documents Filed as Part of this Report

The following financial statements are set forthtém 8:

Page
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounfing 63
Statements of Assets and Liabilities as of Decer3theR012 64
Statements of Operations for the period from InceptMay 18, 2012) through
December 31, 2012 65
Statements of Changes in Net Assets for the péromd Inception (May 18, 2012)
through December 31, 2012 66
Statements of Cash Flows for the period from InceptMay 18, 2012) through
December 31, 2012 67
Schedule of Investments as of December 31, 2012 68
Notes to Financial Statemet 70
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b. Exhibits

The following exhibits are filed as part of thipoet or hereby incorporated by reference to exbipieviously filed with the

SEC:
3.1

3.3

4.1

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12

111

141

31.1*
31.2*

Articles of Amendment and Restatement (Incorporatedeference to Exhibit (a)(1) to the Registraiegistration Statement on
Form N-2 (File No. 333-184195), filed on October 2812).

Bylaws (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit (b){dthe Registrant’s Registration Statement on Rdréh(File No. 333-184195),
filed on October 23, 2012).

Form of Stock Certificate (Incorporated by refeie Exhibit (d) to the Registrant’s Registratiaat8ment on Form -(File No
333-184195), filed on October 23, 2012).

Form of Investment Advisory Agreement between Regjig and Stellus Capital Management, LLC (Incogped by reference to
Exhibit (g)(1) to the Registrant’s Registrationt®taent on Form N-2 (File No. 333-184195), filed@ctober 23, 2012).

Custodian Agreement between Registrant and Steget®ank and Trust Company(Incorporated by refer¢a Exhibit (j) to the
Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form N-&(Rb. 333-184195), filed on October 23, 2012).

Administration Agreement between Registrant andl&t€apital Management, LLC (Incorporated by refere to Exhibit (k)(1) 1
the Registrant’'s Registration Statement on Form(NH2 No. 333-184195), filed on October 23, 2012).

Dividend Reinvestment Plan (Incorporated by refeecto Exhibit (e) to the Registrant’s Registrat®tatement on Form N-2 (File
No. 33:-184195), filed on October 23, 2012).

Form of License Agreement between the RegistrathtSiallus Capital Management (Incorporated by esfee to Exhibit (k)(2) to
the Registrant’'s Registration Statement on Form(Ni2 No. 333-184195), filed on October 23, 2012)

Form of Indemnification Agreement between the Regig and the directors (Incorporated by referendexhibit (k)(3) to the
Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form N-B(Rb. 333-184195), filed on October 23, 2012)

Form of Purchase Agreement between the Registaiat,Shaw Direct Capital Portfolios, L.L.C. and BGnding SPV, L.L.C.
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit (k)(4) to tRegistrant’s Registration Statement on Form Ni (No. 333-184195), filed on
November 7, 2012

Form of Senior Secured Revolving Credit Agreemembiag the Registrant and SunTrust Bank (Incorporbjekference to
Exhibit (k)(5) to the Registrant’s Registration t8taent on Form N-2 (File No. 333-184195), filedMdovember 7, 2012)

Form of Guarantee and Security Agreement among#ugstrant and SunTrust Bank (Incorporated by egfeg to Exhibit (k)(6) 1
the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form(Ni2 No. 333-184195), filed on November 7, 2012)

Form of Senior Secured Term Credit Agreement antbadregistrant and SunTrust Bank (Incorporatecelfsrence to Exhibit (k)
(7) to the Registrant’s Registration Statement omFN-2 (File No. 333-184195), filed on Novembe®12)

Form of Security Agreement among the Registrant@undTrust Bank (Incorporated by reference to Exi{i){(8) to the
Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form N-&(Rb. 333-184195), filed on November 7, 2012)

Form of Letter Agreement between the Registrarf, Bhaw Direct Capital Portfolios, L.L.C. and DCniing SPV, L.L.C.
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit (k)(9) to tRegistrant’s Registration Statement on Form Ni (No. 333-184195), filed on
November 7, 2012

Computation of Per Share Earnings (included imiites to the audited financial statements contaimdiis report).

Code of Ethics (Incorporated by reference to Exiif{1) to the Registrant’s Registration Statenmmform N-2 (File No. 333-
184195), filed on October 23, 2012)

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuantRule 13a-14 of the Securities Exchange Act o183 amended.
Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuantRule 13a-14 of the Securities Exchange Act o183 amended.
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32.1* Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant$ection 906 of The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
32.2* Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant $ection 906 of The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

*  Filed herewith.

c. Financial statement schedules

No financial statement schedules are filed hereb&tbause (1) such schedules are not required th€2hformation has
been presented in the aforementioned financiadrsiants.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f{the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly caused
this report to be signed on its behalf by the usidgeed, thereunto duly authorized.

STELLUS CAPITAL INVESTMENT CORPORATION
Date: March 11, 2013 /s/ Robert T. Ladd

Robert T. Ladd
Chief Executive Officer and President

Date: March 11, 2013 /sl W. Todd Huskinson

W. Todd Huskinson
Chief Financial Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgé Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélpthe following
persons on behalf of the registrant and in the @gpand on the dates indicated.

Date: March 11, 2013 /s/ Robert T. Ladd

Robert T. Ladd
Chief Executive Officer, President and
Chairman of the Board of Directors

Date: March 11, 2013 /s/ W. Todd Huskinson

W. Todd Huskinson
Chief Financial Officer, Chief Compliance Officer
and Secretary
(Principal Accounting and Financial Officer)

Date: March 11, 2013 /sl Dean D’Angelo

Dean D’Angelo
Director

Date: March 11, 2013 /sl Joshua T. Davis

Joshua T. Davis

Director
Date: March 11, 2013 /s/ J. Tim Arnoult
J. Tim Arnoult
Director
Date: March 11, 2013 /sl Bruce R. Bilger

Bruce R. Bilger
Director

Date: March 11, 2013 /sl Paul Keglivic

Paul Keglivic
Director
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Exhibit 31.1

I, Robert T. Ladd, Chief Executive Officer of StedICapital Investment Corporation certify that:

| have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fStellus Capital Investment Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiorany untrue statement of a material fact or eonditate a material

fact necessary to make the statements made, indighe circumstances under which such statenvesits made, not
misleading with respect to the period covered ligy tbport;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statememid,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in
all material respects the financial condition, ssaf operations and cash flows of the registesmnof, and for, the
periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer andrk responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 18a}lfor the registrant and have:

(a) designed such disclosure controls and procedarecaused such disclosure controls and procedoitge designed
under our supervision, to ensure that materiarinéion relating to the registrant, including itmeolidated
subsidiaries, is made known to us by others with@se entities, particularly during the period ihigh this report is
being prepared,;

(b) evaluated the effectiveness of the registradisslosure controls and procedures and presentesi report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disesantrols and procedures, as of the end of thiegeovered by
this report based on such evaluation; and

(c) disclosed in this report any change in thestegit’s internal control over financial reportitigat occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regists fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimaport) that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to erélly affect, the registrant’s internal contrales financial
reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer antdve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluetiimernal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditorglahe audit committee of the registrant’s boardicéctors (or persons
performing the equivalent functions):

(a) all significant deficiencies and material weaéses in the design or operation of internal cootrer financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversafgct the registrant’s ability to record, processnmarize and
report financial information; and

(b) any fraud, whether or not material, that inesmanagement or other employees who have a samiifiole in the
registrant’s internal control over financial repogt

Dated this 11" day of March 2013.

By:/s/ Robert T. Ladd

Robert T. Ladd
Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 31.2

I, W. Todd Huskinson, Chief Financial Officer ofeBuis Capital Investment Corporation certify that:

| have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fStellus Capital Investment Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiorany untrue statement of a material fact or eonditate a material

fact necessary to make the statements made, indighe circumstances under which such statenvesits made, not
misleading with respect to the period covered ligy tbport;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statememid,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in
all material respects the financial condition, ssaf operations and cash flows of the registesmnof, and for, the
periods presented in this report;

. The registrant’s other certifying officer andrke responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a}Hhd 15d-15(e)) for the registrant and have:

(a) designed such disclosure controls and procedarecaused such disclosure controls and procedoitge designed
under our supervision, to ensure that materiarinéion relating to the registrant, including itmeolidated
subsidiaries, is made known to us by others with@se entities, particularly during the period ihigh this report is
being prepared,;

(b) evaluated the effectiveness of the registradisslosure controls and procedures and presentesi report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disesantrols and procedures, as of the end of thiegeovered by
this report based on such evaluation; and

(c) disclosed in this report any change in thestegit’s internal control over financial reportitigat occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regists fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimaport) that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to erélly affect, the registrant’s internal contrales financial
reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer antdve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluetiimernal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditorglahe audit committee of the registrant’s boardicéctors (or persons
performing the equivalent functions):

(a) all significant deficiencies and material weaéses in the design or operation of internal cootrer financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversafgct the registrant’s ability to record, processnmarize and
report financial information; and

(b) any fraud, whether or not material, that inesmanagement or other employees who have a samiifiole in the
registrant’s internal control over financial repogt

Dated this 11" day of March 2013.

By:/s/ W. Todd Huskinson

W. Todd Huskinson
Chief Financial Officer




Exhibit 32.1

Certification of Chief Executive Officer
Pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (183JC. 1350)

In connection with this Annual Report on Form 1@tKe “Report”) of Stellus Capital Investment Corgion (the
“Registrant”), as filed with the Securities and Bange Commission on the date hereof, |, Roberiadd| the Chief Executive
Officer of the Registrant, hereby certify, to thesbof my knowledge, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeatsSection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExgfeAct of 1934, as
amended; and

(2) The information contained in the Report faplgsents, in all material respects, the finana@aldition and results of
operations of the Registrant.

/s/ Robert T. Ladd

Name: Robert T. Ladd
Date: March 11, 2013




Exhibit 32.2

Certification of Chief Financial Officer
Pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (183JC. 1350)

In connection with this Annual Report on Form 1(tKe “Report”) of Stellus Capital Investment Corgion (the
“Registrant”), as filed with the Securities and Bange Commission on the date hereof, I, W. Toddkldgen, the Chief
Financial Officer of the Registrant, hereby certify the best of my knowledge, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeatsSection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExgfeAct of 1934, as
amended; and

(2) The information contained in the Report faplgsents, in all material respects, the finana@aldition and results of
operations of the Registrant.

/s/ W. Todd Huskinson

Name: W. Todd Huskinson
Date: March 11, 2013




